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2011
HIGHLIGHTS

Financial

= NET CASHFLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES,
excluding general and administrative costs, of
LS548.9 millian,

Operational

= MAARI FIELD, OFFSHORE NEW ZEALAMD,

successful workover of shut-in wells; Manaia well tied
into platform; upside zones being appraised.

= PROFIT BEFORE TAX OF US548.5 MILLION; profit
before tax, sdjusted for PNG =ale and convertible
bond revaluation, of USE29.9 millian.

= US$80 MILLION COMNVERTIELE BOMD ISSUED
TO FINAMNCE BLOCK 22/12 ACQUISITION and
zssociated dovelopment expenditura,

OVERALL DEVELOPMENT PLAN FOR WZ 6-12
AND WZ 12-8W FIELDS, Beiou Gult offshare China,
approved by CNOOC; final investment decision
approved by joint venture.

® CASH ON HAMD INCREASED TO USS&4.6
MILLION, after repayment of all outstanding
bank debt.

ACQUISITION OF ADDITIOMAL 12.25%/25%
INTEREST IN BLOCK 22/12; increased reserves and
resources in Block 22/12 fallowing the acquisition fram
s2mmbo 1z 11.3mmiba.

CONTENTS

s Report

STAMNLEY-2 AND STAMLEY-4 APPRAISAL WELLS IN
PRL 4, PAPUA MEW GUINEA. drilled with favourable
results; development planning underway; legal
proceedings over PRL S settled with new licence

issued, designated PRL 21,

Annual Financial
alder Infarmation

Glossary

— Papua Mew Guinesa
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CHAIRMAN AND
CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER'S REPORT

Dear Shareholders,

Ower the last year solid progress has been made
towards achieving the Company's main objective,
namely to add significant shareholder value by
converting our substantial partfolic of undeveloped
reserves and resources inte produdng oil and gas
fields. The production forecast below characterises
the potential of this portfolio to generate cash and
serves as a constant reminder to your board and
management of the task at hand.

A ey achievement ovar tre last year has baen the positive
tinal investment cles aian FIO) by the joint wantune for the
dovelopment of cur fields in Block 22412, offshore Chine.
I carrhination wita the near zoukl ng of oLrinterest in
the praject through acquistins of the interest ot one ot

ol jelnt venturs partnes, a gocd eeel of confidenoe has
neen adoed o a significant campeaent of e oroduction
forecast.

The second key achievernent was in Fapua Mew Guines
wehora we hac ey sucsessful appraisal drilling resalts ot
Stanley in PRI 4 and also wirs s aomesstalin resterine our
intersst i1 the acreage covaned by the former PRL b, being
dazignatad a5 PRL 21, which contains the Elevala and K=ty
fierke.

This keeps the significant ol and gas production of Ts
torecast attributed to PRG ontrack. Cf soures Flevala
and Ketl are yet 1o be apgraized - the dri ling program is
sefeculsd o commance shorly,

Brent Emmett
Chief Executive Officer

Fraser Ainsworth am
Chairman

Highlights of the year were:

Financial

B Revenue trom ooerating sctivities was up by L5511
i lien te USESRA million, Higher cil prices mare than
cffzet lzwe o praduction tom te Weari ticld.

B Frotfit befare tax waz USEARE millian 010 USE36.T
i licn, alrivier by gross profit fom operetions of
SE3S S illior (20700 USEI2.0 million) and realised
prolilon the Seplember 2005 ssle of parlof the
Cormpany's Fapus Mew Guinea assets of JS4220
rri len (2010: LISE3280 million),

m Mot cash inflow from operatir o activities fexcluding
oensral and administrative costs) was USEAEY milicn
(2070: US$3AF millien.

m Thz sxploration and developraent procrar, ineluding
the azmuiatior of Fetseds intersat in Block 23012
IUS574.5 rmillion), and repayrrent of remaining Maari
project aank debt (USE21.7 mil ion) wers financed by
cperaling cash lows (UEE.S m llion), proceeds from
the part 2ale of PMG assets (US5220 milion) and nat
procesds fram the izsue af UESE00 nillion & vear temm
corree libale bonds [JS$577 .8 eaillion).

B At yaar-end, the Company had cash on hand of USESd.6
riilien and no ank debt,
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THE NEXT 18 MONTHS OR 5O ARE CLEARLY GOING
TO BE A PERIOD OF SUBSTANTIAL GROWTH AND
DEVELOPMENT FOR HORIZON OIL

Operational

Mew Fealand

B Horron Ol shars o ol production o the Maar /
Marzia ficlds wes 578,368 barols 12010 700,479 barrz(s),
Production wes achersaly affected by Tailures of the
electrical subrersible purmpe (S5Ps) and szaling inthe
E5Ps and well complztion cormpanants. The operator
is rraking good progress in understar ding thess issuss
an:d inthe design ot ongoirg maintenancs procedures
o rminie se cecarrence and increase reliabiling

8 Production was added to the Maar/Manaia fields
during the year when the extended reach wel
drilled to appraise the Mangahewa farmatian of the
Manaia structure, the MM well, started clean-up flow
production on ¥ October 2010 and demonstrated the
capacity o flow at a rate in excess of 4,000 barrels of
oil per day (bopd). Producticn performance is being
analysed for the purpcses of designing a development
plan znd determining recoverable reserves for the
Manaia Mangahewa zore. Thiz iz part of the broader
objective of exploiting all the commerdially viable ail
and gas zones within the Greater Maari Area,

® Horizon Oil holds a 30% intorest in PEF 51313, 2 2,595
50 km block adjacent to the Maari/Manaia tields.
Seismic data collection has been completed and
interpretation and mapping is undensay with a view to
maturing a prospect an the Maari/Pike/Matariki trend
for drilling in 2012 or 2073

China

® |n February 2011 Horizen Oil and its joint verturers
approved the FID for the WZ56-12, WZ6-125 and
WZ12-8W combined field development in Bleck
22012, offshone China, Waork on the project, operated
by the Chinz Mational Cffshare Oil Corporation
[CNCO0) s undenway, with bazic engineering design
completed and contracts let for desion, procurement
and construction of the 3 alatforms required for the
developmert. First ail production is scheduled by year-
end 2012,

® |n June 2071 Herizon Oil annaunced that it had signed
an agreement with Petsec Energy Limited [Petsac)
ta buy Petsec 25% interest in Block 22/12, which
includes a 12.25% intersst in the WZ4-12 and WZ12-8W
developrert praject, increasing the Cornpany’s interest
to 55% and 26.95% respectively. The acquisition
increases the Company's net reserves and resources
in Block 22112 frarm 6.2 million barrels of ail (mmbo) 1o
11.3 mmbo

Herizon Qil Annual Report 2011



CHAIRMAM AMND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER'S REPORT

Papua Mew Guinea

® During the yaar the Stanley-2 and Stanley-4 appraisal
wells were drilled and completed as gas production
wells for the proposed Stanley stripping project.
Stanley-2 was drilled to a total depth of 3173 min
guartzite basement and corfirmed 23 m of net gas!
condensate pay in the primary Tore formation and
intersected a new zone of 43 m of net gas/condensate
pay in the Kimu sandstone of the Imboun formation,
below the Toro. An extensive production test was
carried out prior to the well being completad as a
future production well. The Stanley-4 well, which
spudded on 2% March 2011, reached total depth of
3,340 m in economic basement at midnight an 2 May.
The primary Toro sandstone in Stanley-4 was found
to be gas-filled with 35 m of net gas pay, thicker than
the eguivalent zone encountered in the Stanley-2 well.
Tha secondany okjective, the Kimu sandstone, was
approximately the same thickness as in Stanley-7 and
contained 10 of net gas pay, After running electric
logs and taking samples and pressure measurements
of the prospective zones, the well was cased and
completed as a future production well,

® Thase positive drilling results have allowed front end

engineering and design (FEED} work for the proposed
Stanley field development to advance significantly
during the year. This indudes the condensate stripping
plant, pipeline from the field to the base in Kiunga

and a loading facility an the Fly River, Investigation

af marketing oppornunities for both the gas and
condensate is also progressing well,

Legal proceedings over the PRL 5 acreage were
settled during the year and a new 5 year licence aver
the acreage, desigrated as PRL 21, was awarded to
Harizen Oil {Papua) Limited with 2 35% interest and
other licensees. The Company subsequently increased
its interest to 45% by acquirng a 105 interest from
another liconsoa.

Surface locations for drilling of the Elevala-2 and ketu-
Z apprais&”dwehpmerrt wells in FRL 21 have been
selected and site preparation work on Elevala-2 is
complete and in progress on the Ketu-2 location.

Thia axpected :ipud date for Elevala-2 is Edr]y

Movember 2011.

Met Reserves, Contingent Resources and Exploration Potential as at 30 June 2011

Reserves
Proven and Probable

Szan okl
&3 mimbe

ot (A2
0.5 mmba
Manma
-~ IMangahewsa)
1.5 mimbs
Block 22112
WIS+
1B ~. Block 2212
4.5 mmbao WZ 122E
4.3 mmbo

Total 165 mmbo

Contingent Resources
Proven and Probable

FRL 4
[Etanlay gaaf!

Ml {W2A] 07 mmbe
¢, Mazri IMangeheaal 10 mmbo
.// Bdar za (slangahewal 1.1 mmibo
FRL&
(Storay lguide}
4.5 menbd

FRLZI
— [Elzvala liguadsy
8.7 mmbo

T FRLH
(et liguicky®
1 mmoo
PRLEN '~
PRL 21
{Eevals gasl Kty geel’
e 4 bl

Total 19.1 mmbo, 326 bef

Total reserves and resources - 90 mmboe

' Reduced to allow for CNOOC participation at 31%
¥ Met af production through 30 June 2011

" Subjact to reduction to allow for FRG State Momines particpatsor at 22.5%

In aesordance with 85X Listing Rules, the reaerves informatian in this report is based upen inforrmation comgiled, reviewesd and signed offl by M Alan
Fernie [B.5c), Manager - Exploration and Development, Herizon il Limited. Mr Fernie has mare than thirty six years' relevant experience within the
industry and consents to the information in the form and context to which it appears.

Horizon Cil Annual Repart 2011



CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER'S REFORT

The Risk/Reward Balance of the Asset Portfolio

The 2 charts below show the compaosition of the
Compary's asset portfolio in terms of;

- Low risk reserves, which are on production at Maari/
Manaiz and being developed in China Block 22/12.
The key driver of value here is oil price which, as noted
later in this message, in our view will be above currsnt
levals over the medium te long term.

- The medium risk contingent resources in Mew Zealand
and PNG which are expected to convert to reserves,
contingent on appraisal work andfor imminent
development approvals,

- Relatively high risk / high reward explaration potential
consisting mainly of 80 rmmbe in Mew Zealand's PEP
51313 and 140 bef of gas, with associated liquics, in PRL
4 and PRL 21 in PNG.

As noted in last years Annual Reperd, we belisve that this
assat portfolio represents the right rsk/reward spread for
a company at Horizon Cil's stage of development and
financial capacity.

Exploration Potential
Linrisked Mean
PRL 21 [quichl®

PRL A Qiquidey & i
Tmmba | |

FRL 21 fzea}'
o bt

PRL 4 Jgaal!

50 bot

Block B2
5 mrmbao

o FRA JETA0 Maard!
PEF 13 Banaia Mok
&0 Mo 1 mmbo

Total 74 mmbeo, 140 bef

Exploration potentizl - %7 mmboe

WE BELIEVE THAT THIS ASSET
PORTFOLIO REPRESENTS THE
RIGHT RISK/REWARD SPREAD
FOR A COMPANY AT HORIZON
OIL'S STAGE OF DEVELOPMENT
AND FINANCIAL CAPACITY

Financing Growth and Development

The next 18 months or so are clearly going to be a period
of substartial growth and developmert for Horizon Cil

From 1 July 2011 through to the end of calendar year
2012, we are forecasting that the company will commit of
the crder of USEA0 million to campleting the Block 22112
development, about USES0 millicn to the Stanley gas/
condensate project development, assuming a positive FID
and arcund US$0 million on elp[.:reli'sad dri“irlg al Elevala
and Ketu in PMG,

The board considers funding of this expenditure will
antail a combination of cash on hand (US$64.6 million at
30 June 2011}, cashflow from Maari/Manaiz production
and a resenves-based debt facility which is currant'y under
negotiation,

The board readily acknowledges the risks, challenges and
uncertainties associated with project development and
financial forscasts. However, and pleasingly, the Block
22/12 devalopment costs are tracking the cost estimata
of the Overall Development Plan, with about one third

of the total cost of US$300 million already subject to

fixed sum contracts. Should there be ar unforesesan
cwver-run in the capital programs in China or PNG or a
reduction in forecast production income from Maari/
Manaia, for example as a result of 3 nearterm dip in oil
price, managament is prepared to re-phase the capital
pragram to match available funding. The Stanley field
development, of which Horizan Oil is operator, offers most
seape in this regard.

COn the cumrent schedule substantial additional operating
cash inflows to Horizgon Gil frarm the Cormparys overall
26.95% interost in the Block 22012 development are
anticipated early in calendar 2013, to supplement ongoing
production incoeme from Maari/Manaia.

Haorizen Qil Annual Report 2011



&

WE REMAIN OF THE VIEW
THAT IT IS MORE LIKELY THAN
NOT THAT OVER THE MEDIUM
TO LONG TERM AT LEAST

OIL PRICES WILL BE ABOVE
CURRENT PRICES

Qil and Gas Markets

ol

One of the notable features of the recent increased global
uncertainty resulting from the well-publicised financial
difficulties in Morth America and Europe is the resilience of
oil prices. This is in marked confrast to the substantial oil
prica falls that occured during the nadir of the 200802005
Global Finandial Crisis. Indeed, over the last 12 months
the price range of the Brent marker crude (the bagis on
which Maari crude oil is priced] & up from USE70-80 to
araund USE100-110 por barrel today. Centinued strong il
demand by the fast growing Asia-Fadiic economies, led
by China and India, is seemingly offsetting the downward
impact an prices of the carfidence-deficient USA and
European economies.

On the supply side, OPEC has provided more confidence
to consurners than in 2008 that the market will continue to
be supplied, and hopefully this means that we will not see
again the dramatic increase in oil prices of 2008, followed
by the insvitable over-comection. In keeping the market
so supplied OPEC has eroded its spare capacity to the
axtant that credible industry sources belisve there will be
littlea spare supply Lreyurbd the naxt 3-5 years or so. Thera
seems 1o ba litthe hope that non-OPEC supply growth will
be material.

On balance and notwithstanding the ircreased near-termm
volatility resulting from current global uncertainties, we
remain of the view that it is more likely than not that over
the medium to long term oil prices will be above current
prices and, whilst remaining very conscious of downside
oil price risk, we have factoned that positive view into our
business strategy.

Horizon Cil Annual Repart 2011

Gas in the Asia-Facific region

The outlask for natural gas in the Asla-Pacific region in
QUF Vigw ramaing positive — thare have been substartial
increasss in natural gas asset valuss and substantial LNG
contracts continue 1o be EiHIIEd with bu:.rer:i in the regioe.

A significant change in LMG markets (particularly in

Morth Americal, has been the spectacular grawth of
shale gas supply in Canada and the USA where shale

gas has replaced significant valumes of imported LMG.
The impact of this shale gas growth cn Asia-Pacific LNG
markets remains to be seen, However, for several reasons
particularly availabla volumes of urdevaloped gas
resources and proximity to markets) we remain positive
abaout the outlaok for LNG in the Asia Pacfic region.

This positive regional cutiock is extended in part to global
energy markets as a result of continuing pressure for
reductians in greenhouses gas emissions by substituting
natural gas for coal, together with heightened safety
concerns in somea quarters about nuclear power ag a result
of the Fukushima disaster,

Acknowledgements

Largely as a result of the skills, determination and high
level of cornmitment shown by the Company’s team,
Herizon Sl is now well dovan the track of exploiting the
grawth opportunities which the team has played a big
part in creating.

The baard highly commends Brent Ernmett and his
team for that achievement, and their cutstanding overall
performance.



Priarities and the Outlook

The Immediate Priaritios

The mmedrate prionties for management aver the
coming period are Lo

® Optimise water a injection and oil production at Maari
field: design & development program to produca
Greater Maari Area accumulations.

® Process new saismic data over PEP 51313, offshore
Mew Zealand and integrate with existing coverags;
select a target for drilling in 2012/2013.

8 Continue detailed design, materizls procurement and
construction on WZ8-12 and WZ12-8W oil fields, Beibu
Gulf; complete feasibility study for development of
WZ12-8E cil field; evaluate sxploration prospects for
drilling during field development drilling campaign.

8 Finalise Stanley FEED study, investigate marketing
cutlets for condensate and the natural gas, progress
10 a positive FID, secure a petroleurn development
licence and begin development work on PRL 4; execute
Elevala/Ketu fields appraisal/developrment drilling
campaign in PRL 21

= Within the constraints of & modest exploration/business
developrmert budget, remain alert for opportunities
within, adjacent to, or extensions of, existing areas of
activity.

OVER THE LAST 12 MONTHS
THE PRICE RANGE OF THE
BRENT MARKER CRUDE (THE
BASIS ON WHICH MAARI
CRUDE QIL IS PRICED) UP
FROM US$70-80 TO AROUND
US$100-110 PER BARREL

Medium/Longer Term Qutlook

We expect the next 18 manths or 5o to be the successful
culmination of several years of careful business
positioning, #nd asset portfolio growth/management,
together with old-fashioned hard work and deep
commitrment.

Motwithstanding the risks and challenges that are inherer
in Lhe upstrearn oil and gas industry, for the reasons
described above, namely. .

= A well balanced portfelio of ail and gas reserves ard
resoUrces,

8 |mminent development of a significant additional part
of these reserves and resources,

® Cash flows from the Maar/Manaiz cil fields
underpinning financing plans ta develop thess reserves
and resources, and

= A favourable outlook for both oil and natural gas prices
in the Asiz-Pacific region

...the board iz suoyant about the cutlook for our
cormpany.

Jppimvat,

Fraser Ainsworth am
Chairman

Brent Emmett
Chief Executive Officer

30 September 2011

Horizen Qil Annual Report 2011



HORIZON OIL
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

op FoWw (L) Fraser Ainswoarth am Chairman, Brent Emmett Chief Executive Officer, John Humphrey Directar
Bottom row | -6)  Andrew Stock Director, Gerrit de Nys Dirzctor, Bob Laws esm Director

CONSOLIDATED
RESULTS

Acsurnmary o cansalidated results and a commpar sen with the previous year is set out balow:

Consalicatsd

2111 A0

LSS0 JEEO00

Revenues friem continuing coerat ong 59342 A7 541
Cost of sales [ nzudss amart saticn, (19,4221 5015
Greas, pwedit £ (loss) 3%.740 AF TG
Fr:ft fram sale of zessts ZEIN) S mHA
Cothier insone a44 157
Genzral ane ac minisratve ogeonsos {7,232 (5,445
B uraliven and covelepirril caper s {255] R
[Mnancing zoems fincludes ore e fac Ty, cowertio & bandz anc [TP30 tnance leaze) 12,817 V3,200
Lnrealized movament nvalue of eonvartiby & boncd comearsicon riahits {3,351) -
Cber orporgoe: 162 218
Pradit £ (logs) belon inooma tex axpensa 48,450 5t 553
et =x (2xpanse) f banetiz [13,524] A3
Prafit / (lnss: fam coatiniing nprrations 34,934 hr AT
Prell s Joss Trom o oenlnued coerelion: el ol Lag) - 2
Profit £ lloss! for tne financie yaar 34,934 R
Profit £ floss) sttnbutshble to memoars of Herizon Dil Limited 34,554 52,35
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ACTIVITIES Now Zesond 10

China

R EVI EW Papua Mew Guinea 14

Horizon Ol Limited - permit listing as at 30 September 2011

Mew Zealand  PMP 38160 Maari and Manaia figlds 0.00%
PEF 51313 Matariki, Pike, Te Whatu, Pukeko prospects 30.00%
China Block 2212 W 612, WE 4125 and WE 12-8W fields 26.95%
WZ 12-8E field 55.00%"
PMG PRL 4 Stanley field 50,0052
PRL 21 Elevala and Ketu discoveries 45.00%

1. China Mational Offshore il Corporation is entithed to participate at up to a 51.00% eqguity kevel in a1y commercial devalopmeant withan Blodk 22012,
Dwring the year CHOOC axarcised its right to particpate m the developmant of W2 812, WZ 6-125 and W2 12-80W within Block 2212 at 51.00%
recucing Horizon's interast from 55.00% to 26,95%.

2. Papua Mew Guinea Sovernment may appoint & state nomings to acquired up to a 22.5% participating intarest in any commarcial davelopmant
withir PRL 4 and FRL 21.

3, PRL 21 was granted with effect fram 18 March 2011 far & 5 year tarm following the setlement of legal procesdings with the Pagpua Mew Guinea
Gorarnrment over the soreaga, which was formary desgnatec PRL &

Harizon Oil Annual Report 2011



ACTIVITIES REVIEW 2011

NEW ZEALAND

PMP 38160, Offshore Taranaki Basin, Maari and
Manaia Fields [Horizon Oil interest: 10%)

During the year, Horizon Oil's working interest
share of production frem Maari/Manaia field was
576,368 barrels of oil. Sales volume was 600,942
barrels. Cumulative oil production from the field
through 24 August 2011 was 15.2 millien barrels,
having generated total gross revenue from crude ail
sales since first production in February 2009 of over
U5%1.2 billien,

‘Walinmon

S0{Hom
- - .

Parmit Principal assets Irtarast (%)
PREF 30160 Maan and Manaia flelds  10%
PEP 51313  OMlshore Taranski Basin  30°%

Additional production was added to the MaariManaia
field during the vear when the extended reach well
drilled to appraise the Mangshewa formation of the
Manaia structure, the MRNT well, started clean-up flow
production en 9 Octeber 2010 and by 10 October was
flowing at a rate in excess of 4,000 bopd. Production
performance is being analysed for the purposes of
designing a development plan and detemining
recoverzble reserves for the Manaia Mzangahewa zona
This is part of the broader objective of exploiticg all the
cornmercially viable cil and gas zones within the Greates
Maari Area,

Water injection in the Maari-Mcki zcne for the purposes
of reservoir suppaort has been imareved during the

yeat through changes made to the water injection
configuration 2nd by running water injection pumps in
parallel and 15 proceeding at a rate in excess of 35,000
barrels of water per day, compared with 25000 barrels
per day pravicusly.

Horizon Cil Annual Repart 2011



ACTIVITIES REVIEW 2011 MEW ZEALAMD

SINCE FEBRUARY 2009, THE MAARI/MANAIA FIELD
HAS GENERATED TOTAL GROSS REVENUE FROM
CRUDE OIL SALES OF OVER US$1.2 BILLION.

Haorizen Qil Annual Report 2011 11



ACTIVITIES REVIEW 2011 NEW ZEALAND

MAARI / MANAIA SCHEMATIC CROSS SECTION

PMP 38160, Offshore Mew Zealand

sw

Wellhead
Maui-4 Platform Maari-1 MNE
4 Tk - ialfy - chm
g g g Depth
0

MICCENE

OLIGOCENE | _—

EDCEME

Manaia Structure

Maari Structure

Froduction from the Maari/Maraia field during the year
has been hamperad by frequent failures of elactrical
submersible pumps [ESPs} and scaling obssrved in

the pumnps ard well completion components. The

ESF failures and scaling issues have been addressed
throughout the year, utilising the workover unit WOL)
that is permanently installed on the wellhead platform
and part of the joint venture’s equipmant inventory, The
WOLU has performed effectively and, as at the date of
this rapart, all wells are scheduled to be on production
by 31 August 2011,

The field operator is working cogently to address the
ESF failure and scaling issues and good progress is
being made, After thorough core flood studies, an acid
treztment has been designed to remave scale without
causing formation damage and a procedurs instigated to
remaove existing scale and to prevent further scaling with
a regular maintenance program that does nat require
workover, This should result in less damage to the ESPs.
In addition the operator has engaged with the purmnp
supplier to improve ESP performance and maximise
run-tims,

Horizon Cil Annual Repart 2011

The field was shut-in from 20 = 27 November 2010 as a
precauticrary reasure, whern an cil sheen was cbserved
in the vicinity of the FPSO Raroa. Detailed cargo tank and
under hull inspecticns confirmed its source to be a small
amount of residual oil trapped beneath the FPSOYs hull
from an accidental discharge of ol on 18 October 2010
during de-ballasting cparatiors, The cause of the spill
was identified and measures put in place o ensure that
this type of accidantal discharge does not happen again.

FProduction was also curtailed for a planned maintenance
shut-dowr of the facilities, completed over the period
20 =25 June 2011,

Planrirg for further develepment of the shallower

W28 reservair (MRY well) at Maari and the Mangahewa
reservoir (MM well) at Manaia 1s comtinuing. Ressrvoir
studies indicate additional reserves can be abtained with
further producer and water injection wells. Additionally,
an aszessmeart is being made aof the other hydrecarbon
accumulations at Maari and Manaia as well as close-in
and deeper prospacts, with the chjective of desigring
an appraisal/developmeant drilling program to exploit the
potential of the Greater Maari Area.

Ar anguiry is undarway regarding the availability of

drilling rigs for further appraisal and development
drillirg on PMF 38160 as well as on PEP 51313 in 2012.
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PLANNING FOR
FURTHER DEVELOPMENT
OF THE SHALLOWER
M2A RESERVOIR (MR9
WELL) AT MAARI AND
THE MANGAHEWA
RESERVOIR (MN1

WELL) AT MANAIA IS
CONTINUING.

SOUTH TARAMARY
ZRAACN

PEP 51313, Offshore Taranaki Basin
(Horizon Qi interest: 30%)

Precessing ef the 204 sg km 3D seismic grid and 85
km 20 seismic lines acquired in April and May 2010
was completed during the year and interpretation is
near completion. Some preliminary re-mapping of the
seismic over the permit was carried out.

& further 20 seismic program of 683 km was carried out
during the vear over the Te Whatu and Pukeko prospects
and was completed in April 2011, This data is now being
processed and will be integrated with the previously
acquired Matariki 30 survay to complsts the black

interpretation.

Intarpretation and mapping of the merged Matariki/
Maari 30 data is continuing with a view to maturing a
prospect on the Maari-Plke-Matariki trend fer drilling
in 2012,

Haorizen Qil Annual Report 2011
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Block 22/12, WZ 6-12 and WZ 12-8WANE 12-8E fields
{Horizon Oil interest: 55%/26.95%)

On 14 February 2011 Horizon Oil advised that it

and its partners had approved the final investment
decision (FID) for the WZ 6-12 and WZ 12-8W field
development. The project investment and overall
development plan (ODP) have now been submitted
to the relevant Chinese Government autherity for
farmal approval, notwithstanding which development
activities are well underway.

The development project plans to utilise existing
facilities opearated by China Natioral Offshare il
Corparation (CNOCC), including water disposal wells,
oil and gas export facilities and the Weizhou lslard

oil terrminal. A new CNOOC operated integrated
processing platform (PLIORY will host production from
two unmanned platforms on the WZ 612 and WZ 12-8W
fields and support production fram othet new CNOOC
fields, Elever devaelopment wells are schadulad to be
drilled during 2012 and 2013, with first ol production
anticipated before year-end 2012, Operating costs are
expectad to be consistent with other CNOOC-operated
fields in the area.

To take advantage of the axisting synergies and lower
cost structure, CNOOC sagreed to operate the project
facilities on behalf of the joint venture and also be
responsible for the engineering and construction
phase of the project. CRNOOC has established a
project managerment team located in Zhanjiang, which
includes severzl members seconded from Roc Oil,
Design and project planning is progressing in the areas
of subsurface, faciliies and drilling and completion.
Prequalification of suppliers and vendaors of long lead
equipment packages and services commenced in early
2011, Contracts have peen let for design, procurement
and construction of the 3 platforms required for Phase |
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of the development. This means that over ane third of
the estimated project cost of USEI00m is now subject to
fixed price contracts.

Provision has besn made to drill several explaration
prospects from the two new well platforms to further test
reservoir imits and identified near-field prospects. The
prospacts are current'y being matured and success will
paotentially increase the development area’s commercial
raservas and also potantially the peak production rate.
The WZ 12-8E field, also locatad within the approved
developrnent area, is currently undergaing feasibility
studies, If commarcially attractive, developmant of the
W1 2-8E field will constitute the second phaze of an
integrated developmeant folowing completion of the
current W 612 and W 12-8W projact.

ntempretation work on the near-field z2nd deeper
prospacts in the WE 6-12 area is complete. Itis likely
that several of these prospects will qualify far drilling
during the development drilling phase from the WZ 512
wellhead platform. Planning is underway to provide for
this in the drilling orogram.

On 2 June 2011 Haorizon il announcead that it had
signed an agreement with Petsec Energy Limited
(Petsec) to buy Petsec's 25% interest in Block 22412,
which includes a 12.25% interest in the WZ 46-12 and
WZ12-8W development project, increasing the
company’s interast to 55% and 26.95% respectively. The
acquisition orice was AR38m (approximately US$A0m) in
cazh plus the issue of 15m options in Horizon Cil at an
axercise price of A30.37 and with a term of 2 years.

With certified gross proven and probable reserves for the
WZ 4-12 and WZ 12-BW fields ta be developed in Phase |
of 24 mmibo ard Phase Il resources in the

W 12-8E accurnulation, which is currently the subject

of a feasibility study, estimated by Horizon Oil to be

18 mmbo, the acquisition increases the company’s net
reserves and resources in Block 22/12 from 6.2 mmbao to
11.3 mmbo.
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Harizan Oil funded the acquisition and raised proceads
equivalent to the associated development expenditure
commitment with a US380m convertible sond issus.
The 5 yaar convertible bonds were issued with an initial
conversian price to Harran Ol ordinary shares of
US$0.52, equivalent to ASD.49 based on exchange rates

at the time of pricing, and representing a canversion
premium of 29% to Horizon Qils closing price on £ June
2011 of ASD.2B, The intial conversion price is subject
to reset in certain circumstances. The bonds, which are
unzecurad and will be subordinated to any future bank
debit, will carry a coupon of 5.5% per annum.

Haorizen Qil Annual Report 2011
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PAPUA NEW GUINEA
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Preparation for the appraisal/development drilling
campaign, which commenced with the Stanley-2
well, was carried out early in the year. A 30,000
sq m supply base was built adjacent te the Kiunga

airstrip and an office and camp established in Kiunga.

The public wharf on the Fly River was upgraded

to expedite the unloading of drilling supplies and
equipment and a fuel farm has been constructed
near the wharf. The intention is to utilise this
infrastructure in future preduction operations, in
particular the export of condensate by river tanker.

PRL 4, Stanley Field (Herizan Oil interest: 50%)

A large site was prepared early in the year, to provide
far the Stanley-2 and Stanley-4 well locations, camp
and future gas processing faciliies. Construction

of the camp was completed, and the Parker Drilling
Company Rig 226 was mobihsed onto the locaton and
commissioned for drilling.

Recording of 2 44 km seismic survey aver the
Sepalosiphon prospect (shared 500530 batween the PEL
4 and PPL 269 joint ventures) as well as a 14 km infill line
along the axis of the Stanley structure was completed
during the year. The line over Stanley was intagrated
with the existing seismic grid and the planned trajectory
of the Stanley-2 well adjusted in accordance with the
revised interpratation.

During the year the Stanley-2 appraisal well was drilled
and completed as ene of twe planned gas production
wells in the Stanley as condensate stripping project.
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The well, operated by Horizon Oil and designed to
appraise the Stanlay gas/condensate accumulation
discovered by the Stanley-1 well in 1999, spuddsd on 5
December 2010, Stanley-2 was drilled to a total depth of
3,173 miin guartzite basement ard confirmed 23 m af net
gas/condensate pay in the primary Toro farmation and
intersected a naw zone of 43 m of net gas/condensate
pay in the Kimu sandstore of the Imburu formation,
balow the Tora.

The initial pilot well was plugged back to above the Toro
formation and & oarallel sidetrack drilled about 8 m away
from the ariginal wellbore. Four cores wera successfully
cut, in addition to a core in tha initial well, bringing

the total to 5 cores in the Toro and Kimu sandstones

and these are currently being analysed for reservoir
development planning purposes

An axtensive praduction test was caried out over the
Kimu zone at sustained rates stepping up ta 47 million
cubic feet of gas per day {mmcld) through test separator
equipment. A condensate gas ratio of 25 barrels!

mmct was confirmed, as expected. (This is expected to
increase to about 30 barrels/mmcl when the fisld goes
on productian with specialised separation equipment.)

The Kimu zone was then isolated and a clean-up flow
of the Toro sandstone conducted, The maximum rate
measured during this flow period was 30 mmefd with
the same condansate yield as the lower zone. Mo free
formaticn water or significant hydrogen sulphide was
recorded from either zone during the test process,
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The well was then lined with 7" casing, the two pay
zores perforated and the well equipped for preducticn
from eithar ar both zones. The well was temporarily
suspended and the rig skidded 1o drill the Stanley-4
well fram the current surface location to a bottormhole
lecation approsimately 1 km southeast of the
bottomhbcle location of Stanley-2,

Drilling of the Stanlzy-4 wel, the secand appraisal well
on the field, spudded or 29 March 2011 with Parker Rig
226 and reached total depth of 3,340 m in economic
basement &t midright on 2 May, The primary Toro
sandstone was fourd te be gas-filled with 35 m of net
gas pay, thicker than the equivalent zone encounterad
in the Stanley-2 wall. The secondary objective, the
Fimu sandstone, was anout the same thickness as in
Stanley-2 and contsined 10 m of net gas pay. The gas
water contact (GWC) observed in the Kimu sandstone
is 24 mi lower than the GWC calculated for the Tero

sandstone from the pressure data recorded in Stanley-2.

A third possible zone, the Alene sandstone, which was
only thin in Stanley-2, was encountered owverlying the
Tora, This exhibitsd gas shows during drilling but is
of poor reservair quality and eurrertly no gas pay is
baing attributed to the zone. The target zonas wore
penetrated lower than prognosis, in part as a result of
structural variation, and also due to thickening of the
Alenz and Toro units.

PAPUA NEW GUINEA
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After running electric logs and taking samples and
pressure measurements of the prospective zones, the
well was cased and completed as a future production
well ard the rig released on 15 May 2011, The rigis
currently drilling the Sepalosishon prospect (Siphon-1
wall) at a location within PPL 269 adjacent to PRL 4,
Haorizan Ol has arranged to trade the Stanley-2 well
results for Siphon-1 data to enable evaluation of the
significant partion of the Sepalasiphon prospect that lies
within PRL 4.

Front end engineering and design (FEED) work for the
Stanley field developrnent is nearing completion. This
includes the condensate stripping glant, pipeline fram
the fisld to the base in Kiunga and a loading facility on
the Fly River. Horizon Qil, as operator of the condersate
stripping project, has engaged with a maritime operator
currently managing bulk shipping operations in the
region to develop a shipping solution for export of
condensate. Design of a condensate river tanker is near
completion. lnvestigation of marketing cppertunities for
the product is undenway.

The various reports and documents required for the
patrolaum development licence application are at an
advanced stage. These include the social magping and
landowrer identification report, envirenmental impact
statement and gas agreement,

Harizon Oil Annual Report 2011
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PRL 5/21, Elevala/Ketu discoveries
(Horizon Qil interast: 45%)

During the year the PRL 5 joint venture, composed

of subsidiaries of Horizan Oil, Santos Limited and
Talisman Energy Inc,, was acvised by the Minister of
Petraleurn and Energy that he had refused to approve
the application for 2n extension of the lcence, The
Company had praviously advised sharsholders that the
Minister had advised his intent not to renew PRL 5 on
the basis that the joint venture had failed to fulfil the
licence conditions, The joint venture made submissions
to the Minister, demaonstrating that the joint verture
had, in fact, satisfied the licence conditions and that

the permit was in good standing. A subsidiary of the
Company, Harizon Oil (Papua) Limited, commenced
lagal proceedings in the PNG courts, sesking leave for
a judicial review of the Minister's decision not to renew
PRL 5. Horizon Oil (Papua) Limited was succasstul in
abtaining an injunction to restrain dealings in respact of
the PRL 5 acreage, while the legal oroceedings remained
afoot.

The Cempany advised on 31 March 2011 that the legal
proceadings were settled and a new 5 year licence

ower the PRL 5 acreage, designated as PRL 21, in which
Horizon Ol (Papua) Limited was awsrded a 70% interest,
had been granted. In accordance with the company's
axisting joint verture arrangements in PG with Talisman
Miugini Pty Ltd (Talisrman), Herizen Oil assigred half its
interest in PRL 21 to Talisman. This obligated Talisman
to pay Horizon il US$22 million in cash following
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receipt of certain administrative approvals from the PNG
government, in finalisation of the original sale of a 50%
interest in PRL 4 to Talisman for USHE0 million in cash
and work carry. The company had praviously received
US$3B million to date in proceads from that sale, with the
remaining Us$22 million received during the cumrent year.

On 1 June 2011, Horizon Oil advised that it had acquired
an additional 10% intarest in PREL 21 from joint verture
participant Elevala Energy Limited. This increased the
interest held by Horizon Ol (Fapua) Limited in PRL 21

to 45%.

Surtace locations for drilling of the Elevala-Z and Ketu-2
appraisal/developmeant wells have been selacted and
sile preparation work on both locations has begun.

The site for the first well to be drilled, Elevala 2, is £5%
complete, The well will be drilled with Parker Rig 226,
which is currenty drilling the Sepalosiphon prospect in
PPL 242 and is expected to be released to the PRL 21
joint venture in Septermnber 2011, Keatu-2 will follow the
drilling of Elevala-2.

A seismic program of 105 ke has been planned to fine
tune bottoemhale locations for the appraisal walls and
this should get underway in August 2017,
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DIRECTORS' REPORT

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

Your directors present their report on the consolidated
ertity (raferred to heraafter as the "Groun’) consisting of
Harizon Qi Limited (the 'Company’) and the entities it
controlled at the erd of, or during the finzncial year ended,
3 June 2011,

DIRECTORS

The following persors were directors of Horizon Oil Limited
during the whele of the financial year and ug to the date of
this report;

E F Ainswarth
B D Emmett

J 5 Humphrey
R ALaws

G de Mys

A Stock was appoirted a director on 2 February 2011 and
continued in office at the date of this repart.

P Mimma was a director from the beginning of the financial
year urtil his resionation on 18 November 2000,

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

During the financial year, the principal activities of the Group
continuad to be directed towards petrolaum exploration,
development and production.

SIGNIFICANT CHAMGES IN THE S5TATE OF AFFAIRS

Significant changes in the state of affairs of the Group
during the financial vear were as follows:

Convertible bond issue and acouisition of Petsec's
interest in Block 22712

During June 2011, Horzon Oil successfully raised US$A0
millicn via 2 corvertible bond issue to fund the acquisition
of Petsec's 25% interest in Block 22/12 and associated
devalopment costs. The acquisition was achieved through
the purchase of Patsec Patroleum LLC {the holding
company of Petsecs interest in Block 22/12) for 4538 million
tapproximately USEAD million) cash plus the issue of 15
million options in Horizon Oil. The options were issued on &
June 211 and have an exercise price of AB1.37 and a term
of 3 years.

The acquisition ol the additional interest in Block 22712
increased Horizon Oils stake in the WEZa-12, WA 12 South
and W7 12-8 West development project from 14.70% to
26.55%, and increases Horizon Qils net reserves in Block
2212 from &2 mmbo to 11.3 mmbao.

Horizon Cil Annual Repart 2011

Residual payments in respect of 2009 PRL 4 transfer
In the 2010 financial statements, the group reversed revenue
amounting to U5$21.5 million recognised in the period

to 31 Dacember 2009 for defarrad consideration on the
trarster ta Talisman Energy Inc. of an intarest in FRL 4, FNC.
The receipt of the deferred consideration was suoject to

the grant of PMNG ministerial consent to transfers of interasts
in PRLs 4 and 5 to Talisman, which were outstanding at the
date of preparing the 2010 financial statements,

During 2011, all remaining conditions of the 2009 ransfer

were satisfied. Accardingly, the USE22 million deferred

coensideration was received and recorded as revenue in the

CUrment year

TLSEZE milbon of revenus raprasents USE2T millssn considaration
decownted due 1o the deferred rature of its recelpr

#The Santos Limited subsidiary remained a joirt venture participant unsl
the appicetion for an sxtension of the FRL 5 Foenoe wes refused by the
Minister of Petrolewm and Enaengy,

Debt facilities

The Group's US345.75 million Maari praject debt facility with
BOS Intemational [Australia) Limited was fully repaid during
the year from surplus Maari cashflows and the proceeds
from the convertibile bond issue. The remaining project
cebt at 30 June 2011 was USHMI|

After repayment of the Maan project dabat facility, the
Group's remaining debd is the USEE0 million in convertible
bonds which wers issued on 17 June 2071 with a 5 year
term. The bonds were issued with an inial corversion price
ol USS0.52, eguivalent to AB049 based on exchange ales
at the time of pricing, and represents & conversion premium
of 29% to Horzon Oil's last closing price of A%0.38 on 2 June
11, The initial conversion price is subject 1o adjustment

in certain arcumstances. The bonds carry a coupon of 5.5%
par annum, payable semi-annually in arrears, The bonds
weare listed on the Singapore Securities Exchange on

20 June 2011
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REVIEW OF OPERATIOMS

& raview of the operations of the group and its business
strategies and prospects is set out in the Activities Review
on pages 7 to 18 of this annual financial report

MATTERS SUBSEQUENT TO THE END OF THE
FINAMCIAL YEAR

Oither than the matters noted sbove znd disclosed in the
review of operations, there has not been ary mattar or
circumstarce which has arisan since 30 June 2011 that has
significantly affected, or may significantly affect:

1. the Group's operations in future financial years; or
2. the results of those operations in future financial years; or
3. the Group's state of affairs in future financial years.

LIKELY DEVELOPMENTS AND EXPECTED RESULTS
OF OPERATIOMNS

Comments on expacted results of certain oparations of the
Group are included in this annual financial report urder the
review of cperations contained in the Activities Review,

Further information on likely developments in the operatians
of the Group and the expacted rasults of operations have
not been included in this report bacausze the directors
believe it would be likely to result in unreasonzble prejudice
to the Group.

ENVIRONMENTAL REGULATION

The Group is subject to significant environmenital regulation
in respect of exgploration, development and production
activities in all countries inwhich it oparates — New

Zealznd, China and Papua Mew Guinea. Horizon Ol
Limited is committed to undertaking all of its explaoration,
development and production activities in an ermaronmentally
responsible manner,

The Directors believe the Group has adequate systems
in place for managing its environmental requirements
and is not aware of any breach of those environmental
requirements as they apoly to the Group, During the
financial year, one incident accurred which was required
to be reported under environmental legislation in Mew
Zealand, as follows:

The Maari/Manaia field was shut-in from 20 = 27 Movember
2010 as a precavtionary measure, when an oil sheen was
observad in the vicinity of the FPS0 Raroa, Detailed cargo
tank and under hull inspections confirmed its source to be
a small amount of residual oil trapped beneath the FFSOYs
bull frem an ascidental discharge of ol on 18 Oetober 2010
during da-ballasting operations. Tha cause of the spill has
been identified and measures put in place to ensure that
this type of accidental discharge does not happen again.

REPORTING CURREMCY

The Company’s and Group's functionzl and reporting
currency is United States dollars. All references in this
annual financial repart ta "USE” ar “dollars™ are referances
to United States dollars, unless otherwize stated,

Haorizen Qil Annual Report 2011
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DIRECTORS' REPORT

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

INFORMATION ON DIRECTORS

Tha fallowing persors held office as directars of Horizan Ol Limited at the date of this report:

Experisnce and current diractorchips:

Farmer directarshipes during last 3 years:

Spacial responsibilities:

[ |

Mon-executve independent Diractor & Chairman:

E F Ainswearth ax, B Comm, FAICD, FCPA

Director for 10 years. Former Managing Director of Sagasco Holdings
Limitad and Delhi Petroleurn Pty Limited. Chairman ot Tarac Australia
Lirnited; Mon-executive director of Ervestra Limited,

Dhrector of Cil Search Limited.

Chairman of Board; Chairman of Remuneration, Nomination and
Dizclosure Committees; mambar of Audit and Risk Managerrent
Committess,

Experance and current directorships:

Former directorships duning last 3 years:

Spacial responsibilities;

Executive Diractor and Chief Executive Officer:

B D Emmett B.5c (Hons)

Director for 11 years, 35 yvears experence in petroleurn exploration, E&P
management and investment banking.

Manea.

Chief Executive Officer; member of Risk Management and Disclosure
Commitiees.

Mon-execative independent Director:
Expernence and current directorships:

Forrmer directorsheps dunirg last 3 years:

Spacial responsibilities:

J 5 Humphrey LLB., 5F Fin

Director for 21 years. Member of the firm of Solicitors, Mallesons Stephen
Jagues, specialising in the area of Corporate Law. Director of Downer
EDN Limited and Wide Bay Australia Ltd, and 2 memkber of the Australian
Government Takeovers Panal,

More

Chairman of Audit Committee; member of Risk Management Committee.

Mon-executive independent Director:

Experiance and current directorships:
Famer directorships during last 3 years:
Spacial responsibilities:

Mon-executive Director.
Expenance and current directorships:

Former directarships quring last 3 years:

Special responsibilities:

R A Laws psm, B.Sc, GAICD

Director for & years. Former director of the Petroleum Division of the
South Australian Department of Mines and Energy and previousty
Exploratian Manager for Australian Aguitaine Petroleum Py Lid.

Mexie,

Chairman of Risk Management Committes; member of Audit,
Remuneration and Momination Committess.

G Jde Nys B. Tech, FIEAust, FAICD, CPEng

Director for 3 years. 42 years experience in civil engineerng, construction,
oil field contracting and natural resource investment management.
Director of Shui On Construction and Materials Limited. Mon-Exaoutive
Chairman of Red Sky Enargy Limited.

Farmer Managing Diractor of IMC Grous Direct Investments and Directar
of View Resources Limited 2nd Lin Capital Limited.

Mermber of Risk Managemeant Committes.

Mon-executive independent Director:
Expenance and current directorships:

Former directorships during last 3 years:

A, Stock B. Eng (Chem) (Hons), FAIE, GAICD

Appointed on 2 February 2011, 35 years of development, operations ard
commercial experierce in energy industries in Australia and cverseas.
Directorn, Executive Projects for Origin Energy Linnited, farmer Executive
General Manager for Major Cevelopment Projects for Qrigin Enargy
Lirmitad, Director of Geodynamics Limited and a member of the Advisory
Boards for the Centre of Energy Technology & the Faculty of Engireering,
Computers and Mathematical Saencas at University of Adefaide.

MAA
Member of Kk Managemeant Committes.

COMPANY SSCRETARY

Qualifications and axperience:

Company Secratary and Chief Finangial Officer

M Sheridan B.Ec, LL.M., F Fin

Betfore joining Horizon Oil Limited in 2003, Mr Sheridan held senior
finanee and commardal rolas in Australian and international oil and gas,
mining 2nd telecommunications companias

Horizon Cil Annual Repart 2011
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FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN THE COMPANY'S SECURITIES

s at tha data of this Directors' Report, the Directors held the following number of fully ard partly paid ordinary shares and
opticns over unissued ardinary shares in the Comgany:

ﬁ};:i.i-r.ﬁary.s.hares Unl iste-;:luopt.l'éns
- Chirectar Chrect Indirect Total Dhrect Indirect Total
f E F Ainsworth 113,500 3,894,875 4010375 - - -
| B Emmett ' -1 13802507 13,802,607 -1 5500001 15,150,000
: J Humphrey | 5,112,034 5112,034 -
R A Laws 779375 779375 - -
| P Nimmo (resignad 18 MNow 2011) 7BT4587| 7.874,587 6,170,000 4,170,000
j G de Mys | 341,250 361,250 SO0, 000 500,000
A Stock (appainted 2 Feb 2007) = : = 5 - &

B Emmett also held 2,713,714 share appreciation rights as at the date of this Directors’ Report. & further, 2,626,328 share
appreciation rights were granted to B Emmett on & August 2017 subject to shareholder approval at the 2017 annual gensral
meeting.

MEETINGS OF DIRECTORS

The numbars of meatings of the Company's board of directors (the 'board’) and of each board committee held during the
financial year, and the numbers of meetings attended by each director were:

Board Audit Risk Remuneration  Disclosure
Committee  Management and Committes
Committes Momination
Committes
Number of meetirgs held: S 3 % e 1
Mumber of meetings attended by
E F Ainsworth 13 3 1 2
B D Emmeatt w 1
15 Humphrey' 1 3 1
R & Laws 13 3 1 2
F Mimmao (resigned 18 Maow 2010 7 1
G de Mys 13 1
Andrew Stock lapponted 2 Feb 20100 7

" The company secratary acted as proxy for Mr Humphsay at three telephone boare meetings during the year called at shart natice which Mr
Humphray was unable 1o attand. The company secratary was instuctad by M Humgheay as to hes vating intantions and was fully briafed of his visws
prior to the maatings,

One boara meeting was held for non excoutive directors onby. The company secretary acted as prosy for Mr Emmett at bwe te'sphone board
maatings during the year called at short notice whch Mr Emmett was unabds to attend. The company secretary was instructed by Mr Emmatt as to
hig wating intantions and was hully bristed of his views pricr to the meatings.

CORPORATE GOVERNAMCE

In recognising the need for the hichest stancards of corporate governance and accountahility, the Directors suppor the
principles of good corporate goverrance. The Company’s Conporate Governance Statement is set out on pages 37 to 40 of
this annual financial report.
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REMUMNERATION REPORT

Tha Remuneration Raport forms part of this Directors”
Report. The information provided in the Rermunaration
Report has been audited by the external auditor as required
by section 308(Jic) of the Corporations Act 2000,

The remuneration report is set out under the fellowing main

headings:

A Principles used to detarming the nature ard amount of
rernurneration

B Detzilz of remuneration

. Service agreements

D Share-based compensation

A. Principles used to determine the nature and
amount of remuneration

The abjectiva of the Group’s executive reward tramework

is to ensure reward for performance is competitive and
appropriate for the results delivered. The framewark aligns
exacutive reward with achievament of strategic chjectives
and the creation of value for shareholders, and confarms
with market best practice for delivery of reward. The beard
ansures that executive rewards satisfy the following kay
criteria for good reward governance practices:

comoetitiveness and reasonablensass;
acceptability to shareholders;

perfarmance linkage ¢ alignment of executive
comoensation;

B transparsncy; and

B capital management.

The board has structured an executive remuneration
framawork that s market competitive and complamentary 1o
the reward strateqgy of the Group, The key elements of the
framework are:

Alignment to sharehaiders' interasts:

m focuses on sustained growth in shareholder value; and
B aliracts and retains high calibre execolives capable cf
managing the Group’s diverse international operations,

Alignmant to program participants’ interests:

m rawards capability and experience;

m reflects competitive reward for contribution te grawth in
shareholder wealth;

8 provides a clear structure for eaming rewards; and

® provides recognition for contribation.

The framewerk provides a mix of fixed pay and a blend of
short and long-term incentives.

Horizon Cil Annual Repart 2011

MNon-executive directors' fees

Fees ard payments to non-executive directors reflect the
demands which are madz on, and the responsibilities of, the
directors. Mon-executive directors” fees and payments ara
reviewad periodically by the Remuneration and Mominatian
Commiliee,

Mon-exscutive directors’ fees are determined within an
aggregate directors’ fee pool limit, which is periodically
recommended for approval by shareholders, Sharsholders
approved the curment fee pool limit of ASA00,000 at the 2009
annual gereral meesting,

Retirement allowances for directors

There are na retirement allowances in place for directors.

Executive pay

Executive remuneration and other terms of employment are
reviewad annually by the Remuneration and Momination
Committee having regard 1o relevant comparative
information, As well as a base salary, rermuneration
packages include superannuation and terminaticn
entitlements and nor-moretary banefits. For periods

prior to April 2010, executives were eligible for long term
incentrees (LTI through participation in the Company's
Ermployee Option Scheme and Emploves Pedformance
Incentive Plan, The grant of options to executive directors
under the Employes Option Scheme and Emoloyes
Performance Incentive Flan has been subject to the approval
of shareholders.

In Apil 2000, the board resclved to madify the remunaration
arrangements for the Company's senior executives.

Based on advice received from Guerdon Associates, an
independent remunaration consultant, the board has put

in place a short tarm incentive scheme and substituted

the previous long term incentive arangements for the
Company's senior executives with a revised long term
incentive scheme. The Company’s existing Employes Option
Scheme will continue to apply to employees other than
seninr executives. Mo options are intended to be issued
undar the Company'’s Employee Performance Incentive Flan,

Remuneration and other terms of employment for
axacutives are formalised in service agreements. The
guantum and composition of the executive remuneraticn is
based on advice from Guerdan Associates.

Shost term incentives

As noted above, a short term incertive scheme was
introduced during the prior year for senior executives. [f the
group and irdividuals achieva pre-detarmined ohjectives
st in consultation with the board, a shart-term incentive
15TI} is available to senior executives during the annual
revigw, Llsing pre-determined objectives ensures variakle
reward is only availakle when value has been created for
sharehalders.
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The following table outlines the majar features of the plan.

Ohbjective

Frequency and timing

level, to acheeve incraased sharehalder value,

To drive performance of annual business plans and objectives, st operational and group

Participation is annual with performance measured over the twelve months to 30 June.

Entitlamants urder the plan are determined and paid (in cash] in the first quarter of the
new financial year.

Key Perfarmarce
Indicators (KPIs)

KPls ara determined ir advance each year in consultation with tha board. The
parformance of each senior executive against these KPis is reviewed annually in
consultation with the board,

A EF| matrix, diractly linked to factors eritical to the success of Horzen Oil's business plan
far the finarcial year, is developed for each executive ircorporating health, safety and

amvironment, financial, opsrational and othar KPls,

| 5Tl apportunity
SUpBrannUation).

Ups to 5085 of the senior executive’s fiked seruneration package (base salary plus

Perfarmance requiremerts

50% of the executive's maximum ST payment can be achieved by meeting KPI targets
bagad on a weighted scaracard approach, with the remaining 50% eamed by over
achievement of KP| 'stretch targets’,

The following table shows the 5TI awards that were achieved during the year ended 30 June 2011:

STl in respect of 2011 financial year
Senior executives Parcentage of maximum Percantage of maximum
STl payment paid ST1 payment forfeitad
B Emimelt A3% 17%
A Fernie B5% 15%
M Sheridan 85% 15%

Lerg torm incantives

Until April 2010, long-term incentives were provided to
certain employeas via the Company's share cption plars.
The revised LT arrangements approved at the 2000 annual
general meeting apply to senior exacutives and involve the
arant af rights which will vest subject (amaonast other things)
to the leval of total shareholder retum (TSR} achieved in the
vesting period, relative to an appropnate indes.

Under the LTI Plan, the board has the dizcretion, subject 1o
ALK Listing Rule requiremants, to grant share appraciation
rights {"S8Rs") 1o executives as long term incentives, The
board has determined that 25% of senior exscutive’s total
remunaration would be long term incentives in the form of
SARs, with the number of SARs granted based on the value
of a SAR.

A SAR iz aright to recaive either or both a cash payment or
shares in the Company, as determined by the board, subject
to the Comparny satisfying certain conditions, including
perfarmance conditions.

The LTI Plar provides that the amsunt of the cash payment
or the number of shares in the Company that the participant
receives on exarcise of the 2AR is based on the value of the
SAR at the tme it is exercised (“5AR Valua"). The SAR Value
is the axcass, if any, of the voluma weightad average price
["WVWWAPY) of shares in the Company for the ten business
day perod ug to the date before the date the SAR is
exarcised over the VWWAP of shares in the Company for the
ten business day period up to the day before the “Effactiva
Allocation Date” for the 5ARs, The Effective Allocation
Date for the 54Rs is the grant date of the SARs or any other
day determined by the board, at the time of the grant. Tha
Effactive sllocation Date would generally be the date the
exacutive’s entitlement was determined.

If tha board datermines that the SARs are to be satisfied in
cash, the amount of cash that the participant receives on
the exercise of the SARs is the SAR Value multiplied by the
riumiber of SARs exercised {less any deduction for taxes that
the Company is required to make from the payment), If the
board determines that the SARs are to be satisfied in shareg,
the number of shares that the participant recsives on the
exarcise of the 5ARs is the 5AR Value divided by the volume
weighted average price of shares in the Company fer the
ten business day period up to the day before the day the
SARs are exercised. Where the number of shares caloulated
is not a whole number, it will be rounded down to the
nearest whole niumber,
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The following table cutlines the major features of the olan.

Key terms & canditions
Eligible perscns:

Leng Term Incentive Plan

Under the terms of the LTI Plan, the Company may grant S4Rs to any employee. HGWE'.'ELI r
it is currently intenced by the Company to only grant SARs under the LT| Plan to current
sanior axacutive employess induding executive diractors.

Exerciza price:

Mea price is pavable by a participant in the LTI Plan on the axercise of a SAR.

Performarce requirements:

Lnder the LT Plan, the number of S&Rs that vest is generally determined by reference ta
whather tha Company achigves certain performance conditions,

The number of 5ARs that vest iz determined by reference to the Company’s total
shareholdar return {"TSR™) over the relevant period relative to that of the S&P/ASXZHI0D
Ereray Index ("Index”). The number of 5ARs that vest iz

(a) if the Company's TSR is equal 1o that of the Indes ("Minimum Benchmark”), 50%:

(bl if the Company's TSR is 14% or more above that of the Indes, 100% (" Maximum
Benchmark"}; and

(e if the Company's TSR is more than the Minirmum Benchmark but less than the Maximum
Benchmark, a percentage between 50% and 100% based on the Company’s TR
performance betwesr the Minimum Benchmark and Maximum Benchmark.

The Maximum Benchmark of 14% above the Index return equates to the periormance level

likeely to exceed the 75th percentile of market returns of companies ieighted by company |
siza] in the Indax.

Furthemere, even whare these performance conditions are satisfied, the SARs will not vast |
unless the Company achieves a TSR of at least 10% over the relevant pericd.

The performance conditions are tested on the date that is three years after the Effective
Grant Date of the S4Rs, and are then re-tested every six maontha after that until the date
that is five years after the Effective Grant Date of the SARs (the final retesting date), The
performance conditions are also tested where certain circumstancas occur, such as a
takeowver bid for the Company,

The Effective Gramt Date for the SA4Rs is the date the SARs are granted, or such other date
as the hoard cetermines for the SARs,

If the 54Rs have not, pursuant to these performance conditions, vested by the final
retesting date that is five years after the data the SARs are granted, the 5ARs will lapse.

Cessation of employment:

If & holder of SARs under the LTI Plan ceases to be employad by a member of the Horzon |
Cil Group, then this generally does not affect the terms and operstion of the 54Rs. The
Board does, however, under the LTI Plan have discretion, 1o the extent permitted by law, Lo |
cause the SARs to lapse or accelerate the date on which the S4Rs becomea axercisabla.

Maximum number of charas
that can be issued:

Subject to various exclusions, the maximum number of chares that may be issued on the
exercise of 3ARs granted under the LTI Plan is caoped at 5% of the total number ot issued
shares of the Company.

Restrictions an exercisa:

A SAR cannol be exercised unless it has vested, Where a AR vests, & parlicipant may not |
exercise the SAR until the first time after the time the SAR vests that the participant is able
1o cleal with shares in the Company under the Company's securities trading pelicy,

SARs are exercised by submitting a notice of exercize to the Company.
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Lapse:

Share ranking ard quotation:

S5ARs will lapse where:

B the 54R: have notvested by the final retesting date which is five years after the date of
grant (see sbove);

m if the SARs have vested by the final retesting date that is five years after the date of
arant, the 5AFs have not been exercised within three months of the date that the SARs
would have first been able to be exercized if they vested at the final retesting date that
is five yoars after the date of grant.

This may ba maore than five years and three manths from the date of grant depending
on whether the holder of the SAR is able 1o deal with shares in the Company under the
Company's securities trading policy at the date five years after the date of grant;

m the employes ceases o he amployed by a member of the Horizon Ol Group, and the
board detarmines that some or all of the $ARs lapse [see above);

& the board determines that the employes has committed ar it is evident that the
amployes intends to commit, any act (whether by commission or omission) which
armounts of would amount to fraud or serous misconduct; or

m ihe ginployee provides a notice o the Company that they wish the SARs Lo lapse.

Shzres provided pursuant to the exercisa of a SAR will rank En:|ua||3,r with the shares in the

Company then on issue, Cuotation on the ASX will be sought for all shares issued upan
the axercise of 5ARs. S5ARs are not assignable or fransferable.

Mo nght to dwvidends, bonus
or righls issues:

The 24ARs will not confer on the halder an entitlament to dividends or to participate in
bonus ssues or Hights issues unless the Board determines that the SARs will be satisfied in
shares and until the 5ARs are exercised and shares are provided 1o the halder

| Mer vating rights:

The SARs will not confer an entitlament to vote at generzl mestings of the Campany
unless the Board determines that the SARs will be satisfied in shares and until the SARs are
exercised and shares are provided to the holder.

| Mon-guotation:

The Compary will not apply to the ASX for official quotation of the SARs.

Capital re-organisation

In the event of a reorganization of the capital of the Compary, the rights of the SARs
halder will be changed to the extent recessary to comply with the ASX Listing Rules and
shall not result in any additional benefits being conferred on 54Rs helders which are not
conferred on membars.

| Effect of taka-over ar change
of contral of Company, daath
or disablement:

The LTI Plan contains provisions to deal with 54ARs where there is a take-over or change of
control of the Company. Depending an the nature of the take-over or change of contral
avant, the Company will either have the discretion or be required (it a change of control] to
determing a special retesting date for the performance requirements discussed above,

For example, the board will have discretion to determine & soecial retesting date where

a tzkeover bid is made for the Company or a scheme of arrangement is entered into. In
that case, the specal retesting date will be the date determined by the board. Where a
statement is lodged with the ASE Lhal a person has become entithed 1o acquine more than
5% of the Company, the board will be required ta determing a special retesting date, and
the special retesting date will ba the day the statement is lodged with the A5,

The SARs may vest if the performance requirements discussed zbowe are satisfied in
relztion to that special retesting date.

The annual performance objectives and share price Horizon share price (HZN) Vs S&P/ASK 200 Energy Index

hurdle are the means by which management links company
performance and remuneration policy. Having regard to
the currant stage of the Company's evelution, lirkaga of 3nmn
remuneration policy to share price perfarmance rather
than earnings is seen as the most sensible method of i
incentivising employees. Any increase in the share price of 2 A
the Company has a positive effect on shareholder weaslth. 15000
The shara price performance of the Company for the current
and previcus four financial years are displayed in the

chart adjacent:

5000 040

25,000

=HEN Voduma = HZN Share Frica = SEFMA5X 200 Energy Indas [Rabased]
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B. Details of rernuneration
Amounts of remuneration

Details of the remunaration of the directars and other key management parsonnel (as defined by AASE 124 Related Farty
Disciosures) of the Company and the Group are sat out in the following tables.

The key management persconel of Company and the Group includes the directors of Horzon Oil Uimited as per page 22
and the following executive officers, whe are alzo the highest paid executives of the Company and Group:

I Sharidan Chief Financial Dfficer, Company Secretary, Horizan Oil Limited
A Fernis Wanagsar Exploration and Drevelopment, Hanzan Cil Limited

Financial year ended Post- Long-term  Share-

30 June 2011 employment  benefits  based

Shert-term benefits benefits payrments
Cash Long
salary Cash Maon- Supeer- service  Oplions
and feaz bonus Maonetary!  annuation leave ShRe? Total®

Mame Uss UsE Uss Uss (14 Uss LSS
[rirectors:

E F Ainswaorth 145,743 . - 13,474 - - 158, 53%
Chairman, Mom-executive Director

B D Emmett 75,107 33,251 55,992 4% 847 2 .022 I a42 0 1,510,887
Chief Executive Officer, Executive

Criractar

J Humphrey 128 - . &, 588 - - 79,46%
MNon-executive Director

R A Laws 72881 - - &, 588 - - TG 44T
Mon-executive Director

P Mimme (resigned 18 Mov 2010) Je441 . - 3,294 - 5,227 45,954
MNon-executive Director

G de Nys 72,581 . ; #,588 a 20,301 93770
Mon-executive Director

A Stock (appainted 2 Feb 2011) 30,357 - - 2,745 - . aang
Mon-executive Director

Total Directors’ remuneration 1,126,321 334,251 68,992 BB.BAS 21,022 358,172 2,007 &04
Other key management personnel;

M Sheridan 521,330 257,024 16,953 24,534 13,911 156,977 985,12%
Chief Financial Cfficar, Company

Secretary

A Fernie 495,505 251,029 60,824 4% 867 13714 156341 1,028.275

Manager - Exploration znd
Ceveloprment

Total other key management
perscrnel remuneration 1,017,835 502048 7777 74,801 27 625 3338 2013404

1. Mon-rmonetary benefits include the value of car parking, insurances and other erperses inclusive of FBT,

2. Reflects the theoretical value (calculated as at grant date and conwvartec to US dollars at the foreign exchange rate prevailing at the date of orant] of
pravicusly urvested opticns/SARs which vested during the financial year.

3. Rernuresation < paid in Australion dallars and corverted to US dollars st the foreign exchange rate prevailing cn the date of the transactien.
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Financial year ended Past- Share
30 June 2010 employment Long-term based
Short-term benefits benefits benefits payrmants
Cash Long
salary Cash Mon- Super service  Cessation
andfees bonus  monetary’ -annuation leava Payment  Options® Total
Marne Uss LSS 55 LS5 LSS Uss 55 (15
Directors:
E F Ainsworth 102,691 - o .20 111,987
Chairman, Mon-axeoutve
Drrector
B D Emmett 506,579 145245 47 007 4431 3713 358937 159 228
Chief Exzcutive Officer,
Executive Director
J Humphrey 51,346 - - 4648 - - 55,994
Mon-gxecutive Dirsctor
R A Laws 51,344 - 4648 55,904
Mon-executive Director
P Mimms? 21,386 - 83 648 - Sk, 000 a4 SO0 802
Executive Director
G de Mys 51,348 4,618 26,357 82,35
Men-executve Directar
Total Directors' remuneration 814,654 165,248 55,348 72,209 37136 505000 425841 2075436
Other key management
persanrel:
M Sheridan IAE62 181,182 12316 22,10 24,572 165, 765 724502
Chief Financial Cifficar,
Cormpary Secretary
A Farnie a2 12,182 47,503 44 140 19,459 165,979 72825
Manager - Exploration and
Davatoprment
Total other key management
persannal remuneration 749124 242354 52819 &6 241 44 031 - 335748 149737

1. Mor-monetary banefits include the value of car parking, insurances and other expenses inclusive of FBT.

2. Refiacts the theoretical vahss lcaloulated as at grant date and converted to U3 dollars at the foreign exchange rate pravailing at the cate of grant] of
previousy urvested options whick vested during the financial year

3. Remuneration is pesd in Australian dofars and coveerted to US dolars at the Toreign exchamge rate presailing on the date of the trarsaction.

AP Mimero coassa o be an axecutive of the Cormpany afective 1 July 2009 and becarme a non-agecutive Drector an that date. In accordanos with the
tewrrrs of B Mermmo's service aoreement with the Company, a payment on the cessaton of executive duties of USE500,000 was paid on 1 July 2005

Fixed remuneraticn At Risk = 5T1 At Risk = LTI
Mame 2011 2070 2011 200 2011 2010
Exgcutive Directors:
E D Emmatt 55% 55% 22% 14% 23% 3%
Chief Executive Officer, Executive Director
Orthar kay maragement personnal:
M Sheridan 57% &g 24% 17% 16% 23%
Chief Financial Officer, Company Secretary
A Fernie 61% 63% 23% 186% 15% 21%

Manager - Exploration ard Development
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C. Service agresments

Remuneration and othar terms of employment for the Chiel Executive Officer and other key management personnel

ara formalised in service agreaments. Each of these agreamants includes the pravision of ather benefits such as health
insurance, car parking and participation, where eligible, in the Harizon Gil Shart Term Incentive and Long Term Incentiva
plans. Othar major provisions of the exsting agreements relating to remuneration are set out below:

B O Emmett, Chief Executive Cfficer
m Term of agreament = 5 years commencing 5 August 2010,

m Paymert of termination benefit an early termination by the employer, other than for gross misconduct, equal to
12 manths remuneration,
m Salary levels are subject 10 annual review,

M Sherican, Chief Financial Officer, Company Secretary
® Term of agreement - 5 years commencing 5 August 2010

® Paymert of termination benefit on early termination by the emoloyer, other than for gross misconduct, equal to
12 months remuneration.

B Salary levels are subject to annual review

A Fernie, Manager - Exploration and Development
B Term of agreement = 5 years commencing 5 August 2010

B Paymert of termination benefit on sarly termination by the emaloyer, other thar for gross misconduct, equal to
12 menths remuneration,

B Salary levels are subject to annual review,

D. Share-based compensation - aptions/share appreciation rights

Options and share appreciation rights (54Rs) have been granted to eligible emplovess under the Harizan Oil Limited
Employee Cption Scheme, the Employee Parformance Incentive Plan, and the Long Term Incentive Plan. The issue of
securities under the Emplayee Option Scheme, the Employee Performance Incentive Plan and the Long Term Incentive Plan
were approved by shareholders for the purposes of the ASK Listing Rules at the 2008 and 2010 annual general mestings.

Options/SARs are grarted to executive directars in accordance with the terma of the relevant option scheme or plan and
are approved on a case by case basis by shareholders at relevant general meetings,

The terms and conditions of each grant of options/SARS affecting remuneration in the previcus, this or future reporting
periods are as follows:

Grant date Expiry date Exercize Value per  Date exsrcisable
price option/SAR
at grant date
/942005 192010 AF0G ARDDATES  33.4% after 1202006, 33.3% after 1/2/2007,
33.3% after 1/9/2008

114442004 1144/ 2011 A30.25 AS0056T 5% after 11/4/20068, 5068 after 11/4/2007

31/8/ 2004 31782011 AR0.33 ASDI30E  33.4% after 31/8/2007, 33.3% after 31/8/2008,
33.3% afer 31/8/2007
31/8/2006 3sa020M A530.33 AR0T30E  334% after 31/8/2007, 33.3% after 31/8/2008,

33.3% akter 31/8/2009

1010/2007  10/10/2012  AS035  AS0O.1491  33.4% after 10/10/2008, 33.3% after
10/10/2009, 33 3% after 10/10/2010

3/10/2008 V02M3 ASO27 ASO1354  334% after /1042009, 33.3% after 3/70/2010,
33.3% after 3/10/2011

25009200 2502004 ASD.295 ASDUIZDT  33.4% after 23/09/2010, 33.3% after
25/09/2011, 33 3% after 25/09/2012

9/10/2009  9/10/2014  ASO315  ASD.1344  33.4% after 91072010, 33.3% after 091072011,
33.3% after 09/10/2012

1/10/2010 10205 AS0.3106°  ASO.1382  100% after 1/10/2013

S/8/201 5/8/2016  AS0.3189'  AS0.1514  100% after 5/8/2014

Mo price is payabla by a participant in tha Long Term Incentive Flan on the exercise of 8 SAR.
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Mo new options ware granted as remuneration to directars or key management personnel during the year. In placs of
opticns, SARs were granted to the executive director and key management personnel under the new Long Term Incentive
Plan. Detaild of SARs provided as remuneration 1 the executive director and each of the key management parsonnel ane set

cut below:
Murnber of
SARs MNumber of Mumber of
aranted Walue of SARs  SARs vested  SARs lapsed  Value at lapse
during the  at grant date*  during the during the date**
Mame year Us % yaar year Us g
Diractors:
E O Emmatt 2713714 62525 - - -
Qther key management persannel:
M Sheridan 1,990,057 265,145 - . -
A Fernie 1,260,057 264,145 - - -

* The value &t grant date caleulated in aceordance with AASE 2 Share-based Payment of SARS grasted during the year as part of remuneration.

** Tha value at lapse date of S4RS that wera granted as part of rermumeration and that lapsed during the year because a vesting condition was not
satisfied, Tha value iz determined at the time of lapsing, but azauming the condition was satisfied.

SARs are granted for no consideration, 5ARs granted

to employees are granted for a five yaar period. When
exarcised, each SAR will be settlad in either cash or shares
in the Company as determined by the board, The number
of shares that can be issued or cash paid on exercize of
the SARE is based on tha value of tha SAR st the time it s

exarcised.

SARs granted under the Long Term incentive Plan carry no
dividend cr voting rights.

The SAR Value is the excess, if any, of the velume weighted
average price ("VWaP™") of shares in the Company for the
ten business day period up to the date before the date the
SAR iz exercised over the VWAR of shares in the Company
for the ten business day perind up to the day before the
“Effective &llocaticn Date” for the S4Rs. The Effactive
Allocation Cate for the SARs is the grant date of the SARs or
any cthar day determined by the board, at the time of the
grant. The Effective Allocation Date would gererally be the
cate the executive's antitlement was determined,

The SAR exercise price is subject to adjustment in cartain
circumstances 25 par ASX Listing Rule 6.22.2

S4Rs granted under the Lang Term Incentive Flzn ars
subject to the following restrictions on exarcise:

® Long Term lncentive flan; The number of 5ARs that
vest is determined by raference to the Compary's
total sharsholder raturn (*TSR™) over the relavant
period refative to that of the S&P/ASX200 Enargy Indax
(“Inchex"). The number of SARs that vest is:

{a) if the Company’s TSR is equal to that of the Index
(“Minimum Banchmark™), 50%:;

(B} if the Company’s TSR is 14% or more above that of
the Index, 100% (*Maximurm Benchmark); and

() il the Company’s TSR is more then the Minimum
Benchmark but less than the Maximum Benchmark,
a percentace betwaen 500 and 100% hased on this
Compary's TSR performance between the Minimum

Benchmark and Maxzimum Benchmark.

The Maximum Benchmark of 14% above the Index retum
equates to the performance level likely to exceed tha
75th percantile of market raturns of companies weighted
by compary size) in the Index. Furthemoare, even whira
these performance conditions are satisfied, the SARs will
not vast unless the Company schioves a TSR of at laast
10% over the relevant pariod.

The performance canditions are tested on the date that
is three years after the Effective Grant Date of the SA4Hs,
and are then re-tested every six months after that wrtil
tha date that is five years after the Effective Grant Date
of the SARs (the final retesting date). The performarce
conditiors are also tested whare cartain circumstances
accur, such as a takeover bid for the Company. The
Effective Grant Date for the 5ARs is the date the 5ARs
are granted, or such other date as the board determines
fior the SARs If the SARs have not, pursuant to thess
performance conditions, vested by the final retesting
date that s five years after the date the SARs are granted,
the SARs will lapse,

The amounts disclosed for the remuneration of directors
and other key management personnel include the assessad
fair values of options/SARs granted during the financial
year, at the date thay were granted. Fair values have bean
asseased by an independent axpert using the Black-Scholes
opticn pricing moded, Factors taker inte acoount by this
model include the exercise price, the term of the option/
SAR, the current price and expected price volatility of the
underlying share, the excected dividend yield and the
risk-free intenest rate for the term of the option/SAR {refer
below), The value attributable 1o aptions/SARs is allocated
to particular periods in accordance with AA58 2 Share-
based Payments and also with the guidelines issued by the
Australian Securities and Investrments Commission {'ASIC")
which raguire the value of an option/SAR at grant date to
be allocated equally aver the period from the grant date to
the vesting date, unless it is probable that the individual will
cease service at an earlier date, in which case the value is
1o be spread ovar the period from grant date to that earlier
date. For options/54Rs that vest immediately at grant date,
the walue is disclased as remuneration immediately.
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The madel inputs for each grant of options/SA&Rs during the financial year ended 30 June 2011 included:

| Grant date 27 September 2010
| Expiry dats 27 September 2015
| Exercise price /AT

| 10 Day VWAF of Horizon Shares at grant data AS0. 3104

| Expected price volatility A3405% pa.

| Risk free rate 50% p.a.

| Expected dividend yield 000% poa.

Mo prioe is payable by a participant in the Larg Tarm Incentive Flan on the aeercse of a SAR.
Further information on options/SARs is et out in note 34,

Shares issued on the exercize of options/share appreciation rights provided as remuneration

Mo share appreciation rights were exercised during the year.

Details of ordinary shares in the Company provided as a result of the axercise of remuneration options to each director of
Horizon Oil Limited and other key management personnel of the Group during the financial year are set out below:

MName Date of exercise Mumber of ordinary shares Value at exercise
of options izsued on exercize of options date*

= during the year

Directors

B D Emmeatt B0 2010 1,500,000 241 300

P Mimmo 102010 1,125,000 171,250

Otner key management parsonnel:

M Sherndan 124112010 1,000,000 27,680

* The walue at the exercise date of optians that were granted as part of remuneraticn and were exercsad during the vear has been determned as the
intrinsic value of the cptions 3t that date.

Thea amounts paid per ardinary share by sach diractor and sther key management personnel on the exardise of options
during the financial yaar at the date of exercise were as follows:

Exercse Date Amount paid per shara Amount remaining to be paid
TARF2010 A%0.148
BARFAND %0148
1211120 AL A50.24
12411420 A0 A0 285

Upon exercise, only A30.01 cent of the exercise price of the option is payable, with the balance being due pricr to the
expiration of the option pericd which is 5 years from the date of the issue of the cptions.  Further information on options is
set out in rote 34,

Deztails of remuneration — options/SARs

For each grant of options/SARs in the current or prior financial yezars which results in an amount being disclosad in the
remunaration repaort as a share-based payment to directors and other key management personnel for the financial year,

the percentage of the grant that vested in the financial year and the percantage that was forfeited because the person

did not meet the service and/or performance criteria is set out below. The options vest over a three vear period provided
the vesting conditions are el The SARs vest alter three years has elapsed provided the vesting corditions are mel No
aptions/SARs will vest if the conditions are not satisfied, therefore the minimurm value of the optione/SARs yet to vest s
USEMIL. The maximum value of the optinna/SARs yet 1o vest has been determined as the amount of the grant date fair value
of the options/SARs that is yet to be expensad.
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Options/5ARS
Mame ‘fear granted Vested Forferted Financial haximum
% % years in which  total value of
options/SARs  grant yet to
ray vest vest! USE
B Emmett 2004 100 - -
07 100 - -
2008 100
2mo 3334 - -
- - 30042012 104,023
- - A0MaA0 3 19,135
2011 . Farana 272,586
F Mimma {resigned 18 Mov 2010) 2006 100 .
2007 100 = -
2008 1010 = -
G ode Mys 2010 3334 - -
/04720 2 8,544
- - 300672013 1,503
M Sheridan 2007 100 :
2008 100
2009 3334 -
3333 - -
- JN0EEN 2 4,/02
2010 3334 - -
= H0siEN 2 25,739
= 300062013 4,508
2011 . 30/0452014 200,094
A Fernia 2007 100 -
2008 100 - -
2009 3334 - -
3333 - -
- S0 2 4,/02
2010 31m:a L E
- 3010472012 25,939
- 0062013 4,508
2011 - 0042014 200,054

1. The abewe values have bean converted ta dollan at the exchange rate prevailicg en the date of the grant of the aptiona/SAaRs.

Haorizen Qil Annual Report 2011

11



DIRECTORS' REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

LOANS TO DIRECTORS AND OTHER KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONMNEL

Thars were na loans to dirsctars o other key management personnel during the financial year,

OTHER TRAMSACTIONS WITH DIRECTORS AND OTHER KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL

See note 33 for other transactions with directors and other key management personrel.

SHARES UNDER OPTION

Unissued crdinary shares of Horizan Oil Limited under option at the date of this repart are as follows:

Date options granla-d- Mumbser oplions lssue price oi"urél'inary shares Expiry date
31/08/ 20064 20,110,000 A%0.33 31/048/2017
10/ 10420807 5,973,000 AR0.35 10/10/20 2
031042008 2,698,000 A0 0310/200 3
25/09/2009 7,025,000 ARD.295! 25/10/2004
091042009 2,700,000 A%0.315 09/10/2004
111202008 SO0, 00KF AR3S 11712/ 4
[ ieimen 350,000 A3031" 16/03/2015
| OeyDa2011 15,0600, 0007 A0.37 J0AS200 4
| 54,356,000 |

1. Subgect ta resticlions on sxercse,
2, General options issued to consuttants,

3. Relates to ganeral options issued to Petsec America Pty Limited 2= cart consideration for the scquisition of Petsec Patroleum LLT [the Patsec

subsidiary which hald Patsec’s interest in Block 22412, oftshora Chinal

Mo option holder has any right under the options to participate in any other share issue of the Company ar any other entity

DMIDENDS

Mo dividend has been paid or declared by the Company 1o
the sharehaolders since the end of the previous financial year,

INSURANCE OF OFFICERS

During the financial year, Harizan il Limited paid &
premium 1o insure the directors and secretaries of the
Company and related bodies corporate. The insurad
liabilities exclude conduct irvolving a wilful breach of
duty or impraper use of information or position to gain a
parsonal advantage. The contract prohibits the disclosure
of the premium paid.

The officers of the Company covered by the insurance policy
include the directors and secrataries, and other officars who
are directors or secretaries of subsidiaries who are not also
directors or secretaries of Honzan Ol Limited.

The liahilities insured include costs and expenses that may
e incurred in deferding civil or crimiral proceedings that
may be brought against the officers in their capacity as
aofficers of the Comzany or a related body corparate,
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NON-ALIDIT SERVICES

The Company may decide to employ
PricewaterhouseCoopers on assignmenta additional to its
statutory audit duties whare the extarnal zuditor's expertize
and experiznce with the Company andfar the Group are
irportant,

Deatails of the amounts paid or payable to
PricewaterhouseCoopers for audit and ron-audit services
provided during the financial year are set aut below,

The board of directors has considered the position and,

in accordance with the written advice recaived fram the
Audit Committas, is satisfied that the pravision of nor-
audit services s compatiale with the general standard

of independence for external auditors imposed by the
Corporations Act 2001. The diractors are satisfied that the
provision of nan-audit sarvices by the extermal auditor, 25
set out below, did not compromise the external auditor
independence requirements of the Corporations Act 2001
for the following reasons:

a2l non-audit services have been reviewsd by the Audit
Committee to ensure they do not impact the impartiality
and objectivity of the extemnal auditor; and

B rone of the sernces undermine the general principles
relating to auditor independence as set out in Australian
Professional Ethical Standards 110 Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants, including reviewing or auditing
the auditors awn wark, acting in a management ar
a decision-making capacity for the Group, acting as
advocate for the Group or jointly sharing economic risk
and rewards,



DIRECTORS® REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

Consolidated
2011 2010
Uss 5%
Dwuring the financial year, the following fees were paid or payable for services
provided by the extemal auditor of the parent entity and its related practices:
1. PwC Australia
Audit and other assurance services
Audit and review of financial reports 141,848 118,658
Othier assurance sarvices
Aszsurance on convertible bond issue 80,483 -
Due diligence 12,145 -
Accounting advice 5370 .
Total remunaration for audit and other assurance services 239 846 118,458
Taxation services
Tax compliance 38,173 17,583
Toal rermuneration for taxation sarices 38173 17,583
2. Non-PwC audit firms
Audt ang other assurance sermces 17,943 -
Other services - -
Taoral remuneration for audit and other assurance services 17,943 -
Total auditens’ remuneration 295,982 136,241

EXTERMAL ALUDITOR'S INDEFENDEMNCE DECLARATION

& copy of the external auditors' independence declaration as required under section 307C of the Corparations Act 2007 is

set out on page 34,

ROUNDING OF AMOUNTS TO THE MEAREST THOUSAMD DOLLARS
The Company is of a kind referred to in Class Order 980100 issued by the Australian Secunties and Invastments Commission,

relating to the *“rounding off” of amounts in the Directors’ Report. Amounts in the Directars’ Beport have been rounded off
in accordance with that Class Oirder to the nearast thousand dollars or, in certain cases, to the nearest dollar.

EXTERMAL AUDITOR

PricewaterhouseCoopers continues in office in accordance with section 327 of the Corporations Act 2001,

This report is made in accordancs with a resclution of the directors.

fpiaeart,

E F Ainsworth as
Chairman

B O Emmett

Chief Executive Office

Sydnay
25 August 2011
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AUDITORS' INDEPENDENCE DECLARATION

=

pwec

Auditor’s Independence Declaration

As lead auditor for the audit of Horizon Oil Limited for the year ended 30 June 2011, | declare that
to the best of my knowledge and belief, there have been:

a) no contraventions of the auditor independence requirements of the Corporations Act 2007 in
relation to the audit;, and
B no contraventions of any applicable code of professional conduet in relation to the aLait.

This declaration is in respect of Horizon Oil Limited and the entities it controlled during the period,

—

—
Brett Delaney Brishana
Partner 25 August 2011
PricewaterhouseCoopers

PricewaterhouseCoopers, ABN 52 780 433 757
Riverside Centre, 123 Eagle Street , BRISBANE QLD 4000, GPC BOX 150, BRISBANE QLD 4001,

L 77 Brishane, Ausiralia
T +51 7 3257 5000, F +81 7 3257 5998, www.pwe.com.au

Liability limited by a schame approved under Professional Standards Legisiation.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

Horizon il Limited (the ‘Company’) and the board are
committed to achieving and demanstrating the highest
standards of corporate governance. The board continues to
review the framework and practices to ensure they meet the
interasts of sharehaldars,

& description of the Company’s main corporate govemance
practices is set out below. All these practices, unless
otherwise stated, were in place for the full financial

year and comply with the ASK Comporate Governance
Courcils revised Corporate Governgree Principles and
Recommendations And edition, released during August
2007, except whare noted herain,

PRIMCIPLE 1: LAY SOLID FOUNDATIONS FOR
MAMAGEMENT ANMD OVERSIGHT

The Company has formalised and defined the functions
reserved for board accountability and those delegated to
management in 2 formal Brard Charter. The Board Charter
was in forge for all of 2011, (Recommendation 1.1

The board reviews the performance of senior executives

on a regular basis. The Chief Executive Officer ('CED")
conducts annuzl perfomance reviews with senicr executives
with performance assessed having regard to a variety

of key performance indicators. The board also assesses

the performance of the CEO and senior executives, The
Chairman meets with the CEQ and gives him feedback on
that assessmant, (Recommendation 1.2)

A performance evaluation far senior executives was carried
out in 2017 in accordance with the performance raview
process set out in the previous paragraph. The Company
expects that a pedormance review for all senior executives
will bee carried out in accordance with that process during
the next reporting period,

The board has established a number of Board Commiltess
to assist in the execution of its duties and to allow detailed
consideration of complex issues. Curent Committess of the
board are: Audit, Remuneration and Momination, and Risk
Management Committees. Copies of the Board Charter
and Charters for each of the Board Committees are posted
in the Corporate Govermance section of the Company's

website at weewhorizonailoom.ay-

PRINCIPLE 2: STRUCTURE THE BOWMARD TO
ADD VALUE

The board operates in accordance with the broad principles
set out in the Board Charter, The board has & pricnary
responsibility to the shareholdars for the welfare of the
Company by guiding and montonng the business zand
aflfairs of the Company.

The Company recagnises the impartance of the board in
providing a sound base for good corporate governance
in the cperations of Horizan Qil Limited. The board must
at all times act honestly, fairly and diligently in all respects
in aceordance with the laws applicable to the Company.
Furthermaore, the board will at all times act in accordance
with all relevant Company policies.

Subject to the prior approval of the Chairman, directors

and Board Committees hava the right, in cannaction with
the discharge of their duties and responsibilities, to sesek
independent professional advice at the Company’s expense.

The Company's Constitution provides that directors, ather
than tha CED, chall not retain office for more than three
calendar financial years ar beyand the third annual general
meating following election without submitting for re-
election by shareholders, At each annual general meeting,
one third of the directors in office, or, if their number is not
a multiple of thres, the number closest to ena-third, shall
retire from offica.

Directors’ independence
The board adopts the criteria soecified in ASK Corporate

Governance Principles and Recommendations to determine
a directars” independancs. The board considars that
Messrs Ainswaorth, Humpheey, Laws and Stock satisfy the
criteria being independent of management and free from
any business or other relationship or conflict of interest

that could materially irterfera with, or could reasocnakly be
perceived ta matarially intertere with, the exercise ot their
independent judgement. [Recommendation 2.1}

In determining materdiality, the board has regard, amang
other things, o the matters detailed in paragraph & of the
Board Charter. The board acknowledges that Mr Humpheey
has been a director for twenty one years. However, given
the completa change of the Group's management znd
re-compasition of the board ten years ago, the board
considers that there is no objective or subjective reason

to baligve that Mr Humphreys penod of board service in
any way would intertara with his ability to act in the best
interests of the Company and accordingly that Mr Humphrey
is an independent directon The board acknowladges that
fdr de Mys iz & non-independant director by virtue of hiz
association with a substantial shareholder, the IMC Group.
The board acknowledges that its composition was rot
whaolly in comapliance with Recammaendation 2.7 (which
raciuires that a majority of the hoard be composed of
independent directors) for the full year with 3 directors not
considerad independant up until Cr Nimma's resignation
an 18 Mavember 2010, However, the board considers that
there iz no objective or subjective reason to believe that this
perod of non-compliance impeded the ability of the board
to act in the best interests af the Company. Following Dr
Mimma's resignation, the Company was in full compliance
with Recommandation 2,7 far the remainder of the yaar.

In the event of a tied vote, the casting vote rests with
the Chairman, Mr Ainsworth, who is a nor-axecutive
independent director, [Recommendation 2.2}
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

Board composition

In the peried 1 July 2010 to the date of this report, the
board comprized of five non-executive directors, and one
exacutive director. The role of Chairman and CEO are
pertarmad by ditterent individuals. (Recommendstion 2.3}

Details of the members of the board, their skills, experience,
expertise, qualifications and term of office are set cut in the
Directors’ Report.

Remuneratien and Momination Committesa

The board has established a Remuneration and Momination
Committee. (Recommendation 2.4)

The Remuneration and Memination Committea consists of
the following non-axecutive independent directors:

E F Ainswarth (Chairman of Committes)
R A Laws

The main responsibilities of the Remuneration and
Momination Committee in respect of the composition of the
beard ara to:

8 assess the skills and competencies required on the board;

m from time to time assess the extent to which the reguired
skills are reprasented on the board,

® establish processes for the review of the pedemarce of
individual directors and the board 2= a3 whole;

m establish orocesses for the identification of suitable
candidates for appointment to the board; and

m recommend the appointmert and removal of directors.,

Details of attendance at meetings of the Committee during
the financial year are detailed in the Directors” Report.

A copy of the Remunaration and Mominaticn Committee
Charter iz available in the Corporate Governance section of
the Company’s website &t waw horizonoil.com.au.

Performance assessmant

Every two years the chairman conducts a formal discussion
with each of the directors individually to discuss their
performance and ideas for improvement of the cperation

at the board and board Committees. This process was last
performed during 2007, The board reviews the consolidated
wiews, inputs, cornments and deficiencies ariging from tha
formal discussions and identifias ways to improve board and
board committea perfarmance and determine the necessary
implementation plans for such improvement measures.
{Recommendation 2.5)
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PRIMCIPLE 3: PROMOTE ETHICAL AND
RESPONSIBLE DECISION-MAKING

The Campany has a corporate code of conduct ['Code')
that has been fully endarsed by the board and apples

1o all directors and employess. The Code is updated as
nacessary to ensure it reflects the highest standards of
behaviour and professionalism and the practices necessary
1o maintain confidence in the Company's integrity.
{Rzcommendation 3.7)

I surmmary, the Code requires that at all times all Company
personnel must act with the utmost integrity, objectivity and
in compliance with both the letter and spirit of the law and
Company palicies.

The Company's palicy in relation to dealings in the
Company's securities applies to directors, employees and
consultants, Insummary such persons are not permitted

to deal in the Company’s securities during the twenty-eight
day pericd immediately prier to the release of A5 guartery
reports, halfyearly and annual financial results to the market
Any intended transactions must be notified to the chairman
in advance. (Recommendation 3.2

The Code and the Company's Securities Trading Palicy are
discussed with each new employee as part of their induction
training.

The Directors are satisfied that the Group and Company
have complied with its policies an ethiczl standards,
including trading in securities.

The Code and the Securities Trading Palicy are available
in the Corparate Governance section of the Company’s

website at weew horizoncil.cormn au,

PRIMCIPLE 4: SAFEGUARD INTEGRITY IN
FINAMNCIAL REPORTING

Ihe Company recognises the impartance of maintaining
appropriate safequards and independent oversight of its
financial reporting and has & structurs in place to achieve
this. An irmportant part of this strocture is the board's Audit
Committee, (Recommendation 4.1)

The Audit Committes consists of tha following nan-
exacutive indepandent diractors:

J & Humphrey ([Chairman of Committee)
EF Ainswarth
RA& Laws

The qualifications of Audit Committee members and their
attendznce at mastings of the Committee during 2010 are
detailed in the Directors” Report.



CORPORATE GOVERMANCE STATEMENT

In the period 1 July 2010 to the date of this report, the audit
committas comprised of three non-axecutive diractors,

The board consicers that the size and compaosition of the
Audit Committes is appropriate to enable its effective and
efficient operation having regard to the size of the board
and the relevant qualifications of the members of the Audit
Committee. [Recommendation 4.2]

The Audit Committee has a formal charter that details
its rale and responsibilities, composition, strusture and
membership requirements. (Recommendation 4.3)

& copy of the Audit Committes Charter, including
information on procedures for the selection and
appaintment of the extarnal auditer and for tha retation

of external zudit engagemant partners is avarlable in the
Corporate Governance section of the Company's website at
weere horizongil.com.au,

External auditor

The external auditor attenced all Audit Committes
meatings during the financial year, incduding halding
discussions with the Audit Committee at ezch meeting
without maragement present. The external auditor is
also requested to attend the annual general meeting and
be available to answer sharehalder quastions about the
conduct of the external audit and the preparation and
content of the independant auditor's report,

The Company and Audit Committes policy is to appoirt
an external auditor who clearly demonstrates profassionzl
gualities and independence. The performance of the
exlernal auditen is reviewed annually and applicatzons lor
tender of extarnal audit services would be requested, if
deemed aopropriate, taking nto consideration assessment
of performance, existing value and tender costs,

The Company's policy is to rotate audit engagement
partnars at lsast every five years.

An analysis of feas paid ta the external auditors, including
a breakdown of fees for non-audit services, is provided in
naote 31 to the fnandal statements. It is the policy of the
external auditor to provide an annual declaration of its
independence to the Audit Committes.

PRINCIPLES 5 AND é&: MAKE TIMELY AND
BALANCED DISCLOSURE AND RESPECT THE
RIGHTS OF SHAREHOLDERS

The Company has wrtten policies and procedures an
information disclosure that focus on continuous disclosure
of ary information concerning the Company and its
subsicliaries that a reasonable person would espact to

have & materal effect on the price of the Company's
securities. These policies and procedurss also include

the arrangements the Company has in place to promats
communication with sharehalders and encourzge effective
participation at annual general meetings. (Recommendation
5.1 and 6.7)

The Disclosure Committee consists of the following
Directors:

E F Airsworth (Chairman of Committees)
B [ Emmett

The Cemmittee’s role includes responsibility for ensuring
compliance with the continuous disclasura raquirements of
both the Corparations Act 2007 and ASX Listing Rules and
overseeing and co-ordinating information disclosure to ASX,
analysts, brokers, shareholders, the media and the public.

The Chairman, CEOQ, Company Secretary and Assistant
Company Secretary have been nominatad as persons
responsible for communications waith the ASK. This role
includes responsibility for ensuring compliance with the
continuous disclesurs requirerrents in the ASX Listing Pules
and nversesing and co-ordinating information disclosure to
the ASX, analysts, brokers, shareholders, the media and the
public.

Al information disclosed to the ASK is posted on the
Company's weksite a5 soon as it is releasad by the AT,
YWhen presentations on aspects of the Group's operations
are made, the materal used in the presertation is released
to the ASX. Procedures have also been establichad for
reviewing whether any price sensitive information has been
inagvertently disclesad, and if so, this information is also
immediately raleased to the markes.

The Company seeks to provide oppartun ties for
shareholders Lo partuipate through electronic means. The
website alsa includes a feedback mechanism and an aption
for sharehalders to register their e-mail address for direct
e-mail updates of Company matters,

The Continuous Disclosure Policy and Shareholder
Cormmunicatians Policy are availabla in the Corporate
Govemance section of the Company’s wehsite at wenw
herizonoil com.au,

PRIMCIPLE 7: RECOGMISE AND MAMNAGE RISK

The beard, through both tha Risk Management and

Audit Commiltess, is responsible for ensuring there arg
adequate policies and procedures in place in ralation to risk
management, compliance 2nd intemal control systems

In summary, the Company's risk management pclicy is
designed to ensure strategic, oparational, environmental,
legal, reputational and financial rsks are identified,
assessed, effectively and efficently monitared and managed
to enable achievement of the Group's business okjectives.
{Recommendation 7.1)

Consideranle impertance is placed on maintaining a strong
internal control environment. There is an arganisational
structure with clearly drawn lines of accountability and
delegation of authority.

Adherence to the corporate code of conduct (refer to
Principle 3) is required at all times and the board actively
promotes a culture af quality and integrity.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

The Company's Risk Maragement Policy and procedural
aperation of the risk management and compliance eystam
is oversaen by the Risk Managemeant Committee which
consists of all directors:

B A Laws (Chairman of Committes)

E F Ainswarth

B D Emmett

J 5 Humphrey

P Mimma resigned 18 Movermber 2000)
G de Mys

A Stock (appointed £ Felbmuany 2011)

The key function of the Committes is to identity and
prioritise risk arsing from business strategies and activities
and ensure that appropriate risk management contrals

are implemented and are effective. The Committes’s
responsibilities also include the Companys internal control
ervironment and ensuring that the Comparny has an
integrated framewaork of irternal compliance and cantrals
based on farmal procedure: and appropnate delegation of
authority and responsibility,

The Committes ensures that appropriate risk management
controls are implemented and effectiva by mesting with
senior executives, at least annually, to review and discuss
the material business risks arising from business strategies
and the zdequacy of the relevant risk management cantrals
in place. This review was conducted during 2111, The

Rizk Managemant Cammittea Chairman (or a calegata)
resparts to the board following each meeting of the Risk
Management Committee, (Recommendaticn 7.2)

The board requires the CEC and Chief Financial Offrcer
('CFC) to provide a declaration in accardarce with
section 2954 of the Corporstions Act 2001, The board
acknowladges that it has received this declaration for
2011 along with writlen assurance from the CEO and CFO
that the declaration iz founded on a sound system of

risk management internal control and that the system is
aperating effectively in all material respects in relation to
financial reporting risks. (Recammendation 7.3)

A copy of the Risk Management Palicy is available in the
Corporate Governance saction of the Company's website at

v horizonoil.com.au,
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PRIMCIPLE 8: REMUNERATE FAIRLY AND
RESPOMSIBLY

The Company has established a Remuneration and
Momination Committes. (Recommendation 81}

The Remuneration and Momination Committee consists of
the following non-executive independent directors:

E F Ainsworth (Chairman of Committee)
R A Laws

Detals of attendance at meetings of the Committee dunng
the financial year are detalled in the Directors’ Report,

The Committea’s role is to advise the beard on
remunaration and incentive policies and practices generally,
and make specific recommeandations an remuneration
packagas and other terms of employment for key
management persennal. This includes reviewing and
making recommendations to the board in respect of

B an execytive remunaration and incentive policy;

® tha remunaration of tha chief exscutive officer and
all senicr management reporting directly to the chief
exscutive officer;

an executive incentive plan;

an aqguity based incentive plar;

the remunaration of non-executive directors;
superannuation arrangements;

gocidental death and disability insurance and other
insurance arrangements;

racruitment, retention, performance measurement and
tarmination policies and procedures for non-executive
direetors, the chief axecutive officer, the company
secretary and all senior manage ment reporting directly to
the chief executive officer; and

m the disclosure of remuneration in Horizon il Limited's
public materials including ASX filings and the anrual

PEEROrT,

The Company clearly distinguishes the structure of non-
axacutive director remureration from that ot executive
remunaration. The Company's pelicy in relation to
remuneration for both executive and non-executive
directors is et out in the Remuneration Report,
{Recommendation 8.2)

Retirement benefits for non-executive directars cansist
anly of statutary superannuation contnbutions. There iz no
separate retirsment banafit plan for non-executive directors,

The Company's Securities Trading Policy prokibits
employees entering into transactions in financial derivatives
fincluding aptions) which limit the economic risk of
participating in urvested entitlements undar aquity based
remunaration schemes.

& copy of the Remuneration and Momination Commities
Charter and the Securities Trading Policy is availabde in the
Corparate Governance section of the Company's website at

v horizonoloom.au,



INDEPENDENT AUDIT REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF HORIZON OIL LIMITED

i

pwc

Independent auditor's repart to the members of
Horizon Oil Limited

Report on the financial report

We have audited the accompanying fingancial report of Horizon Qil Limited {the company), which
comprises the statement of financial position as at 30 June 2011, the statement of comprehensive
income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year endad on that
cate, a summary of significant accounting policies, other explanatory notes and the dirsctors'
declaration for the Horizon Gil Limited Group (the consolidated entity). The consolidated entity
comprises the company and the entities it controlled at the year's end or fram time to ime during
the financial year,

Directors’ responsibility for the fnancial report

The directars of the company are responsible for the preparation of the financial report that gives a
true and fair view in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations Aot
2087 and for such internal control as the directors determing is necessany to gnable the preparation
at the financial report that is tree from materal misstaternent, whather dua to fraud ar armor. In Mote
1{a). the directors also state, in accordance with Accounting Standard AASE 101 Presentafion of
Finahcial Statements, that the financial statements comply with ftertational Financial Reporting
Elandardz.

Avditor's responsiiiy

Chur responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial report based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. These Auditing Standards require that
wa comply with relevant ethical requirements relating fo audit ergagemernts and plan and perform
the audit te vbtain reasonable assurance whether the financial report is free from material
misstatement.

An audit irvolves perfarming procedures to obtain audit evidence about the ameounts and
disclosures in the financial report, The procedures selected depand on the auditor’s judgament,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether due
to fraud or error, 10 making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant
to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial repart in order to design audit
procedures that are sppropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinian on the effectivensss of the entity's internal contral. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall pressntation of the financial report,

1

FPricewaiterhouseCoopers ABN 52 780 433 757
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INDEPEMDENT AUDIT REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF HORIZOMN OIL LIMITED

_B
pwc

Independent auditor’s report to the members of
Harizon Qil Limited (continued)

Cwur procedures include reading the ather information in the Annual Beport to detormine whether it
containg any matarial incongistencies with the financial report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have pbtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basiz for our audit apinions.

Indepenaence

In conducting our audit, wa have complied with the independence requirements of the Corporations
Aot 2001,

Auditor’s opinion

In our opinion:

{a] the financial report of Horizon Oil Limited is in accordance with the Corporgiions Act 2007,
including:
(i) giving a true and fair view of the consolidated entity’s financial position as at 30

June 2011 and of its performance for the year ended an that date; and

(i) complying with Australian Accounting Standards {including the Australian
Accounting Interpratations) anc the Caorparations Heguiations 2001, and

)] the financial report and notes also comply with International Financial Reporting Standards
as disclosaed in Mate 1{a).

Report on the Remuneration Report

We have audited tha remunaration report included in pages 24 to 32 of the directors’ report for the
year ended 30 June 2011, The directors of the company are respongible for the preparation and
prasentation of the remuneration repart in accordance with section 3004 of the Corparaticns Aot
2007, Our responsibility is 1o exXpress an apinien on the remuneration report, based on our audit
conducted in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards.

Auditar'’s apinion

In our opinion, the remuneration report of Horizon Sil Limited for the year ended 30 June 2011,
complies with section 3004 of the Corporations Act 2007,

PricewaternouseCoopers

.

—_—

Brett Delaneay
Partner 25 August 2011
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DIRECTOR'S DECLARATION

In the directors’ opinion:

{a) the financial statemants and notes ara in accordance with the Corparations Act 2007 including:

i} complying with Australian Accounting Standards, the Corporatiaons Bequlations 2007 and other mandato
ying g T ol y
professional reporting requirements; and

i) giving a true and fair view of the consolidated entity’s financial position as at 30 June 2011 and of its performance
for the firancial yaar anded an that date; and

(k) thers are reasonable grounds to balieve that the Company will be able to pay its debis as and when they become due
and payable; and

(¢} the remuneration disclosures set out on pages 24 to 33 of the Directors’ Report comply with Australian Accounting
Standard AAGLE 124 Related Party Disclosures and the Corporations Regulations 2001

Mata 1 confirms that the financial statemants also comply with Intarmational Financial Reporting. Standards as issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board

The directors have been given the declarations by the Chiefl Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer required by
Section 295A of the Corporations Act 2001,

This declaration is made in accordancs with a resolution of the directars.

/Qf}fﬂh-‘lﬂ"ft

E F Ainsworth as
Chairman

B D Emmatt
Chief Exacutive Officer

Sydnay
25 August 2011
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STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

Consolidated
Mote 2011 2010
USE000 LS$000
Ravenue from continuing operations a] 59,362 47 91
Cost of sales ] {19,422) {15,015}
Gross profit / (loss) 39,740 32974
Profit from sale of assata 5 22,000 32,586
Other income & A64 157
(General and administrative expanzes ; (7,232) (5,48}
Exploration and development expensas [255) 1158
Financing costs (2.817) (3,202)
Unrealsed movement in value of convertible bond conversion rights (3,351) .
Cther expenses [&69) 1278
Profit / {loss) before income tax expense 45,480 56,653
MEZ rovalty tax (expense) £ benefit Ba (6,680) 2579
lncome tax fespense) / bunefit 8l l6,864) 827
Profit / {loss) fram continuing operations 34,934 52347
Profit/ (loes} fom discontinued operations fretoftax i __@
Profit / (loss! for the financial year 34,934 52345
Cther comprehensiva income
Changes in the fair value of cash flow hedges 24 54 132
Total comprehensive income for the year 34,970 52477
Profit / (loss) attributable to members of Horizan Ol Limited 34,936 52,345
Total comprehensive income attributable to members of 34,970 22477
Horizon il Limited
Eamings per share far profit fram continuing operations attributahbls to Us Cents LIS Cants
the ardinary eguity halders of the company:
Basic earnings per ordinary share 433 309 4t
Diluted earmings per ordinary share S A 308 o 6D
Eamings per share for profit atirioutable to the ordinary equity holders US Cents LS Canits
of tha company:
Basic earnings per ordinary share 43a .09 4 A
Giluted eamings per ardinary share 420 3.08 4.63

Thee above Statements ol Comorehensive Income should be read in conjunction with the accampanying notes.
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STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT 30 JUNE 2011

Consolidated
Mote 2011 2010
S5000 USH000

Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 10 44,572 24 505
Receivables 11 2272 3,520
Invertories 12 2,293 3,272
Other 13 280 25
Total Current Assets &9.417 33,550
Mon-Currant Assets
Deferred tax assats 14 13.803 4,325
Flart and equipment 15 1,268 Ll
Exploration phase expenditure [ 63,488 44,710
il and gas assets 17 145,504 88,138
Total Mon-Current Assets 224,063 138,07%
Total Assels 293,480 171,629
Current Liabilities
Payables 18 18,7113 7026
Derivative financial instruments 1% - 54
Current tax pavable 7,944 1,085
Borrawings 20 5,709 20,553
Tatal Current Liabilities 32 566 28718
Meon-Current Liabilities
Fayzhbles 21 1,037 451
Deferrad tax liakility 3 14,396 31145
Borrowings 20 64,328 12,240
Oither financial liabilities 2 23,394 -
Frowvisions ol 5,208 4810
letal Mon-Current Liabilities 108, 363 28,044
Total Liabilities 140,929 57,264
Met Azsets 152,551 114,345
Equity
Contributed equity i 125,976 125,328
Resarves 2ha 6,603 4,003
Retained profits / (accumulated losses) 260 19,970 114, 5656)
Total Equity 152,551 114,345

The above Statements of Financial Position should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

Haorizen Qil Annual Report 2011



STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

Consolidated

Attributable to members of Harizon Oil Limited

Contributed Rezerves Retained Total Minority  Total Equity
eouity profits / Interast
{accurmulated
losses)
US$'000 LJSE000 LISS D00 Us$'000 US$'000 US$ 000
Balance at 1 July 2009 124,21/ 2999 64,3715 0,605 - GG
Profit / {loss) for the yaar - 52,345 52,345 - 52,345
Cash flow hedges 132 - 132 - 132
Total comprehensive income . 13 52345 52 477 52 477
far the year
Transactions with owners
in their capacity as equity
hobders:
Contributions of equity, net of 411 & 411 411
transacton costs
Employee share options - 572 - arz - a7z
411 872 - 1,783 - 1,783
Balance at 30 June 2010 125,328 4,003 {14,%464] 114,385 - 114,345
Balance at 1 July 2010 125,328 4,003 {14,944 114,355 2 114,365
Prfit £ (loss) for the year - - 34,934 34,936 - 34,934
Cash flow hedges - 24 - o4 - a4
Total comprenensive income 2 54 94938 34,990 : 12990
for the year
Transactions with owners
in their capacity a5 equity
holders:
Contributions of equity, nat of fat] - - fit] - fat)
transactson costs
Employee share Dased - 784 - 7584 - 784
payments
Share options - 1,764 - 1,764 - 1,764
: 648 2,348 3196 3%
Balance at 30 June 2011 125,976 &,605 19,970 152,551 - 152,551

The abowe Statements of Changes in Equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

Consolidated
Mote 2011 2010
S5000 USH000
Cash flows from operating activities
Receipts from customers 59275 a7 BT
Payments to suppliers and employees 110845 (10,56
48,430 37308
Interast recaived 50 43
Interast paid 12,073 (2,531}
Income taxes paid (4,729 (1,209
Met cash inflow from cperating activities 41 41,678 a3.2n
Cash flows from investing activities
Fayments for exploration phase expenditune {34.522) (10L551)
Fayments for oil and gas assets {41,401) 7 762
Fayments for plant and equipment 1BaG) {345)
Met proceeds on sale of exploration phase expenditure 22,000 29088
Met cash [outflow] / inflow from investing activities {54,587 11,310
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from share ssues a14 300
Fayment of share issue expenses - (55)
Froceeds from issue of corvertible bonds Inet of transaction costs) 77,604 -
Repayment of borrawings 127,297 128.773)
Met cash inflaw / (outflow) frem financirg activities 50,923 (23,5.23].
Met increase / {decrease) in cash held 8,012 15,993
Cash at the beginning of the financial year 26,509 10,000
Effects of exchange rate changes on cash and cash eguivalents held in 51 516
fareign currancies
Cash at the end of the financial year &d 572 26,509
Finance leases 3]
Mon-cash finaneing and investing activities a2

The above Staterments of Cash Flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes,
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

MNote 1. Summary Of Significant Accounting Policies

A summary of the significant accounting pelicies adopted

in the preparation of the financial statements are sat out
below. These policies have been consistently 2pplied,
unless otherwise stated, The financial statements are for the
consolidated entity consisting of Horizon Oil Limited and its
subsicdiaries.

The nature of the operations and principal activities for the
Group are described in the Directors” Report.

{a) Basis of preparation

These general purpose financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with Australian Accourting
Stancards, other authoritative pronouncements of the
Australian Accounting Standards Board, Urgent Issues
Group Interpretations and the Corporations Act 2007,

The financial report has been prepared or a gaing coneern
kasis. The carrying values of non-current assats disclosad

in these financial staterments zre predicated on the Group's
pursuit of its strateqy in respect of these assets, Following
the decision to develop the Group’s intarest in Block 22/12
Ching, it is expacted that, in addition to forecast intemally
generated cash flow, additional capital, composed of debt
and, if necessary, equity will ba required. The Group has
cemmenced discussions with financiers to chtain 2dditional
et financing for this purpose. Should the full amount

of the foreeast internally generated cash flow and capital
required to pursua the strategy not be raised and the Group
adopt a modified strategy invalving the rationalisation of
any nan-current assets, while there is inherent uncertainty;
the Directars consider that itis unlikely that the carrying
values of non-current assets would exceed the realisable
value of such azsets in an orderly sales process and so no
adjustment has been mads te their carrying values,

Compliance with IFRS

The consolidated financial statements of Horizan Qil Limited
also comaly with Intemational Financial Reporting Standards
"IFRS as issued by the International Accounting Standards
Board [|ASE').

Historical cost convention

These financial statements have been prepared undar the
historical cost corvention, as modified by the revaluation
of available-for-sala finarcial assets, firancial assets

and liabilities {including dervative instruments) at fair
walue through profit or less, certain dasses of plant and
aquipment and investment property,

Critical accounting estimatas

The preparation of financial statements requires the use

of cartain critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgement in the process

of applying the Group's accounting policies. The areas
invalving a highar degree of judgment or complexity, or
areas where assumptions and estimates are significant 1o the
financial statements, are disclesed in Mote 3.

Horizon Cil Annual Repart 2011

{b) Principles of consolidation

Subsidiaries

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the assets
and liabilities of all subsidiaries of Horizon Ol Limited {the
‘Company” or ‘Parent Entity’) as at 30 Juna 2011 and the
results of all subsidiaries for the financial year then ended.
Horizon Ol Limited and s subsidianes together are referred
1o in these financial staternents as the Group,

Subsidharies are those entities including special purpose
antities) over which the Group has the power to govern the
financial and cperating policies, generally accompanying

a shareholding of meore than one-half of the voting rights.
The existence and effect of potential voting rights that are
currently exercizable or convertibla are considered whan
assessing whether the Group controls another entity,

Subsidiarias are fully consolidated from the date on
which contral is transferred to the Group. They are de-
consolidated from the date that control ceases.

The acquisition method of accounting s used to account

for business combinations by the Group (refer 1o Mote

1), Intercampany transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between Group companies are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are zlso eliminated unless the
transaction providas avidence of the impairment of the asset
transfarred, Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Group.

Irvestments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost in the
individual financizl statements of Horizon Oil Limited. These
investrrents may have subsequently been written down to
their recoverable amount determined by reference to the
net assets of the subsidiaries as at 30 June sach financizl
year where this is less than cost

The Group does not designate any investments in
subsidiaries a5 being subject to the requirements of
Australian Accounting Standarcs specifically applicable

to financial instruments, There is no present intertion to
dispose of such irvestments. They are held for stratagic and
nat trading purposes.

Joint venture operations

The proporticnate interests in the assets, liabilities and
expanses of joint venture aperations have been incorporated
in the financial staterents under the appropriate headings,
Details of major joirt venture interests and the sum of the
Group's intarasts in joint venture operation assets and
lizhilities are set aut in Motz 30

Whers part of a joint venture oparation interest is farmed
aul in consideration of the fanmines underlaking to incur
further axpenditure on behalf of both the farminees and

the antity in the joint venture operation area of interast,
exploration expanditure incurred and caried forwand

prior to farmout continues to be carred forwand without
adjustment, unless tha tarms of the farmout are excessive
based on the dilutad irterest retzined. An rmpairment
provision is then made to reduce exploration expenditure to
its estimated recoverable amount, Any cash received



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

in consideration for farming cut part of a joint venture
operation interest i recognisad in tha statermant of
comprehensive income,

(c) Crude pil and gas inventory and materials
in inventory

Crude oil and gas inventories, produced but not sobd, are
valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value, Caost
comprises a relevant proportion of all fixed and variable
production, overhead, resteration and amortisation
expenses and is determined on an average cost basis.

Stocks of materials inventany, consumable stores and spara
parts are cariad at the lower of cost and net realisable
value, with cost primarily determined on an average cost
baszis.

id) Under / overlift

Crude oil underlifts and overlifts arise on Jdifferances in
quantitias betweer the Group's praduction entiterment and
the production ether sold or held as inventany. Underfifts
and owerlifts of entitlerment to crude oil production are
recorded as & current receivable and current payable
respactively and ars measured at market value with the
coresponding entry ta cost of sales in the statament of
comprehensive income.

i) Operating segment reparting

Oparating segments are reportad in a manner consistant
with the intemal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision maker. The chisf cperating decision maker,

who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments, has been identified
as the Board of Cirectors.

ifl Foreign currency translation

(i Functional and presentation currency

Itermns included in the financial statements of 2ach of the
Group's subsidiaries are measured using tha currency of
the primary economic environment in which the subsidiary
operates (the functioral curency’). The consclidated
financial statements are presented in United Statec dollars,
which is Horizon OHl Limted's turctional and presentation
currency. Harizan Oil Limited has selected US dollars as its
presentation currancy for the following reasons:

(a) a significant portion of Horizon Qil Limited's activity is
denominated in LIS dallars; and

(b it is widely understood by Australian and intemational
investors and analysts.

(i) Transactions and halances

Foreign currency transactions are trznslated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions. Forsign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions
and from the translation at financial year end exchange
rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies ara recognised in the statement of
comprehansive income,

(1) Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group
subsidiaries (mone of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional currency
diffarent from the presentation currency are translated nto
the presentation curmency as Tollows:

® assets and liabilities for each statemnent of finarcial
position presented are translated at the closing rate at
tha date of that statement of financizl position;

® income and axpensas for each staterment of
camprahensive income are translated at average
exchange rates unless this is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates
prevailing on the trarsaction dates, in which case
income and axpensas are translated at the dates of the
transactions); and

m all resulting exchange differences are reccgnised 25 a
separate component of equity,

Oin consolidation, exchange differences arising from the
translation of any net investment in subsidiaries, and of
borrowings and other financial instruments designated as
hedges of such invastments, are taken to equity. When a
fareign operation is sold ar any barrawings forming part of
the nat investment are repaid, a proportionate share of such
exchange diferences are recognised in the staternant of
comprehensive income, as part of the gain or loss on sale
where applicable.

Gondwill and fair value adjustmants arising on the
acquisition of a subsidiary are treated as assets and liabilities
of the subsidiarias and translated at the closing rata,

(g) Revenue recognition

Revarue 15 measurad at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Amounts disclosed as revenua are
riet of returrs, trade allowances and amounts collected an
behalf of third parties,

For product sales, revenue s bought to account when the
product is passed fram the Group's physical contral undar
an enforceable contract, when selling prices are known or
can be reasonably estimated and the products are in a form
that requires ne furthers treatment by the Group,

Interest income is recognized on a time proportion basis
using the eftective intarest method.

[h) Taxation
(i} Income tax

The income tax expense or revenue for the reporting period
is the tax payable on the current pericds taxable incomea
based an the applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction
adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities
attributable to temporary differences between the tax bases
of assets and liakilities and their carrying amownts in the
financial statements, and to unused tax losses.

Haorizen Qil Annual Report 2011



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of
the tax laws enacted or substantially enacted at the and of
the reporting period in the countries whare the Company'’s
subsidiaries operate ard generate taxable income, It
estzblishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of
amounts expacted to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax is provided in tull, using the liability
method, on emporary differences arising bevween the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carryirg amaurnts in
the financial statements. Deferred income tax is determined
using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted ar
substartially by the end of the reporting period and are
expectad to apply whan the related deferred insame tax
asset is realised or deferred income tax liability is settlad.

Defarmed tax assets are recognised for deductible wemporary
differences and unused tax losses only if it is probable that
tuture taxable amournts will be available to utilize those
tempoarary differences and losses.

Deferred tax liabilities ard assets are not recognised for
temporary differences between the carrying emount and 1ax
bases of investments in subsidiaries where the parent entity
iz able to control the timing of the reversal of the tamporary
differences and it 15 probable that the differences will not
reversa in the foreseeable future.

Current and deferred tax is recagnised in profit or loss,
except to the extent that it relates to items recognisad in
ather comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this
case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive
income ar direcily in equity, respectivaly,

(i) Government royalties

Gowernmeant rovalties are treated as taxatson arrangements
when they are imposed undar Government authaority and
when the caloulation of the amount payable iz derived from
a maasure of profit that falls within the definition of taxable
profit’ for the purpesas of A58 112 Income Taxes. Current
and delered tax is then provided on the same bagis as
described in (i} sbove. Royalty arrangemants that do net
maat the critaria for treatment as a tax ars recagnised on an
accruals basis,

{il Leases

Laases of property, plant and equipment whare the Group
hzs substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are
classified as finance leases (Mote 39). Finance leases are
capitalised at the leasa’s irception at the lower of the fair
value of the leased property and the prasent value of the
minimum lease payments, including any bargain purchase
price where its payment is considered probakle. The
comresponding rental obligatiors, net of finance charges, are
mcluded in borrowings. Each lease paymant is allocated
between the liability and finance cost. The finance cost is
charged to the statement of comprehensive income over
the lease period 20 as to produce a constant perodic rate
of interest on the remaining balance of the lizbility for each
perod. Plant and equipment acquired under financs leases
i depreciated over tha chorter of the aszet's useful life and
the lease tarm.
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Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards
of cwnarship are retainad by the lessor are classified

as operating leases (Note 3%}, Payments made under
operating leases {net of ary incentives received from the
leasor) are charged to the statemant of comprahensive
income an a straight-line basis over the period of the l=ase.

i} Impairment of assets

Aszets are raviewed for impairment whenever avants ar
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
may not be recoverable. An impairment loss 15 recognised
for the amount by which the asset's carying amount
exceads its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is
the higher of an asset's fair valus less costs to s2ll and value
inuse, Forthe purposes of assessing impairment, assets are
grouped at the lowsst levels for which there are separately
identifiable cash inflows which are largaly independent of
the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets (cash-
genarating units’),

ik} Cash and cash equivalents

For presentation puneeses in the statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents includes cash at banks znd on
hznd, deposits held at call with financial institutions, othar
short-term, highly liquid investments with oniginal maturities
of thrae manths or less that are readily convertib e to known
amourits of cash and which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value, and bank overdrafts, Bank
averdrafts are shown within borrowings in current liabilities
in the statement of finandal position,

i} Trade receivables

Trade receivables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequantly measurad at armortised cost, less provision
for doubtful debits. Trade receivables are generally due
for settlement within 30 days from the datz of recognition,
They are included in current assets, except for those

with matunties greater than one year after the end of the
reporting period which are classified as non-current assets.

Collectability of trade receivables is reviewed on an ongoing
basis. Delrts which are known to be uncollectible are wiitten
off. A provision for doubtful recaivables is established when
there is ohjective evidence that the Group will not be able
to collect all amourts due according to the onginal terms of
recaivables. The amount of the provision is the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value
of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the ariginal
effectiva interest rate, The amcunt of the provision is
recognized in the statement of comprehensive income.

Cash flows relating to short-tarm recsivables are not
discounted if the effect of discounting s immaterial.

{m) Business comhbinations

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account for
all purchase combinations which constitute the acquisition
of a business, including business combinations invalving
entities or businassas under common contral, regardless

of whether equity instruments or other assets are scquired.
The consideration transferred for the acquistion of a
subsidiary comprises the lairvalues of the assels translered,
the liakilities incurred and the eguity interasts of the



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

Group. ldertifiable assets acquired and liabilities and
cantingant liabilities assumead in a businass combination are
measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date,
Acquisition related costs are expensed as incurred.

Far purchase combinatiors which do not constitute

the acquisition of a business, the Group identifies and
recognisas the individual identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed. The consideration paid is allocated
te the individual identifiable assets and liabilities on the
basis of their relative fair values at the date of purchase.,
Iransaction costs associated with the acquisition are

a compaonent of the consideration transferrad and are
therefore capitalised.

(nl Exploration phase expenditure

Exploration phase axpenditure in respect of each area

of intarest is accounted for using the successful efforts
mathod of accounting, Tha successful effarts mathod
requires all exploration phase expenditure to be expenzed
in the period it is incurred, except the costs of successful
wells, the costs of acquinng interests in new exploration
assets and pre-development costs where thare is a high
degree of probability that the development will go ahead,
which are capitalised. Costs directly associated with the
drilling of explaration wells are initially capitalised pending
determination of whether potentially economic reserves

of hydrocarbens have been discoverad, Araas of interest
are recagrised at the cash-generating unit level, being the
smallest grouping of assets generating independent cash
flowes which usually iz represented by an individual cil or gas
field.

A5 capitalised axploration phase expenditure is not available
for use, it is not amortised,

Cash flows assaciated with explorstion phase expenditura
[comorising both amounts expensed and amounts
capitalised) are classifisd as investing activities in statements
of cash flows.

When an oil or gas field has been approved for
develoopmeant, the capitzlised exploraticn phase expenditure
is reclassified as oil and gas assets in the statement of
financial pasition. Pricr 1o reclassification, capitzlisad
exploration phase expenditure is assessed for impairment.

Impairment of capitalized exploration phase expenditure
Exploration phase sxpenditure is reviewed for impaimment
annually in zccordance with the reguirements of AASE 4
Exploration for and Evaluation of Mineral Resources. The
carrying value of capitalised exploration phase expenditure
is assessed for impairmant at the asset or cash-generating
unit lavel {which usaally is represented by an exploration
permit or icence) whenevar facts and crcumstances (as
defined in AASE &) suggest that the carrying amount of the
asset may exceed its recoverable amaunt, i any indication
of impairment exists, 2n estimate of the asset’s recoverable
amount i caloulated,

An impairmert loss exists when the carrying amount of
an asset or cash-generating unit exceeds its estmated
recoverable amount. The asset or cash-generating unit is
then written-down to its recoverable amount. Impairment
losses are recognised B8 an expense in statements af
comprehensive income.

Capitalized exploration phase expanditure that sultered
impairmert are testad for possible reversal of the
impairmert loss whenever facts or changes in circumstances
indicate that the impairment may have eversed.

to) Oil and gas assats

(i Development Expenditure

Development expenditure is stated at cost less any
accurnulatad impairment losses. Davalopmaent
expenditure incurad by or on hehalf of the Group is
accumulatad separately for fields in which proven and
probakble hydrocarbon reserves have been identified 1o
the satisfaction of directars. Such expenditure comprizas
direct costs and overhead expenditure incurred which can
be directly awributable to the development phase or is
acouired through the acguisition of a pemmit,

Oince a development decision has baen taken on an ail or
gas field, the carrying amount of the relevant explaration
and evaluation sxpenditure in respect of the relevant area
of interest is aggregated with the relevant development
expenditure.

Development expenditure is reclassified as "production
assets” at the end of the commissioning phase, when

the oil or gas field is capable of operating in the manner
intended by management (that is, when commercial lavels
of producticn are capable of being achieved).

Mo amartisation expensa is recognised in respect of
development expenditure until it is reclassified as a
production asset.

In accordance with Australian Accounting Standand
AASET14 ‘Property, Plant ana Equipment’, revenus fram
saleable ol or gas produced during the devaloprent
phase of an oil or gas field, prior to the commencement of
commercial levels ol production, bas been credited Lo sales
revenua, but an amount based on such reverue has been
charged to oost of sales and credited against development
expenditure capitalised, 50 as to record a zero gross profit
on such production.

Developmant expenditure is tested for impairment in
accordance with the accourting policy set aut in Mote 1(j)

i) Production Assets

When further developrient costs are incurmed in respect of

a production asset after the commencemaent of production,
such expenditure is carrbed lonward as part of the production
asset whan it is probable that additional future economic
benefits associated with the expenditure will flow 1o

the Group. Othanwise such expenditure is classified as
production expense in income statements when incurredl

Production assets are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and any accumulated impaiment losses
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Once commercial levels of production commance,
amertisation is charged usng the unit-of-production
method. The unit-of-preduction mathod results in an
amortisation expense proportional to the depletion of
proven and probable hydrocarbon reserves for field,
Production zszets are smortised by area of interest in the
propartion of actual production far the financal period
io the proven and probable hydrocarbon reserves of the
field. The proven and prebakle hydrocarben reserves figure
is that estimated at the end of the financal period plus
production during the financial pericd.

The cost element of the unit-of-production calculation is
the capitalsed costs incurred to date for the field together
with the estimated/ anticipated future developmeant

costs (stated at current financial pericd-erd unescalated
pricas) of cbtaining access to all the proven and probakle
hydrocarben reserves included in the unit-of-production
calculation.

Froduction 2ssets are tested for impairment in accordancs
with the sccounting palicy sel out in Note ().

{iii) Restoration provision

The estimaled costs of decommissioning and remuoving
an asset and restaring the site are included in the cost of
the asset as at the date the cbligation first artses and 1o
the extent that it is first recognised as a provision, This
restoration asset is suhsequently amaortised on a wnit-of.
production basis,

The coresponding provision, of an amount equivalent to
the restaration asset created, is reviewed at the end of cach
reporting period. The provision is measured at the best
estimate of the present value amount required to settle the
present obligation at the end of the repoerting period based
on curent lagal and ather reguirements and techrology,
discounted where material using market yields at the
balance sheet date on Australian governmant bonds with
terms to maturity and currencies that match, as dosely as
possible, the sstimatad future cash outflows,

Where there is a change in the axpected restoration,
rehakilitztion or decommissioning costs, an adjustment is
recorded against the carnying value of the provision and any
related restoration asset, and the effacts zre recognised in
the statement of comprehensiva income on a praspactive
basis over the remaining life of the oparation.

The unwinding of the effect of discounting on the
restoration provision is included within finance coste in the
statement of comprehensive income.
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liv) Reserves

The estimated reserves include those determined on an
annual basis by Mr Alan Fernie, Manager — Explaration
and Devalopment, Horizon Ol Limitad. Mr Fernia has
thirty six years' relevant experience within the sector. The
reserve eslimates ate delermined by Mr Fernie based on
assumptions, interpretations, ang assessments, These
include assumptions regarding commodity prices, foreign
exchange rates, oparating costs and capital expenditures,
and interpretations of geological and geophysical models
to make assessments of tha gquantity of hydrocarbans and
anticipated recoveries.

ip) Investrments and other financial assets

Intarests in unlisted securities, other than subsidiaries, ars
brought to account at cost and subsequently recorded at
the lower of fair value and recoverzble amount. Dividend
ncome is recognised in the statement of comprahansive
income when raceivable.

Interests in listed securities held tor resale are valued at
market valua,

Subsidiaries are accounted for in the consolidated financial
stataments as set out in Mote 1ib).

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted

in an active market. They arise when the Group provides
monegy, goods ar services directly to a debtar with no
interiticn of sellng the receivable. They are included in
current assets, except for those with maturities greater than
12 manths after the end of the renorting perod which are
classified as nor-current assets. Loans and recejvables are
included in racevables in the statement of financial position.

tg) Plant and equipment

The cost of improvemeants to or on leasehold property is
depreciated over the unexpired period of the lease ar the
astimated useful life of the improvement to the Group,
whichever is shorter,

Depreciation on other assets is calculated using the straighe-
line method to allocate their cost or revalued amounts, nat
of their residual values, cver their estimated useful lives, as
taliows:

- Computer eguipment 3 =4 years
- Fumiture, fittings and equipment 3 - 10 ysars
Leasahald improvernant 10 years

The assats' residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at the end of the reparting penod.

An asset’s canying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amaunt if the asset’s carrying amaount is
greatar than its estimated recoverable amount.

Giains and Insses on disposals are determined by comparing
proceads with carrying amount. These are included in the
statement of comprehensive income.



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

ir} Trade and other payables

These amounts represent liakilities for goods and services
provided to the Group prior to the end of financial year
which are unpaid. Due to their short-term nature thay are
naot discounted. The amounts are unsecured and are usually
paid within 30 days of recognition. They are included in
current liabilities, except for those with maturities greater
than one year after the end of the reporting pericd which
are classified as non-current liabilities,

(s) Derivatives

Cierivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date
a darvativa caontract 1s enterad into and are subsequently
rermeasured to their fair value al each reporting date. The
accounting for subsequert changes in fair value dapends
on whether the derivative is designated as a hadging
instrument, and if 30, the nature of the item being hedged,
The Group designates cartain dervatives as either; {1]
hedges of the fair value of racognized asses or liabilities or
a firm commitmeant ({air value hedge); or (2} hedges of the
cash flows of recognised assets and liabilities and highly
probable forecast transactions [cash flow hedges).

The Group documents at the incaption of the hedging
transaction the ralationship between hedging instruments
and hadged items, as wall 2 it risk management objective
and strateay for undertaking various hedge transactions,
The Group also documents its assessment, both at

hedge inception and on an ongoing basis, of whether the
derivatives that are used in hadging transactions have been
and will continue 1o be highly effective in offsetting changes
in fair values ar cash flows of hedged items.

The fair values of derivative financial instruments used for
hedging purposes are disclosed in Mote 19 Movements in
the hadging rasernve in aquity are shown in Mate 245

(il Fair value hedge

Changes in the fzirvalue of derivatives that are designated
and qualify as fair value hedges are recorded in the
staternent of camprehensive income, tagether with any
changes in the fair value of the hedged asset or liability
that are attributablz to the hedged risk. The gain or loss
relating to the effective portion of interest rate swaps
hedging fixed rate borrowings is recogrised in the
statarmant of comprehensive income within other income
or other expense together with the gain or loss relating to
the ineffective perticn and changes in the fair value of the
hedge fized rate borrowings attributabla te interest rate rigk,

If the hedge no longer mests the criteria for hedge
accounting, the adjustment to the carrying amount of &
hedge iterr for which the effective interest method is used is
amortised to profit or loss over the perod to maturity,

(il Cash flow hedge

The effective partion of changes in the fair value of
derivativas that are designated and qualify as cash flow
hedges is recognisad in equity in the hadging reserve, The
gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion is recognised
immediately in the statement of comprehensive income
within other income or cthear axpensea

Amourts accumulated in equity are recycled in the
staternant of comprehensive income in the perods when
the hadged am will affect prafit er logs (for instance when
the forecast sale that is hedged lakes place). The gain

of lpss relating 1o the effective portion of interest rate
sweps hedging vanabla rate borrowings is recognised in
the statement of comprehensive income within “finance
costs”. The gain or loss relating to the effective partian of
forward foseion exchange contracts hedging export sales

is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income
within “sales'. However, when the foracast transaction that
is hedged results in the recognition of a non-finzncial asset
ifor exarmple, inventory) e a nen-linancial liability, the gains
and losses previously deferred in equity are transferred from
equity and included in the measurement of the initial cost or
carrying amaunt of the ssset or lability.

When a hedging instrument expires or i3 sold or terminated,
orwhen a hedge no longer meets the critera for hedge
accounting, any cumulative gain or logs existing in eguity

at that tima remains in eguity and is recognised when

the forecast ransaclion is ullimalely recognised in the
statemant of comprehensive income.

When a forecast tramsaction is no longer expected to ocour,
the cumulative gain or loss that was reported in equity is
immediately transterred to the statement of comprehensive
Income.

(i) Derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting
Certair derivative instruments do not gualify for hedoe
accounting. Changas in the fair value of any derivative
instrument that does not qualify for hedge accounting ane
recognizad immediately in the statement of comprehensive
income and are included in other income or other expensze.

(t} Borrowings

Borrawings are initially recognised at fair velue, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsseguantly
measured at amortised cast. Any differernce betwsen the
proceeds (net of trarsaction costs) and the redemgation
amount is recognisad in tha staterment of comprehensive
incomea over the peried of the borrowings using the
effective interast method. Fees paid on the establishmant
of loan fadlitios which are not an incremantal cost relating
to the actual drawdown of the facility, are recognised as
prepayments and amortised on a straight line basis over the
term of the facility

The fair valua of the liability portion of a corvertible

bond is determined using a market interest rata for an
equivalent non-convartible band. Thiz amount iz recorded
as a liability on an amartised cost basis until extinguished
on conversion or maturity of the honds. The remainder

of the proceeds is allocated o the conversion option.

This s recognised ard included in shareholders’ equity
when the conversion option meets the equity definition at
inception, Where the conversion option does not meet the
definition of equity, as for corvertiblz bords which include
a cash settlemant option or cormarsion price resats, tha
conversion option is fair valued at inception and recarded
as a finandial liability. The financial liability for the convarsion
option is subseguently remeasured at balance date to fair
value with gains and losses recorded in the statement of
comprehansive income.
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Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right 1o defer settlement of the
liability for at least 12 months after the end of the reparting
period.

(u} Borrowing costs

Borowing costs which includes the costs of aranging

and cbtaining fimancing, incurred for the acquisitian ar
construction of any qualifying asset are capitalised during
the period of time that is required to complate and prepare
the asset for its intended use or sale. Othar borswing costs
are expensed when incurred.

The amount of borowing costs incurred which were
capitalised during the financial year were interest and
associated costs of USSMIL (2010: USENIL) and amortised
borrowing costs of USEMIL (2010: USEMIL,

v Employee benefits

fil WWages and salaries and annual leave

Liakilities for wages and salaries, including non-manetary
benefits, annual leave, related on-costs and accumulating
sick leave sxpected to be sattled within 12 months of
the end of the reporting period are recognised in other
payvables in respect of employess’ services up to the end
of the reporting period and are measured at the amounts
expected 1o be paid when the liabilities are settled. The
liabilities are recognized in other creditors.

(i) Long service leave

The liskility for long servics leave is recognised as a
provision for employee benefits and measured as the
present value of expected future payments to be made in
respect of services provided by employess up to the end of
the raporting period using the projected unit credit mathod,
Consideration iz given to expected future wage and salary
levels, experience of employes departures and periods of
senvice. Expacted future payments are discounted waing
market yields at the end of the reporting period on national
gqovarnment bonds with terms to maturity and currency that
match, a3 closely as possible, the estimated future cash
oLtflaws.

(iii] Share-based payments

Share-based payment compensation benefits are provided
1o employees via the Horizon Qil Leng Term Incentive Plan,
the Haorzon Ol Limited Employee Cpticn Scheme and
Emploves Performance Incentive Plan, Information relating
o these schemes is set cut in Mota 32

The fair value of opticns and share appreciation rights (S4Rs)
granted under tha Harizan Ol Lang Term Incentive Plan,
Harizan Cil Limited Emaloyee Option Scheme z2nd Employes
Performance Incentive Plan are recognised as an employes
share basad payment expenss with a cormesponding increase
in equity. The total amount to be expensed is determined

by reference to the fair value of the options 2nd 5AKs
granted, which includes any markel pedonmance cenditions
but excludes the impact of any service and non-market
pertormance vasting conditions and the impact of any
non-vesting conditiors. Non-market perormance vesting
conditions are included in assumptions about the number of
options and SARs that are expectad to vest.
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The fair value is measured at grant date. The total expense
s racognisad over tha vesting peried, which is the pericd
over which all of the specified vesting conditions are to

ke satisfied. At the end of sach reporting period, the
Group revises its estimates of the number of options and
SARs that are expected to vest based on the nor-market
perormance vesting conditions, It recognises the impact of
the revision to original estimates, if any, in profit or loss, with
a corresponding adjustment to equity.

The fair value at grant date is independently determinead
using a Black-Scholes option pricing model that takes

into account the exercise price, the term of the option or
SAR, the impact of dilution, the share price at grant date
and expected prica volatility of the underlying share, the
expected dividend yield and the risk free interast rate for the
term of the option or SAR.

Ihe Company has elected to retain any amounts ariginally
recognised in the share-based payments resarve, regardless
af whethar the associatad options are exercised, cancellod
ar lapse unexercised.

iw) Contributed equity
Ordinary shares are dassified as equity

Incramental costs directly attributable to the issue of new
ardinary shares or options over unissued ordinary sharas
are shown in share capital as a deduction, net of related
income tax, from the proceeds. Incremental costs directly
attributable 1o the issue of new shares or options far the
acquisition of a business are not included in the cost of the
acquisition as part of the purchase consideration but are
axpensad,

iz} Earnings per share
(i Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share iz caloulated by dividing the profit
attributable to equity holders ot the Company, excluding
any costs of servicing equity other than ordinary shares,

by the weighted average number of ordinary shares
autstanding during the financial year, adjusted for bonus
elements in ordinary shares issued during the financial year.

(i1l Diluted garnings per share

Diluted eamings per share adjusts the figures used in the
determination of basic eamings per share to take inta
account the after income tax effect of interest and other
financirg costs associated with dilutive potential ordinary
shares and the weighted average number of shares assumed
to have bean izsuad for ne consideration in relaticn to
dilutive potential ordinary sharas. Potential ordinary shares
are not considered dilutive whare the Group incurs a loss
par shara as caleulated above.

ty) Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts are recognised as a financisl
liabyility at the time the guarantee is issued. The liabality

i initially measured at fair value znd subsequently at the
higher amaount determinad in accordance with AASE 137
Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets and
the amount initially recognised less cumulative amortisation
where appropriate.
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(z) Goods and Services Tax ("GST")

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the
amount of associated G5T, unless the GST incurred is not
recovarable from the taxation zuthority. In this case itis
recognisad as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or
as part of the expense.

Receivables and payables are stated inclusive of the amount
of G5T receivable or payable. The ret amount of GST
recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation autharity i
included with ather receivables or payables in the statement
ef financial pesition.

Cash flows zre presented on & gross basis, The G5T
romponents of cash fliows arising from investing or financing
activities which are recoverzhle from, or payable 1o the
taxation authority, are presented as operzting cash flow.

{aa)Parent entity financial information

The financial information for the parent entity, Horizon Cil
Limited, disclosad in note 44 has bean prepared on the
sama basis as the consolidatad financial statamants, axcept
as set out below,

(i) Investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint venture
entities

Irvestments in subsidiaries, associatas and joint venture
entities are accounted for at cost in the financial statements
of Horizon Oil Limited. Dividends received from associztes
are recogrised in the parent entity's profit or loes, rather
than being deducted from the carrying amount of these
Invastments.

(i) Financial guarantees

Where the parent entity has provided financial guarantees
in relation to loars and payables of subsidiaries for no
compansation, the fair values of these guarantaes ara
accounted for as cortributions and recognised as part of the
cast of tha investment.

ibk) Rounding of ameounts

The Company is of a kind referred to in Class Order
2100, issued by the Australian Securities and Investmernts
Cormmmssion, relating to the "rounding ol of amounts

in the financial statements, Amounts in the financial
statemants have been rounded off in accordance with that
Class Order ta the nearest thousand dollars, ar in certain
casas, the nearest dollar

lcc) New accounting stancards and UIG
interpratations

Certain new accounting standards and UIG interpretations
have been published that are not mandatary for 30 June
2011 reporting perods. The Group's assessment of the
impact of these new standards and interpretations is set out
below:

(i) AASE 2 Financial Instruments and AASE 2009-11
Amendmants to Australian Accounting Standards arising
fram AASE 9 (effective from 1 January 20131

ANSE 9 Financial Instruments addresses the classification,
meaasurement and derecognition of financial assets and
financial liakiities. The standard is not applicakle until 1
January 2013 but is available for eary adeption, The group
is yet to assess its full impact. However, initial indications are
that it will nat have a material effect an the group's firancial
staternants. The group has not yet decided when 1o adopt
AALE Q,

(i) Revised AASE 124 Related Party Disclosures and AASE
2009-12 Amendments ta Australian Accounting Standards
ieffective from 1 January 2011}

Ir December 2009 the AASE issued a revised AASE 124
Related Party Disclosures. It is effective for accounting
perods beginning on or after 1 January 2011 and must

be applied retrospectively. The amendment remaves

the requirement for government-related entities 1o
discloze details of all tranzactions with the government
and ather government-ralated entities and clarifies and
simplifies the defnition of a related party. The group

will apply the amended standard from 1 July 2011,

Whan tha armendments are applied, the group and the
parant will need to discloze any transactions between its
subsidianies and its associates, Refer to Mote 33 for details
of the transactions which will he included in the revised
disclosures.

(i) AASE 1053 Application of Tiers of Australian
Accounting Standards and AASE 2010-2 Amendrments to
Australian Accounting Standards arising from Reduced
Disclosure Reguirements (effective from 1 July 2013}

O 30 June 2010 the AASE officially introduced a revised
diffarential reparting framewaork in Australia. Under this
framewark, a two-tier differential reporting regime zpplies
to all entities that prepare general purpose financial
staternants. Horizon Ol Limited is listed on the ASX and
is not eligible to adopt the new Australian Accounting
Standards — Reduced Disclosure Requiramants. The two
standards will therefore have no impact on the financial
statements of the entity,

(i) AASE 2010-6 Amendments to Australian Accounting
Standards — Disclosures on Transfers of Financial Assats
leffactive for arnual reporting perieds beginning on or
after 1 July 2011}

Amendments made to AASE 7 Finandal Instruments:
Disclosures in Novermber 2010 intraduce additional
disclosures in respect of risk exposuras arising from
transfarred financial assets, The amendments will affect
particularly entities that sell, factor, securitise, lend or
atherwise transfer financial assets to other parties. Thay are
rot expected to have any significant impact on the group's
disclosures. The group intends to apply the amendment
from 1 July 2011,
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Mote 2. Financial risk managemant

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
mar«et risk (including currency risk, interest rate risk and
commodity price risk); credit risk; and liguidity risk. The
Group's overall risk management program focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise
potential adverse effects on the financial performance of
the Group. The Group wses derivative financial instruments
zuch as interest rate swaps to hadge certain risk exposuras.
Derivativas are exclusively used for hedging purposes, e
nat as trading or other speculative instruments. The Group
wses different methods to measure the different types of risk
towhich it ie exposed. These methods include sersitivity
anatysis in the case of interast rate, foreign exchange and
corrmodity price risks, and aging analysis for cradit risk,

Rizk management is carried out by the finance function
undar policies approved by the board of directors. The
finance function identifies, evaluates and if necaszsary
hedges financial risks in close co-operation with Group
management. The board provides written principles for
ovearall risk management, as well as written policies covering
specific areas, such as mitigating foreign exchange, interest
rate and credit risks, use of derivative financial instruments
and invastment of excess liguidity

The Group has no offbalance sheet financial assets or
lizbilities a5 at the end of the reporting period,

The Group helds the following financial instruments:

Conszolidated
30 June 2011 30 Jure 2070
USS$'000 LI5S 000
Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 64,572 26,509
Receivables 2272 1,520
66,842 T
Financial Liabilities
Payables (currant) 18,713 7026
Crarivativa finarcial instrumants a 54
Current tax payahle 7,944 1,085
Payables (non-currant) 1,037 51
Bormrowings (net of bormowing costs) 70,237 40,473
Cither financial liabilities 23,394 .
121,325 4% 509

(al Market risk

li} Foreign exchange risk

Fareign exchange risk is the nsk that the farr value or future
cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in foreign exchange rates.

Foreign exchange risk arises when future commercial
transactions and recognised financial assets and financial
liabilitias are dancminated in a currency that is not the
Group's functional cumrency,

The Group operates intemationally and is exposed to
foreign exchange risk arising from curency exposures to
pradominately Australian and Mew Zzaland dollars, ard
Papua Mew Guinea Kina.
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The Group manages foreign exchange risk by monitoring
forecast cazh flows in currencies other than US dollars and
ensuring that adequate Australian dollar, Mew Zealand
collar and Papua Mew Guinez Kina cash balances are
maintained.

The objectiva of the Group's foreign excharge risk
management policy is to ensure its financial wability despite
potential penods of unfavourable exchange rates. Ragular
sensitivity analysis is conducted to evaluate the potential
impact of unfavourakble exchange rates on the Groups future
financial position. The results of this evaluation are used to
detarmine the most appropriate nsk mitigation tool to be
used. The Group will hedge when it is desrmed the most
appropriate sk mitigation lool to be used,

Me fareign currency hedging trersactions were antered into
during the current or prior financial year.
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Exposure to foreign exchange risk

The Group’s exposure to foreign exchange risk at the end of each reporting period was as follows:

Group 30 June 2011 A Jure 2000
ALD MNED PGE AL MZD PK
USS000 LISE'000 LSE000 JSE'000 JSE'000 IS5 000
Cash and cash equivalents 387 M2 210 1.854 798 1.034
Receivables e 455 il 1.3%¢ 258 w2
Current Payaoles 2,144 3,595 1% 1,153 2,323 43
Current Tax Fayzble = 7544 e 1,085 i
Man-current Payables 180 - - 203 - -

For the financial year ended and as at 30 June 2011, if the currencias set out in the table below, strengthened or weakened
agzinst the LIS dollar by the percentage showr, with all other variables hald constant, net result for the financiz| year would
lincrease) / decrease and net assets would increass / Idecrease) by

Group Met Result Met Assets Met Razult Met Aszats
20 Mo 20m ano 20 2010 2011 2000

US$000  USED00  USHFO00  USHO00 USH000  UST000  USHO00  USE000

Change in currency’ +10% +10% +10% +10% -10% -10% -10% -10%
Australian dallar impact 450 145 {117 187 (450) [165) [117) (1587}
Mew fealand dollar impact a3 (1,29 (1,114) (235 2,353 1.5 (1,114) i
Fapua Mew Guirea kina impact (26} o 26 108 26 L 26 (108}

1. Thig has been based on the change in the exchange rate against the US dellar in the finarcial years ended 30 June 2011 and 30 June 2010, The
senditivity analysis has besn based on the senstivity rates when repanting foresgn exchange risk stermally 1o cey mansgement pessonnel and
represents managements assessmeant of the possible change in foreign exchange rates based on histone volatility. In management's apinion, the
sensitwity analysis is not fully rapeesentativa of tha inharent foreign rechange risk as the /rd of the mporting parcd erposure does not necessarily

reflact the exposure during the coursz of the finarcial year

(i) Commedity price risk

Commaodity price risk is the risk that the fair value or future
cash flows of a firancial instrument will luctuate because of
change in market commedity prices for crude ail.

The objactive of the Group'’s cammadity price risk
management policy is to ensure its financial viability despite
potential periods of unfavourable prices. Regular sersitivity
analysis i conducted to evaluate the potential impact of
urfavourable prices on the Group’s future financial position.
The results of this evaluation are used to determine the
most appropriale risk mitigation tool © be used. The Group
will hedge when it is deemed the most appropriste risk
mitigation tool to be used or whers required by its financing
arrangements,

As at 30 June 2011 and 30 June 2010 the Group did ot
have any crude oil price hedging in place. No crude ail
price hadging contracts were enterad into during the
curment or pricr financial year,

Farthe financial year ended and as at 30 June 2011, if the
crude oil price rase or fell by the percentage shown, with all
other variables held censtant, the result for the financial year
would fincrease) £ decrease and net assets would increase
[oecrease) by:

Group Met Fesult Mer Assets Met Result Mat Assets
2011 200 20m 200 2011 2010 2011 2010

USE000 LSHO0 USS'000  USETO0  USE000 USEO0NG  USSDO0 LSS0

Change in cruds oil price +70% +10% +10% +10% -1 1R -10R% -10%
Imgact o 2J05 4862 B0 (5709)  4.883) 80

There were no commedity price hedging transactions entered inta during the financial year ended 30 Jure 2071
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

[iii) Imterest rate risk

Interast rate risk is the gk that the fair value of future cash
flowws of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market interast rates,

The Group has no interest-bearing assets considered to
matenally expose the Group's core incoma and/or oparating
cash flows to changes in market interest rates

A 30 June 211, the Group has no intemest-baaring liabilities
considered to materially expose the Groug's core income
and/or operating cash flows to changes in markat interest
rates as 2|l lang term borrowangs, issued zt variable rates,
were fully repaid at 30 June 2011, Allinterest rate swaps
wera settlad as at 30 June 2011,

At 30 Jure 2000, the Group's interest rate risk arises from
long term korrowings, issued at varisble rates, exposing

the Grouo to cash flow interest rate risk. Group policy is to
manage material interest rate exposure, During the relevant
period, the Group fived rates for approximataly 5086 of its
borrowings.

The Group manages its cash flow intarest rate risk by using
floating to fixed interest rate swaps. Such interest rete
swaps have the ecanamic effect of corverting borrawings
from fleating to fied rates. Under the interast rate swaps,
the Group agrees with cther parties to exchangs, at specific
intarvals, the difference between fixed contract rates and
fleating-rate interast amaounts caleulated by refarence to the
agreed noticnal principal amounts,

The Group’s exposure to interest rate risk for tinandal instruments is set out below:

Floating Man- Total Carrying
interast intarest  contractual amaunt
rate Fisad interest rate bearing  cash flows
Tyearor Over1to2 Cwer2tos
less years years
US$'000 UsS$000 Us$'000 US5'000 U55'000 US$000 USE000

2011:

Financial assets

Cash and deposits £2055 . 2517 a4 5T 54 577

Receivables - - 2272 2272 2,272

&2,055 - 4,789 A 844 A6,844

Weighted average interest 001%

rate p.a.

Financial labilities
Trade and other creditars - - 19,829 19,829 19,829

Derivative financial - - - - -

instruments [net)

Current tax payable - - - - 7544 74 7944
Bomowings: kit e L L. - 123703 70237
o - 11155 12308 100,240 21713 151476 78,010

Weighted average interest 10.80% 10.55% 1481%

rate p.a.

Met financizl assets / &2 055 {11,155} {12,308} (100, 2400 (22 GRa) (84 A3 (31,146}

iliabilities)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

Floating Mon- Total Carrying
interest interest  contractual armount
rate Fixed interest rata bearing  cash flows
Tyearor Over1to2 Quer2to5
lerss years years
LIS$'000 LS%'000 S35 000 US5'000 LIS3°000 LIS$°000 LSS 000
20
Financial assets
Cash and deposits 10,177 - - - 16,332 26,509 24,509
Receivables - - - - 3,525 3,525 3520
I 10,177 : : 987 00 30009
Weightes average interest 0.71%
rate p.a
Financial liabilities
Iracke and other craditars - - - - Ll faid T
Derivative financial (10.97%) 10,979 . - - . 54
instrumerts (net]
Current tax payat le - . - - 1,085 1,085 1085
Baorrowings 21,958 5,381 5,867 7.5 - 40,797 40493
1097% 16,360 5,867 7.5M B 742 49,559 49,309
Weighted average interest 1.85% 3.48% 3.19% &.19%
rate p.a.
Mat financial assats /
(lakilitias) (B02) 163500 (5.857) {7,591) 11,095 (1% 525) {1%,280)

As at 3 June 2011, the Group had the following variable rate bomrmowings and interest rate swap cortracts outstanding:

30 June 2011 30 June 2010
Weighted Balance Wiighted Balance

ayerage average

interest rate interast rate
I % p.a. USEC00 %pa. USS'000
Bank loans - - 240 21,937
Interast rate swaps (notional principal amount] - - 1.18 (10979
Mt axposure to cash flow intarest rate risk . 10,978

At 30 June 2011, if the interast rates had been 1.0% p.a. higher ar lower and all other varizhles held constant, the net result
for the financial year would [inorease) £ decrease and net assets as at 30 June 2011 would increase ¢ decrease) by:

Graup
Mot Rasult Met Assets Mat Result Mat Assets
2011 200 2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010
LSE0D00D USHON  USS000 USHEDO0  USH'000 USHO00  Uss000 LSS0a0
Change ininterast rate p.a +1% +1% +1% +1% -1% -1% 1% 1%
Imoact of Assets 3a1 oF 361 97 - {97 - whn
Imoact of Liabilities - 353 - 353 - (330) z 1330
Imoact of Met Assers 3641 (254 381 {256 - 261 = 21
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

{b) Credit risk

Credit risk is managed on a Group basis, Credit risk refers
to the risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual
abligations resulting in financial loes to the Group. Credit
risk arises from cash and cash equivalants, derivative
financial instruments, as well 28 credit exposures to
customers, including outstanding receivables,

It = acknowledged that the Group’s sales of cruda ol are
currently concantrated with a single counterparty; however
the Group has policies in place to ensure that sales of
products and serices are made to customers with an
appropriata credit histony,

Derwvative counterparties and cazh transactions are

lirnited to high credit quality fnancial institutions. Where
commercially practical the Group seeks 1o limit the amount
of cradit exposure to any one finandial institution.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the end of each
reporting penod & the carrying amount of the firancial
assets gs summansad in this note,

The credit quality of financial assets that are reither past
due nor impaired can be assessed by reference to extemal
credit ratings (if available} or to historical information about
counterparty detault rates.

Consclidated
2011 20
N : US$000. Us§000
Cash and cash equivalents
Counterparties with external credit rating (Standard & Poors)
Ay 62,342 24,271
62,342 24,271
Countarparties without external credit rating
Share of joint venture operations cash balances 149 383
Crvarseas financial institutions 1.479 1,853
Cash an hand 2 2
2,230 2,238
Total cash and cash equivalents &4,572 26,509
Recaivables
Counterparties with external cradit rating (Standard & Poors)
A, Sd6 435
BES - 1,541
246 1,976
Counterparties without external credit rating
Share of joint venture operation receivables balances 529 212
Joint verture partners 753 22
Related parties {partly paid ordinary shares) 433 31
Other 1 15
- 1,726 (=D
Total receivables 2,272 3,520

As at 30 June 2017, there wers USENI {30 June 2010 LSENID financial assets that are either past due or impaired,

{c) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in meeting cbligations associatad with financial liabilities.

The Group has palicies in place to manage liguidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves and by contiruously monitanng
forecast and actual cash flows and matching profiles af financial azsets and liabilities.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

Financing arrangements

The Group had access to the following undrawn borrowing facilities as at the end of each reporting period:

Consclidated
30 June 2011 30 June 2010
LIS5'000 JS5000

Floating rate:
Expiring within one year = =
Expiring beyond ane year

Maturities of financial liabilities
An analysis of the Group's financial liability maturities for the current and previous financial year is set out below:

Mon-interast Variable rate Fixed rate Derivatives
bearing inet)
U5 000 USE000 US$'000 LIS5000
2011
Less than & months 27593 - 5,596 -
& = 12 months . . 5,569 -
Between 1 and 2 years - - 12,308 -
Between 2 and 5 years 180 - 100,240 -
Cher 5 years - - - -
Total contractual cash flows 27773 - 123,703 -
Mon-interest Wariable rate Fixed rate Derivatives
bearing inet)
US$ 000 US$000 IS$000 LS5000
2010
Less than & months 8,111 7aM 3,294 29
& =12 months - 8,054 331 13
Between 1and 2 years A48 t, 583 6,755 T
Between 2 and 5 years 203 - 7508
Ower 5 years - - - -
Total contractual cash flows 8,762 21,958 21,400 54
dl Fair value estimation The fair value of other financial liabilities (being financial

auarantess), after factaring in the likelihood that the Parent
Entity would be required to perform under the guarantees
the fair value of the liability, was not considered materizl,

The fair value of financial instruments as at 30 June 2011 is
set aut in the tables under Mate 2{a)ii).

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active

markeats (such as intarest rate swap contracts] was based an
nuoted market prices at the end of each reporting parind. o
The quated market price used for financial assets held by anticipated repayment profile.

the Group was the current bid price.

The fair value of borrowings for disclosure purposes is not
matarially different to their carrying value given the likely

le) Capital rick

The fair value of financial instruments that are net traded The consolidated entity manages its capital to ensure that
in an active market {for example, investments in unlisted entities in the consolidated group will be akle to continue as
subsidiaries] was determined to approximate their carmying a gaing concem while maximising the return to stakeholders
valua. through the optimisation of the debt and equity balances.

The carrying valus of receivables and payables are assumed
to approxirmate their fair values dua to their short-term
nature,
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

MNote 3. Critical accounting estimates
and judgements

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical expenence and other factors, including
expectations of future events that may have a financial
irpact on the Group and that are believed to be reasanable
under the circumstances

{a) Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The Growp makes estimates and assumptions coneerning
the future. Tha resulting accounting estimates will, by
definition, seldam equal the related actual results. The most
sigrificant estimates and assurmptions that have a significant
risk of causing a matarial adjustment to the carying amount
of assets and liabilities relate to:

(i} the recoverability of exploration, development and
production phase expenditure carried forward,

(i) resarve astimatec

(i} provisians for restoration

(ivl share-based paymeants’ and

(v the recoverability of deferred tax assets.

The assumations required to be made in order to assess the
recoverability of exploration, development and production
expenditura cariad forward include the future price of
crude oil, an estimated discount rate and estimates of crude
ol resenes

Reserve estimates reguire interpretation of complex and
judgarmrental geologal and geophysical inodels in order to
rmake an assessmant of the size, shape, dapth and quality
of resarvair, and their anticipated recoverias. The economic,
geological and technical factors used 1o estimate resernves
may change from pericd to period. Changes in reported
FESEMvEs can impact asset camrying values, prevision for
restoration and the recognition of deterred tax assets, dus
to changes in expected future cash flows. Reserves are
integral to amaount of arartisation charged to the statement
of comprehensive income. Reserve estimates are preparad
in accordance with guidelines prepared by the Society of
Petroleun Engineers.

Horizon Cil Annual Repart 2011

Assumptions made in respect of restoration, obligations
include estmates of future costs, timing of required
restoration, rehahilitation and decommissioning and an
estimated discournt rate,

Share-based payment transactions with directors and
employees are messured by reference to the fair value of
the options at the date they were granted. The fair value is
ascertained using the Black-5choles option pricing model
taking into aceount the terrms and canditions upan which
the options were granted, The accounting estimatas and
assumptions relating ta share-based payments would have
no impact on the carrying amounts of assets and liabilites
within the next annual reperting peried but may impact
expense and aguity.

The recoverability of deferred tax assets iz based on the
assumption of centainty with respect to the relevant antity's
ability to ganerate future taxable income.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewsd on
an angaing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised In the reporting perod in which the estimate
is ravised if the revision affects only that period or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both the current and future reparting period,

i) Critical judgements in apglying the Group's
acesunting policies

Mo critical judgements considerad to have a significant risk
aof causing a material adjustment to the carrying amaounts of
the assets and liabsilities within the next financial year were
made during the preparation of this report,



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

Mote 4. Segment information

ia) Description of segments

Oiparating segments are reported in @ manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision maker. The chisf cperating decision maker has
been identified as the board of directors,

The operating segments idertified are broadly based on
the Group's working interest in each individual oil and gas
permit, arranged by developmental phzse. Discrete pra-tax
financal infarmation (including pre-tax aperating prafit

and capilal expenditure on exploration and evaluation
assets and oil and gas assets) for each ail and gas parmit

is prepared and provided to the chief operating dacisicn
maker on a regular basis. In certain circumstances,
individual 2il and gas permits are aggregated into a single
operating segment where the econamic charactaristics and
long term planning and operational cansiderations of the
individual 2il and gas permits are such they are considered
interdependent. The Group has identified five aperating
sRgMents:

Mew Zealand devalopment - the Group is currently
producing cruda oil from the MaariManaia fields, located
afishore Mew Fealand;

Mew Zealand exploration = the Group is currently
involved in the exploration and evaluation of
hydrocarbons in one offshore permit area, FEP 51313;

China exploration and develapment - the Group is
currently involved in the Block 22012 - WZ6-12 and WZ12-
BW ol field development (project FID during 2011} and

in the exploration and evaluation of hydrocarbans within
Block 22/12; and

FMG exploration - the Group s currently invalvad in
the exploration and evaluation of hydrocarbons in twa

nnshore parmit areas, PREL 4 and PRL 21,

“All other segmaents’ include amounts of a corporate nature
nat specifically attributable to an cperating segment,

b} Segment information provided to the chief operating decision maker

Mew fealand Mew fealand China  Papua Mew All other Toral
Development  Exploration  Exploration Guinea segments
and Exploration
Development

2011 USE'000 USE'000 US5'000 Us$000 USE'000 USE000
Segment revenue:
Revenue from axternal 59362 - . - 59362
customers
Profit / [loss) before tax 32,743 223 109y [1,635) {1,855) 29,367
Depreciation and 10,324 - - 108 154 10,626
amortisation
Total segment assets at
30 Jure 2071 7,958 4922 73,338 £1,817 55,435 293,480
Additions to non-currant
assets othar than financial
assets and deferred tax
during th= year ended:

Exploration and 720 Q40 28,821 30,431

evaluation phase

expanditure:

Drevelopment and 1,228 841 - - 2059

production phase

exnpenditure:

Plant znd equipment; - - - 33 52 &85
Tostal pmgymennt sl e ot 44,282 1,494 2213 7,584 85,356 140,929

30 June 2011
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

Mew Zealand New Zealand China Papua Maw All other Total
Development  Esploration  Exploration Guinea segments
Explaration
2010 LS5'000 US5000 LIS D00 US5000 LS5 000 LISS'000
SEQMEnt revenua:
Revenus from axtemal 47,991 . . . . 47 91
Customars
Profit / (loss) before tax 18,624 (15} 3N 28 5.576 24124
Ceoreciation and 12,094 - - 14 e 12,191
amortisation
Total segment assets at
99,607 2,448 19,440 23,780 19,354 171,629
30 June 2010
Additions to non-current
assets other than financial
assets and deferred tax
during the year ended:
Exploration and evaluation - 8,297 1,787 5,037 . 15,123
phass expanditura:
Cevaloprment and 7,804 2 - - . 7804
production phase
expanditure;
Plant and equipment: - - - 508 11 &5
Total segment liabilities at
30 Jun 292{}1 0 52,851 388 1,482 1,058 1,485 57,264
fe) Other segrmeant infarmation

(it Segment reverue
Reveanue from external customers is derived from the sale of crude oil,

Segment revenue reconcilas to total corsolidated revenue as follows:

Consolidated

2011 2n0

LS$000 LSH000

Total segment mevenue 59,362 4799
Rental ircome re £
Interast income 50 93
Presfit fram sale of assets 22,000 32,585
Foraign exchange gain inet) 335 g
Tatal revenue 81,826 80,734

&4 Horizon Cil Annual Repart 2011



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

(i) Segment profit before tax

The chief operating decision maker assesses the performance of operating segments based on a mezasure of profit

before tax.

Segment profit bafore tax reconciles to corselidated profit before tax as follows:

Consclidated
2011 2010
US5°000 IS4000
Total segment profit / (loss) before tax 29,357 24,124
Rental income e i
Interest income 50 73
Profit from sale of assets 22,000 32,585
Unrealisad movement in value of convertible band conversion rights 3,351) -
Foreign exchange (loss] / gain (net) 335 1178
Prefit / lloss) before tax 48,480 56,673
[iil) Segment assets
The amounts provided to the chiefl operating decision maker with respect to total assets are measured in a manner
consistent with that of the financial statermnents.
Reportable sagment assets are equal to consolidated total assets.
(iw) Segment liabilities
The amounts provided to the chiet aperating decision maker with respect to total liabilitias are measured in a manner
cansistent with that of the finarcial statements.
Reportable segment liabilites are aqual to corsolidated total liabilities.
Consalicdated
2011 210
US5"000 ISE'000
Mote 5. Significant iterms
Consideration on sale of assets
Cash recaived 22,000 20,980
Fair value of defarrad consideration - 8.085
22,000 29,065
Met liakdites disposed 6,360
Cost of sale - {2839
Profit from sale of aszets 22,000 32,584

O 14 September 2009, the Group entered into a sale agrearmeant with a subsidiary of Talisman Energy Ine. te disposa of

a 27 05% working interest in PRL 4 and all of the shares in a wholly-owned subsidiary, Horizon Oil iKanau) Limited, Total
consideratien for the transaction amourted to USH60 million, of which the company received USHEE million (US529 million
net of intercomoany loan repayrments and discounting of deferred consideration) in proceeds during the year ended 30
June 2010 including US%30 million cash and US%E million work carry. The remaining U552 millizn was deferred pending
receipt at PNG ministenal consent to the working interest transfers required by the transaction. Due to tha uncertainty at the
time regarding PNG ministerial consent, the deferred consideration was recorded as a contingent asset in the 2010 financial
staternanta, During 2011 the required PNG ministerial aporovals were received ana sccardingly, the USE22 millicn received

during the currant year was booked as revenue.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

Consolidated

2011 200
US$000 USH 000
Mote 6. Revenue
From continuing cperations
Crude oil szles 59,362 47,591
59,342 47 591
Other income
Interest receivaed from unrelated corporations 50 93
Rental income received from unrelated corporations 79 ad
et forsign exchangs gains 335
464 157
Consolidated
201 2010
US5'000 LS5'000
Mote 7, Expenses
Cost of sales
Dlirect production costs 8023 4,138
Inventary adjustrments’ 1,155 {1,352
Amaortisation expense 10,324 12,054
Foyalties 120 133
19,622 15,015
'ncdudes praducton overlift/underlift and inventory adjustments
General and administrative expenses
Employee benefit expense (ret) 5,134 3543
Corporate office expenses including insurance) 1,5%0 1,355
Depreciation expense 302 75
Rental expense relating to operating leases 204 155
7,232 5448
Exploration and development expanses
Exploration expenditure witten off £ expansad 255 158
255 158
Financing costs
Interest and finance charges 2,114 293
Ciscount unwinding on provision for restoration 398 43
_Amortisation of prepaid financing costs E— < I =%
2817 3,202
Unrealised movement in value of convertible bond conversion rights
Unrealised movement in value of convertible bond corversion rights 3,351
3351
Orther expenses
Met foreign exchange losses : 176
Other expenses 69 42
69 218
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

Consolidated
2011 2000
LISF 000 LS5 000
Mote 8, Income tax expense
{a} Mew Zealand royalty
Royalty paid 2302 1,509
Royalty payable H25 653
Origination and reversal of royalty temporary differancas 4,503 43
Total Mew Zealand royalty expenss / [benefit) 4,680 2,317
(b) Income tax expensa
Current tax 7743 1,207
Daferred tax 11.772) 621
Undar / ovar) provided in prior financial years 873 1
Total income tax expense / (banafit) 4,864 1,829
Income tax expanse is attributable 1o:
Profit frorm continuing cperations &,864 1,827
Frofit from discontinued operations - 2
Afggregate incometaxexpernse 6,864 1839
Deferred income tax revenua) / expenses included in income tax expense
L"UT'IIF.J"S&EZ
{Increase] / decrease in deferred tax asset 12,895 [3.072)
Increase / idecrease) in deferred tax liabilities 1123 3713
(1.772) 621
{2) Mumerieal recanciliation of income tax expense to prima facie
tax payable
Profit  {loss) from continuing operations before income tax 48 480 56,693
Frafit £ iloss) from discontinuing operations befora income tax . -
Less: Royalty paid / payable (3.127) [2.562)
45,353 5413
Tax at the Australian tax rate of 30% (20710: 303%) 13,606 16,239
Tax effect of amaunts which are not deductible (takable) in calculating taxable
INCOMe:
Expenditure nat allowed for incoms tax purposes 1.09% 175
Other deductible items - .
Mon-assesszable income 16,600 (% 794)
Other assessable income 5,544 733
13,647 7,353
Effect of overseas tax rates 626 aro
Deferred tax assat not brought to account 231 &5
Freviously unrecognised tax losses now recognised 8,535) [6,225)
Under / {aver) provision in pricr financial years 893 di4
Incame tax expanss  (banafit) & Bfd 1.82%
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

Consolidated
2011 210
LS$000 USH'000
[d} Tax losses
Lnusad tax lossas {and spplicable tax rate) for which no deferrad tax asset has
been recognised:
Herzon Ol Limited — 30% (2010: 30%,; - -
Horizan Qil (USA] Inc, and other L5 entities — 34% (2010; 34%) 10,615 10,607
Harizon Cil International Limited and MNZ entities = 30% (2010: 30%) - .
Hosizon Ol (Papual Limited and other PMNG entities - 45% ¢ 3095 (2010: 45% 7 30%) 57,995 22735
Haorizon Jil (Beibu) Limited and Horzon Ol {Manhai) LLC (formerly Petsec 27,3581 31,878
Petrolaurm LLC) — 25% (2010: 25%)
95,768 55,220
Patential tax banefit at applicable tax rates I .1 21807

* Tant losses of $8,555 000 were recognized as a d=ferred tax 2sset during the year following Final Investment Decision on the Chinz Black 22412 o field
deuslopment. The wilmsation of the losses is now deemed probably with first production Foen the field espected in December 28072

Thie Company has no Australian subsidiaries and therefore it is not subject to the Australian tax consolidation regima.

Mote 9. Discontinued operation Financial information relating to the discontinued
operation far the pariod to the date of cessation is set
i} Description out below.
Current Year - There were no discontinued operations {iil Financial performance and cash flow infarmation

during the current year ; ; :
< d The financial pedormance and cash flow information

Pricr Year - After a significant period without production, prasentad are for the year ended 30 June 2111 and the
and given the Company’s intention not ta incur further period endead 31 March 2010,

capital expenditure an the Bayou Choctaw fields in the

LS, the Company withdrew from the Bayou Chaoctaw

fizlds during hMarch 2010,

Consolidated

2011 2010

IS5 000 LS 000

Revenue 3 1

Expenses = i

{Loes) ¢ prafit bafoms incomea tax 5 :

Income tax expenze - 2}

{Loss) ¢ profit after income tax expense - ()

{Loss) ¢ profit on szle of the oparation before income tax - .
Income tax expense -
{Loss) / prefit on szle of the operation after income tax o

{Loss) / profit from discontinued operation - 2
Mt cash {outflow) from operating activities -
Met cash (outflow) from investing activities -

Met cash {outflow) / inflow from financing activities - i2)

Net (decrease) in cash generated by the segment - (]

(i) Details of the sale of the operation
Consideration— assumption of liabilities by acquirer - -
Carrying amcunt of net assets sald - -
[Loes) ¢ profit on szle bafors income tax
Income tax BHDENEE = -
{Loss) / profit on szle after income tax - -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

Consalidatad

2011 2010
US5'000 LS§ 000

Mote 10, Current assets — Cash and cash equivalents
Cash at bank and an hand &4 570 5724
Dreposits at call reter note {a) below) - 14,194
Restricted cash (refer note [b) below) - &,089
Fetty cash 2 P
&4 572 26,509

Mote: (3l The US dollar and Australian collar deposits bear average floating interest ratas of approximately NIL% pa. (2R0: 07 1% pa)
Mate: () Under the terme of a finance facility (refer vo Note 20, cartain cash belarces aee svailabde to the Group after certain conditions of the

relevant facility agrermen: are satisfied, The rastricted cash balance was held or deposit at average floating rates consistent with those in
note (a) above. There was no restricted cash as at 30 June 311 following repayment of the finance faciliy.

Consolidated
2011 2010
) - ) USS' 000 LS3000
Mate 11, Current assets — Recewvables
Receivable — Deferred consideration from szle of assets - A28
Other receivables refer te note (&) below) 2272 2,852
2.272 3,520

Motea)  Of this balanee US$32 345 SN0 US$330,68) related to armounts receivable from related parties. Hefer to MNote 33 fer lurther details,

Mo receivable amounts were past due.

Consolidated
2011 2010
o i USS 000 LIS§ 000
Mote 'IE In'.rer'.tori-es
Crudea ail, at cost 242 540
Drilling inventory, at cost 2,051 2712
2,293 3,272
Consalidated
20m 2010
LSS 000 LISS'000
Mote 13. Current assets - Other
Frepayments 280 249
280 249
Assats Liabilities Met asset
2011 2010 201 2010 2011 2010

US5'000 JSE000  USE000 USH0O0  USE000 USET00
Mote 14. Non-current assets — Deferred tax assets
Recognised deterred tax assats and
lrabilities are attributable to the following:

Frepaid borrowing costs - - 1144) (1,159} {166) 1,159
Fravisions 778 fE - - ] Aoz
Tax losses 13,171 4783 - - 13,171 4,783
Taw assets / {liabilities) 13,969 5,485 1168) 11,159 13,303 4,324
Set off 11448) {1,159 146 1,15% = 2
Met tax assets 13,803 4,326 o e 13,803 4,324
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

Mote 15. Mon-current assets = Plant and eguipment

Consolidated
Chther plant and Leasehald
equipment improvamaents Total
S LSS 000 LISS000 LS5000
As at 1 July 2009
Cost 347 rf A25
Aceurnulated depraciation [281) (43} (324)
Net bock amount_ Ll 235 301
Financial year ended 30 June 2010
Opening net book amount [.% 235 301
Addiions a4 85 499
Cisposals . - -
Depreciation expense 167 i28] (93)
Closing net book amount 413 22 05
As at 30 June 2010
Cost 961 3 1,324
Arcumulated depraciation (348) (71 (419
Mat book amaount 413 i 905
Financial year ended 30 June 2011
Oipaning net book amaunt a1l oy M5
Additions 390 275 a45
Dispogals . - -
Deprecialion expeanse (248} (24 {302)
Closing net book amount 755 513 1.268
As at 30 June 2011
Cost 1,20 H3E 1,839
Accurnulated depreciation (846 25 57
Met book amount 795 313 1,268
Mote 146, Non-current assets — Exploration phase expenditure
Consolidatad
20m 0
USS'000 LJS5'000
Exploration phase expenditure
Ceferrad geclogical, geophysical, diilling and other exgloration and evaluation &3,488 44,710
expenditure, including directly attributable general administrative costs
The reconciliation of exploration phase expenditure carried forward above
is as follows:
Balance at baginning of finarcial year 44,710 34,548
Expenditure incurred during financial year 30,481 15,123
Translered 1o development phase (23,774) -
Intra-group transfer of exploration expenditure = i
Acquisitions! (disposals) during the year 12,073 14,567)
Expenditure written off during financial year - -
Balance at and of financial vaar £3,488 44710
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

Mote 17. Nan-current assets — Oil & gas assets

Consolidated
2011 2010

s US$'000 US§/000
Praduction phase axpenditure
Praducing oil and gas property acquisition, deferred gaolagical, seismic 81,498 75,851
and drillirg, praduction and distrioution facilities and other develapmant
axpenditure
Leased production phase zsset 27,2946 27,298
Less accumulated amortisation (25,332) {15,009)

83,452 &e,138

The reconciliation of developmant and production phase expenditure carriad forward above is follows:

Consalidated
Developmant  Production phase Total
ohase expenditure expenditure
LIS$000 LISE000 LSE 000
Balance at 1 July 2005 - T2 A8 92,428
Expenditure incurred during financial year - 7806 Fale
Recogrition of leased asset - -
Transterred from axploration phase - - -
Amaortisation incurred - {12,096] {12,096)
Expenditure written off during financial year - -
_&pﬁgisitioﬁ_;ar!g d_iﬁ_EEE-f!'S during ﬁnan{:ial_}rear - - -
Balance at 30 June 2010 84,138 858,138
Expenditure incurred during financial year B&1 1,228 2,089
Recognition of leased assat - - -
Transferred from exploration phase 19,356 4420 23,774
Amartisation incured - {10,324 {10,324)
Expenditure written off during financial year - - -
Acquisitions and disposals during financial year 41,825 - 41,825
Balance at 30 June 2011 62,042 83462 145,504
Corsolidated
2011 2010
USE'000 US3'000
Mote 18. Current liakilities - Payables
Trade creditors 10,248 571
Other creditars _Bass 1,305
18,713 7,024
Consolidated
211 2ma
LSS 000 LIS$'000
Mote 19, Current liakilities - Derivative financial instruments
Interast rate swap — cash flow hedges
{refer to (3] below) = 24

The Group is party to derivative financial instrumnents in the normal course of business in order to hedge exposure to interest

rate fluctuations in accordance with the Group's financial risk management policies {refer to Mote 2(a)liiil). All darivative
financial instruments were sattled as at 30 June 2011 as there were no matarial interest rate exposures outstanding.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

{a) Interest rate swap contracts (cash flow hedges)

In 2010, the bank loans of the Group beared a weighted average variable interest rate of LIBOR plus 1.7%% pa. The
Group entered into interest rate swap contracts under which it was obliged to receive interest at variable rates ana to pay
intarast at a weightad average fired rate of 203% poa. Ac 2t 30 June 2011 the notional principal amount was USEMIl (2010:
USH10,978,800). The notional principal amounts and periods of expiry of the interest rate swap contracts are as follows:

Consolidatad
2011 2010
LISE'000 LISS'000
Less than 1 year . 10979
1-2years - -
2~ 3years - -
2 10,979

The contracts raquired settiement of net interest receivable or payable each 30 days. The settlement dates coincided with
the dates an which interest & payabls on the underlying debt. Tha contracts were settied on a net basis.

I'he gain o loss from remeasuring the hedging instruments at fair value is deferred in equity in the hedging reserve, to the
exient that the hedge i effective, and re-classified into the statement of comprehensive ircome when the hedged interast
expenss is recognised, The ineffective portion i recognisad in the statement of comprehenaive income immediately,
During the financial year, USENIl (2010: US3Nil) was transferred to the statement of comprehensive income.

Consolidated
2011 20
Mone LIS$000 USE000
Mote 20, Borrowings
Current:
Bank loans - 15,172
_Lease liability L 2,909 2381
5.90% 20,553
Mon=gurrent:
Bark loans - 6,482
Convartible Bonds 56,737 <
Leasza hiability 34 7,591 13458
& 328 19,940
Total Borrowings 70,237 40,493
Bank loans

Thara were na outstanding bank loans at 30 June 2017, In 2010, bark loans consisted of a project debt facility which was net
of prepaid financing costs of USH304,000. Details of sach are set out below:

Bank |oans — Project debt facilities

A5 at 30 June 2010, the remaining balance of the Maari project debr facility was US$21,257,600. Floating interest in respect
aof the facility was at LIBOR plus & weighted average margin of 1.79% (200100, The facility was due to mature on 31 December
2011, howevear was fully repaid at 30 June 2011,

The facility was secured by 2 floating charge over the shares and assets of tha borower and related entities. The Group was
subject to covenants which are comman tor a facility of this nature.

Lease lakbility
The lease liability is secured by a flaating charge aver the leased asset.
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Convertible Bonds

The parent entity issued 40 5.5% conwvertible bonds for US$80 million on 17 June 2011, The bonds were ssued with an
initial conversion price of LUS$0.52, equivalant to AS0.4% based on exchange rates at the time of pricing, and represents

a corversion pramium of 29% to Horizon Dil's last closing price of A$0.38 on 2 June 2011, The initial conversion prica is
subject to adjustment in certain circumstances. Mo bonds were eligible for corversion at 30 June 2011 as the conversion
period comrmences 41 days lollowing settlerment which aceuried on 17 June 2001, On conversion by the holdes, and subject
to any comnversion price resets, the issuer may elect to sattle the bonds in cash or ordinary shares in the parent entity. Based
on the initial conversicn price, the maximum number of shares that could be issued on conversion is 153 846,154 ardinany
shares in the parant entity The bonds carry a coupon of 3.5% per annum, payable semi-annually in arrears, and carry a 7%
yield to maturity on 17 Juna 2014 when they will ba redeemed at 108.80% of their principal amount. The bends were listed
on the Singapore Securities Exchangs on 20 June 2011,

-CA-ZMHSC!-lltia ted
2011 200
USS'000 LS§000
Face value ol bonds issued 80,000 -
Less: Other financial llabilities - value of conversion rights (Mate 22) (20,043
Less: Transaction costs (3,342) -
55,595
Finance costs! 298 -
Less: Coupon accrued {157) -
Mon-current lizbility 36,736 -
"Finance costs are caleulsted by applying the efective intarst rate of 191.8% to the liability companent.
Consolidatad
2011 2010
USS' 000 LISE 000
Mote 21, Non-current liabilities — Payables
Cther credstors 1,037 451
1.037 &51
201 2010
USE'000 LIS$'0D00
Mote 22. Non-current = Other financial liabilities
Conversion rights on convertible bonds 23,394 -
23,394 -

The amount shown for other financial liabilities is the fair value of the convarsion rights relating to the 5.5% convartible
bonds. The convarsion rights can be settled in cash or ardinary shares of the parent entity, 2t the option ot the issuer,

and the number of shares to be issued at conversion is subject to the conversion price which may reset under certain
circumstarces. Accordingly, the convarsion rights are a derivative finzncial liability and are marked to market, Fair value of
conversion rights at issuance on 17 June 2011 was USE20,043,000, Refer to Mote 20 for further details of the convertible
boncs issued,
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Azsets Liabilities MNet liability
2011 2010 2011 200 2011 2010
US$ 000 LSS 000 LIS$000 LSE 000 LUSE000 LSS 0]
Mote 23, Mon-current lizhilities - Deferred tax lishility
Recognised deferrad tax assets
and liabilities are attributable to
tha following:
Explaration expenditune 47 3,907 4727 3907
Cevelopment and production - - 5,456 q,075 6,454 5075
expenditure
Prepaid borowing costs - - - b - M
Royalty benefit {net) - 1338) 3218 - 3,216 (338)
Previsions (3 * > - i3 :
Tax losses - (5,585) - - - 5, 585)
Tax laszets) ! liabilities (3} (5,923 14,399 3,068 14,394 3145
Set off 3 5523 (3 15,923) " -
MNet tax liabilities BE—1 14,396 3045 14,396 2145
Consalidated
2011 2010
USE'000 LSE 000
Mote 24. Mon-current liabilities = Provisions
Restoration 5,208 4,810
Balance at beginnng of financial year 4810 3,255
Additioral provision during financial year - 1,394
Urwinding of discount 378 159
Balance at end of financial year 5,208 4,810
Consolidated Consolidated
Mete 2011 2010 2011 2010
Mumber of shares
000 ‘000 LSS 000 LISE 000
Mete 25. Contributed equity
(a) Issued share capital
Ordimary shares
Fully paid [k () 1,130,812 1,126,622 125,578 124,599
Partly paid : 1,500 2,000 358 329
1,132,312 1,178,622 125,976 125,328
o) Mowvements in ordinary share capital
(i) Ordinary shares (fully paid)
Diate Details Mumber of shares Issue price LIS5'000
A0/06/2009  Balance as at 30 Juna 2009 1,125 621,515 124,703
IM22009 Exercise of general options* 1,000,000 A50.33 205
30/06/2010__Balance a3 at 30 June 2010 _ 1,126,621 515 124,999
1/0R 2010 Exercise of ernploves options” 1,190,000 AE015 154
102010 Transfer from partly paid sharas 1,000,000 AE015 114
80972010 Exercize of employees options* 1,500,000 AR015 2N
11/04/2011  Transfer from pantly paid shares 500,000 _ASO2S 98
30672011 Balance as at 30 June 2011 1,130,811.515 125,578

* Relates to issue of fully paid ordinary shares on exercss of options issued to corsultants and employees. Information

ralating to Option Schemes is set out in Mote 34.
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(i) Ordinary shares (partly paid to AS0001):

Date Details Mumber lssue price LS5'000
30/06/2007  Balance as at 30 June 2007 1,200,000 214
C30a/2010 Exerose of employes opbons™ 200,000 AR0.27 115
30/06/2010  Balance as at 30 June 2010 2,000,000 329
1R AN0 Transfer to fully paid shares 1,000,000 ASD1S (114)
12M1/2N0  Exercise of employee options™ 500,000 ASD.27 A3
12115200 Exercise of employee options® 500,000 AS0.30 147
11.504/2011 Transfer to fully paid shares (500.000) ALD 25 {78)
30/06/2011  Balance as at 30 June 2011 1,500,000 398

* Relates 1o maue of partly paid ordnary shares on swerc ge of emploves options. Infarmation relaticg te Employes Option Scheme & 2ot out in

Mate 24,
ic) Ordinary shares
Fully paid

Fully paid ordinary shares entitle the halder to participate in dividends and the proceeds on winding up of the Company
in propotion to the number of shares held, Yoting rights are governad by the Company's Constitution. |n summary, on a
show of hands every holder of ordinary shares present at a meeting in person or by proxy is entitled to one vote and upen a

poll sach fully paid ardinary share is antitlad to ona vate.

Partly paid

Partly paic ordinary shares are issued on exercise of employee options, The cutstanding obligation in relation to the partly
paid ordinary shares is pavable either when called or by the date not exceeding 5 years from the grant date of the cption
which gave rise 1o the partly paid codinary share, Partly paid ardinary shares entithe the holder to participate in dwvidends
and the proceeds on winding up of the Company in proportion to the number of shares held. Voting rights are governed
by the Company's Corstitution, In summary, on a show of hands every holder of partly paid crdinary shares present at a
meeting in person or by proxy is entitled 1o one vote and vpon a poll, & entitled to ons vote to the proportion of the total

issue price then paid up.

id) Unlisted options over unissued ordinary shares

Information related to generzl options, the Employes Option Schems and the Employee Performance Incentive Plan,
including details of options issued, exercised and |lapsad during the finandal year and opticns outstanding at the and of the

financial vear is set out in Note 34,

Consolidatad

2011 20

LIS% 000 LS5O0
Mote 26. Reserves and retained profits
{a} Reserves
Share-based paymant resene 4,605 4,057
Mavements:
Balance at beginning of financial year 4,057 3,185
Employes share based payment expense 724 872
Share opticn expense 1,764 -
Balance at end of financial year &4 605 4 057
Hedge reserve T {54
Mavements:
Balance at baginning of financial yaar 154 i188]
Mavement in net market value of hedge contracts Sd 132
Balance at end of financial year - {54]
Total reserves 6,605 4,003
[} Retained profits
Accumulated losses at beginning of financial year (14,968) 7,311
Met Prafit / {lass) for financial year 34,936 52,345
Retained profits / (accumulated losses)
atend of financial yeer 19,570 114,766)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

fc) Mature and purpose of reserves
Share-based payment reserve;

The fair value of options and share appreciztion rights granted to employess results in an increase in eguity upon
recognition of the corresponding employes benefits expense, as described in the accounting policy set out in MNaote 1.
The fair value of general options granted alse results in an increase in equity.

The Company has electad to retain any amounts originally recognised in the share-basad payments reserve, regard|ess of

whether the associated aptions ar share appreciation rights are exercised, cancelled or lapse unaxercised.

Hedge reserve:

Changes in the market value of the effective portion of derivatives is reflected directly in equity until such time as the hadge
i ineffective ar expires, as desaibed in the accounting policy set out in Mote 1{s).

Consalidated
2Mm7 AN
Us$ooo US5'000
Mote 27, Franking credits
Franking credits available for subsaguent finarcial years a4 1

Mote 28. Asset acquisition

fa) Summary of acquisition

Oin 2 Juna 2011, Harizan Oil (Beibu) Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of Horzron Odl Limited, entered into 2 sale and
purchase agreement with Petsec America Pty Limited to acquire 100% of the issued capital of Petsec Petroleum LLC
lsubsequently renamead Hanzon Ol (Manhai) LLC), Haordzon Qil (Manhai) LLC held a 25% intarest in Block 22712, Beibu Guli,
offshare Chinz which includes a 12.25% interest in the WZ24-12/12-8W oil fields development. The acquisition increased
Horizon Qil's ret resenes in Block 2212 from &2 mmbo to 11,3 mmbo. The effective date of acquisiticn was 1 Jznuary 2011,
such that the entity was consclidated frem that date.

Whilst the acquisition imvalvad the purchase of the legal entity Honzan Ol (Manhai) LLC, formerly Petsec Petroleurn LLC,
the substance of the transaction was the acquisition of an aszet, being a 25% interest in Block 2212, As such, in accordance
with the accounting policy described in Maote Tim), the Group identified and recognised the individual identifable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed at the effective acguisition date. The consideration paid was allocated to the individual
identifiable assets and liakilities on the basis of their relative fair values. Transaction costs associated with the acquisition ara
a component of the cansidaration trarsferred.

Details of the purchase consideration and the net assets acquined ane as follows:

USE000
Purchase consideration: ;
Cash pad 40,500
Share options ssued 1,744
Acquisition costs. s
Total purchase consideration 42 370
The assets and liabilitiss recegnised 2s a result of the acquisition are as follows:
Fair Value
USE000
Cash &3
Receivables 44!
Explaration phase axpenditune 1,765
Ol and gas assets - development 41,825
Payables (1,333
Met identifiakle assets acquired 42,570

1 Tha acnuird antity & a participant in the Block 22012 joint vertura aoeration. Tha entity has an irtarest in the assats and liahiltties of this joint
venture aparation. The ontity’s share of 2ssets and lizbilities of the joirt wenture operation at the effoctive acquisition date is included in the assots
and liakifities reoognised on soquizition in sccordance with the accounting policy describeo in Mote 1hRL

The acquired ertity is 2 party to the Block 2212 joint venture cparation, Contingent lizbilities in respect of joint venture
aperations are detziled in Maote 37,

There were no acquisitions in the yaar ended 30 June 2010.
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FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

ib) Purchase consideration = cash outflow

LISE'000

‘Cutflow of cash ta acquire subsidiany, net of cash acquired —
Cash consideration 40,500
Acquisition costs 106
40,606

Less: cash balances acquired 63
Cutllow of cash - investing activities 403,543

MNote 29, Subsidiaries

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the assets, liabdities and results of the following subsidiaries in

accordance with the accounting policy set out in Mote 7(b):

Mame of subsidiary Ceuntry of Fercentage of equity holding and voting Business activities
incarparation interest (all sharas issued are ordinary carried an in
shares)
2011 2010
% %
Herizen Qil International Limited Mew Zealand 100 100 MNew Zealand
Herizen Oil (New Zealand) Limited _ New Zealand 100 100 New Zealand
Hearizan Oil Intarnational Holdings BYI 100 100 BVl
Lirnited
Harizen Cil (Beibu) Limited BYI 100 100 China
Herizen Oil [(China Holdings) Limited _Bvl 100 100 L
Herizen Cil (GZ) Limited BYI 100 100 EYI
Harizen Qil (Papua) Limited Bermuda 100 100 PNG
Herizen Oil USA] Inc. LUSA 100 100 USA
Katu Petroleurn Limited BV 100 EVI
Herizen Cil iManhai) LLC LS4, 100 China

Mote 30. Interest in joint venture operations

Companies in the Group were participants in a number of joint venture operatiors. The Group has an intarest in the assets
and liabilities of these joint venture operations. The Group's snare of assets and liabilities ot the joint venture operations is
included in the corsolidated statement of financial position in accordance with the accounting policy described in Mote 1ib)

under the following classifications:

Consclidated
2011 2010

USE000 USE 000
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 749 1919
Recevables 529 272
Invantories 2,954 212
Total Current Assets 4,232 4,903
Mon-Current Assets
Flant and equipment 538 334
Exploration phase expenditure &2,576 42 484
Development and production phase espaenditure 132,198 65,238
Total Mon-Current Assets 195,312 106,058
Total Assets 199,544 112,961
Current Liahilities
Fayables 6,705 4,335
Total Current Liabilities 6,705 4,336
Mon-Currant Liabilites
Fayzhles 857 448
Total Mon-Current Lia bilities EEL Mﬁ,
Total Liabilities 7,562 4784
Share of nat assets amployed in jaint venture operations 191,982 108177
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Cortingent liabilities in respect of joint venture operations are datailed in Note 37,

Explaration expenditure commitmerts and development axpenditure in respect of joirt venture oparations are detailed in

Maote 40

The Group had an interest in the following jeint verture operaticns:

| Permit or licence Principal activities Interest %) Interest (%)
| 30 Jure 2011 30 June 2070
| New Zealand

| PP 38140 (Maari/Manaia) il and gas production, exploration and 10.00% 10.00%

| development

| PEF 51313 (Matariki] Qil and gas exploration 30,0088 30.00%

| China

| Bleck 22/12 il and gas exploration and development 26.95% § 55% 30.00%

| PN

|PRL4 Qil and gas exploration and developmant 50,008 50,00

| PRL 21 Qil and gas exploration 45,00%* -
|PRLS iJil and qas exploration - 50.00%F

1. China National Offshore O Corporation = entitled to partic pate at up to & 51.00% equity level in any cemmercal develapgment within Bleck 2212,
Diuring the year they exercised their right to paridpats in the development of W2 & 12 and WZ 12 BW within Block 23512 a¢ 51008

2. PG Govt may soponl a state nominea to acquired up to & 22.5% particioating interest in any comrnercial developrert within PRL 4 and PRL 21,
Hl. 21 was granted with effect fram 18 March 2011 for a 5§ vear tarm fellowing the sentlerment of lega! procaadings with the Papua Mew Guinea
Gowarmrment aver the aceage, which was fommerly designated PRL 5.

Consolidated
201 200
LI5% LI5%
Mete 31, Remuneration of extarnal auditors
1, PwiC Australia
Audit and ather assuranca servicas
Audit and review af firancial reparts 141,848 118,458
Cther assurance services
Assurance on corvertible bord issue 80,483
Due dibgance 12,165 -
Accounting advice 5,370 -
Toral remuneration for audit ard ather assurance services 23% 864 118,458
Taration services
Tax compliance 3B 173 17,583
Total remuneratior: for taxation services 38173 17,583
2, Mon-PwC audit firms
Audit and other assurance serices 17,943
Other services - -
Tatal remuneration for audit ard ather assurance services 17,943 -
Total auditors’ remuneration 295,982 136,241

It is the Group's policy to employ PricewaterhouseCoopers on assignments additionz to its statutory external sudit duties
where PricewaterhouseCoopers’ expertize and expariance with the Groun are important. It is the Group's policy to sesk
competitiva tenders tor all major consulting projects.
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FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

Mote 32. Remuneration of key management parsonnel

See the Remuneration Raport within the Directors' Report for details of directors” and other key management ard their

detailed remunaration.

Key management personnel compensation

Consalidated

201 2010

LSS LI5S

Shart-term emalayes benefits 3,127,224 2,086,357
Fost-employment benefits 163,647 138,450
Lang term benefits 44,647 B1,167
Termination benefits . 505,000
Share-bazed payments (non-cash) 581,490 761,589
Total key management personnel remuneration 4,021,008 3572763

Detailad remuneration dizclosures ara provided in sections A-D of the audited Remunaration Report an pages 24 to 33,

ey management personnel shareholdings in the Company

The numbars of shares in the Company held during the financial year by each director of Horizar Gl Limited and other key
management parsornel of the Group, including their parsanally-related entities, are set out below:

[ Received during |

financial year an Other changas
2011 Balance at startof | the exercise of during financial | Balancs at end of
Mame fnancial year options year financial year
| Directors:
| Ordinary sharas
| E F Ainsworth 4,010,375 | - - 4,010,375
| B D Emmet 12,302,507 | 1,500,000 - 73,802,607
I Humphrey 5,112,034 - 5,112,038
R A Laws 779,375 < - 779,375
P Nimmo! 4,032,321 1,125,000 277,266} 7,674,587
G de Nys 361,250 i 367,250
| A Stack - - -
| Other key management personnel of the Group:
| Ordinary shares and partly paid ordinary shares
LA Fernie 2,200,431 - (B50,000) | 1,350,431
| M Sheridan 5,748,201 | 1,000,000 -1 &, 768,201
Recened during ' [
| financial year on Cither charwges
00 Balance at start of the exarcise of during francial Balance at end of
| Mzme financial year options year financial year
Dirnectors:
| Ordinary sharas
| E F Ainswaorth 4,010,375 | | 4,010,375
B D Emmett 7,397,742 % 4,504,865 2302407
J Hurmrphirey 5,112,034 - -1 5,112,034
[BA Laws 179,375 779,375
| F Nimmo!' 4,032,321 | 4,032,321
G de Nys 361,250 -1 367,250
Other key management personnel of the Group:
| Ordinary shares and partly paid ordinary shares
[ Fernie 1,750,000 | - 450,431 | 2,200,431
| M Sheridan 4817, 50| S00,000 450,441 | 568,201

1.P Mimmno acouired 2,717,268 sharas on 18 July 2010 “ollcawing an ownership restrectuna of Oasis Enargy Investments Pty Lid {a Henizea Qil Limatad

sharghclder),
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Key management personnel option holdings in the Company

The nurmbers ef aptions (both listad and unlisted) in the Company hald during the financial year by sach directer of Honzon
il Lirnited and other key maragement personnel of the Group, including their personally-related ertities, are sat out

balow:

Listed options:

all unexercised listed options expired on 28 February 2008 and therefore no listed options wera on issue during the current
or prior financial year.

Unlisted options:
) Granted as [ Crher " Balance | Vestedand |
Balance remuneration | Exercised changes atendof | exercisable
20m at start of during during durirg financial ztand of
Mama financial year | financial year | financial year | financial yaar year financial year | Urvested
Directors:
Unlisted options
E F Ainsworth - - -1 - - - -
E D Ermmett 16,650,000 - (1,500,000 | - 15,153,000 11,350,000 | 3,800,000
:Juln{.umphre:,- — - ! 1 - ! - e -
A Lows =1 I ! <] (... —— | =
P Mimmo 7,295,000 11,125,000 | &,170,000 6,170,000 -
G de Nys 500,000 - | 500,000 186,667 333,333
A Stock g - -1 - =
Cither key management personnel of the Group:
Unlisted options . :
A Farnig 7,450,000 - - £ 450,000 5,950,000 | 1,500400
b Sheridan 7,400,000 - (1.000,000) | 6,400,000 4,900,000 1,500,000
Granted as Cither Balance Vested and
Balance remuneration Exercized changes at and of exercisable
200 at start of during during durirg financial zt end of
MNama financial year | financial year | finansial year | financial year yaar financial year | Urvested
Directors:
Unlisted options
E F &insworth - - - - - -
B D Ermmetl 10,930,000 5,700,000 16,650,000 10,300,000 | 6,350,000
J Hurmpshrey - - - - -
R A Laws - - - - - -
P Nimma 7,295,000 - - 7,205 000 &,805,000 AS0 000
G cle Nysg - 500,000 - 500,000 - 500,000
Cither key management persannel of the Group:
Unlisted options
A Fernia 5,230,000 1,500,000 - 7,450,000 4,600,000 | 2 850,000
M Sheridan &, 400 000 1,500,000 (500,000 | 7,400,000 4,500,000 [ 2 900,000

All vested options are exercisable ot the end of the financial year,

Details of cptions provided as reruneration 2nd ordinary shares issued on the exercise of such options, tegether with terms
and conditions of the options, can be found in section O of the Eemuneration Heport on pages 24 to 33,

Key management persannel share appredation right holdings in the Company

The numbers of share appreciation rights {SARs) held during the financial year by each executive directar of Harizen Qil
Limited and other key management personnel of the Group, including their parsonally-related entities, are set out balow:
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

Share appreciation rights:
HBalance Granted as Cither Vested and
at start of | remunerationr Exercised changes Balance exercisable
2011 financizl dluring uring dluring at end of st end of
Mame year tnancial year | financial year | financial year | financial year | financial year | Urvested
| Executive Directors:
Share appreciation rights
| B D Emmett | 1 2T = 1 27374 -l 2713714
| Other key management personnel of the Group:
| Share appreciation rights s = I
A Fernie 1,790,057 1,990,067 1,990,057
| M Sheridan B 1,990,057 - x 1,990,057 -{ 1,990,057

[Details of 54Hs provided as remuneration and ardinary shares issued on the exercisa of swch 5AHs, together with terms and
conditions of the S4Rs, can be found in section [ of the Remuneration Report on pages 24 1o 33,

Loans to key management personnel

There were no loars to directors or other key management personnel during the financial year,

Other transactions with key management personnel

See Mote 33 for other trarsactions with directors 2nd other key management personnel,

Mote 33. Related parties

Transactions betwsen refated parties are on normal
commercial terms and conditions no more tavourable than
those available to other parties, urless otherwise stated.

Directors and ather key management personne|

Mr J Hurmphrey, a diractar of Harizon O Limited is also a
member of the law firm Mallesons Stephen Jacques, During
the financial year, Mallasons Stephen Jacques provided

legal services to the Group. Total fees paid during the
financial year amounted to USEE43.687 (2010: USE229,382).

Dr P Nimme, 3 director of Horizon Oil Limited is also a
director and shareholder of Hydra Energy Services Pty
Limited. During the financial year, Hydra Enargy Services
Pty Limited provided consulting services to the Group. Total
faes paid during the financial year amounted to US$2,267
(2000 UShas 214,

Disclosures refating to key management personnel are set
cut in Mote 32,

Subsidiaries

Interests in subsidiaries are set out in Note 29.

Diertails in respect of guarantaes provided ta subsidiarias ara
st ot in Mote 44,

Transactions with related parties

Transactions between Horizon Oil Limited and related

parties in the wholly-owned Group during the financial years

ended 30 June 2010 and 2017 consisted of:

{a) Contributions to shara capital by Harizen Oil Limited;

(B Leans advancea by Horizon Cil Limited;

() Leans repaid to Horizon Ol Limited:

() Dividends paid by subsidiaries to Horzon Oil Limited,

(&) Payrments ta Harizan il Lirmited under financial
QUATaNTEe Contract Arrangamants,

(fI Intarest payments to Harizon Ol Limited on loans
advanced to subsidiaries,

(3] Reimbursement of expanses to Horizon Qil Limited; and
(ht Uncalled share capital,

The reimbursemeant of expanzes to Hanzon Oil Limited by
subsidiaries is based on costs rechargad on a relevant time
allacation of consultants and emploveas and associated

office charges.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

The following transactions occurred with related parties:

2011 2010
Uss Uss
Superannuation contributions
Superannuabon cortributions to superannuation funds on behall of employess 138,929 104,501
Other transactions
Dividends paid to Horizon Ol Limited from whaolly cwned subsidiany 19,340,000 -
Payments 1o Harizan Cil Limited under financial guarantee contract 205,618 525,837
arrangemeants from wholly cwned subsidiary
Contributions to share capital in subsidiaries by Horizon Gil Limited £|
Final call on partly paid ordinary shares in Horizon Ol Limited paid by 277 04é -
employesas
Provision for write down / (write back] of investment in subsidiaries by 11,335,925) -
Horizan Oil Limited
Loans toifram related parties
2011 2010
Loans ta other related parties (uncalled share capital)
Balanes at baginning of the finansial year 330,492 209,341
Loans scvanced 378,619 121,351
Loan repayments received (277, 066)
Interest charged/paid - -
Balance at end of financial year ] 432 245 330,692
2011 2010
Uss UsE
Loans from Horizan Qil Limited {ultimate Australian parent entity)
Ralance at heginning of the financial year 84,095 534 87,741,153
Loans advanced 70,934,075 4,444, 756
Loan repayments receved - (7,070,829)
Interest charged 2,911,519 10 BEG 421
Interest paic 15,402,801) (7,000,000
Provision [or fwrile down) £ write back of loans to subsidiaries by . [2,5719,5645)
Harizen Ol Limited
Balanca at end of financial year 152,538,329 84,095 534

Terms and conditions

Transactions relating to dividends, calls on partly paid shares and subscriptions for new ordinary shares wera on the same
terms and conditions that applied to other sharehaolders,

All other transactions were made on normal commercial terms and conditions and at market rates, except that there are
no fised terms for the repayment of loans between the parties, and no interest haz been charged or credited to loans with
other related parties. Certain loans toffrom subsidiaries are subject to interest, however the interest is typically suspendad
until commercial production cammences or a change in the ownership interast of the entity occurs. The average intarest
rale on loans allracting interest during the year was 5.5% {2010: 5.6%) Outstanding balances are unsecored and repayable
in eash,
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

Mote 34. Share-based payments

Set out below is a summary of unlistad options and shara appreciation rights on issue:

Grant date | Explry date | Exercise | Balance I Granted | Exercised [ .fnrf-i;h.'ed‘ Balance ench ';.:'estedam:i |
prica start of during during during of financial | exercisabla
firancial financial financial financizl yRar at end of
year year year | year financial year |
[ B | —— l Number | Mumber ] Mumber | Mumber | Mumber ] Mumber
Consclidated Entity 2011
Share Appreciation Rights issusd
| 2711072010 | 271002015 | miat | 6,693,828 | - -|  se93808] =
Options issued
0170972005 | ON/0%2010 A30.15 2,690,000 | 12,650,000) 2 S -
| 31/08/2006 | 31/08/2011 AS0.33 14,100,000 -1 L 14,100,000 14,100,000 |
| 31082006 | 3140852011 A50.33 6,010,000 | - 010,000 &,070,000 |
| 1007007 | 10002012 | AD.35" 5,973,000 | -l £ 5,973,000 5,#73.000 |
| 031052008 | 03102013 ASO.20 2848000 | {500,0000 | 2,348,000 1,232,000
| D3A0/2008 | 031002013 AR 2T 350,000 -1 - 350,000 233333
| 25062009 | 251002014 | AS0.30 6,675,000 | {500,000] | 6,175,000 1,725,000 |
[ 25672009 | 251072014 | AS0.36° | 850,000 : _sso0o0| 283,333
| D9A0M009 | 0FVEDT4 | A0 3P 2,700,000 2,700,000 900,000 |
[ 12009 | nnzeois | ARLIS 500,000 | - - - 500,000 166,667 |
| 1SRN0 | 16032005 | A3 350,000 350,000
D&MD&E/2011 | 30A0&2014 A0 3T - | 15,000,000 - - 15,000,000 15,000,020 |
[Total 42 636,000 | 15,350,000 (1.690,000)| 54,354000| 454233233
| Weighted average exercise price _ AS031]  ASD37|  AS0.19] AS0.34 A30.34 |

1. Relates to options iswed under the Employes Ferformance Inceqtive Plan.

2. Ralates to general optons issued to third party consullants.

3. Fatates to options issued under the Employes Option Scheme,

4. Mo price is payable by a participant in the: Long Term Incestive Flan on the execise of 2 SAR.

E. Ralates to general optons msoed to Petses Amerca Py Limited as part consideration for the acquisition af Petsee Petralaum LLC (the Petses
5u|.a-5idid|:.l whach held Petsecs mierest in Block 22012, offshose Chinal
Grant date | Expiry date | Exercise Balarce Granted Exercised | Forfzited | Balance end | Vested and

price start of during during during | offinancial | exercissble
financial financial | financial year | financial year at erd of
yaar year yaar financial year
| Mumber Mumber Mumber | Number Mumber Mumbsar
Consalidated Entity 2010

| Options issued
Q10942005 | D9A0RY20N0 | ASDAS' [ 2,690,000 2,490,000 2,490,000
31082006 | 37/08/2011 A%0.33 14,100,000 14,100,000 14,100,000
3082006 | 21082011 | ASDAY &,010,000 - -1 6,010,000 4,010,000
23032007 | 3122000 | AR0.33 1,000,000 - (1,000,000 | -] -
10A0/2007 | 1010/2012 | A$0.35' | 5973,000 q 5973000 3982000
0310/2008 | D3N/ 3 | AS0.27 3,348,000 - (500,000) | 2,848,000 &16,000
03/10/2008 | 031072013 [ ASD27 350,000 - - 350,000 | 114,647
25002008 | 251074 | AS0AD -| 6475000 - 6,675,000 | -
200 | 2500ANd | ASDADR = H50,000 = AL, 0 | S
02009 | RA10rain4g | AB0.327 - 2700000 - 2,700,000 -

| 122007 | 11 127X0n4 | ABD3S - 500,000 - 500,000 | -

| Toad 33,471,000 10,725,000 (1,500,000 A2 656,000 27514 667

| Weighted average exercise price ARO31|  ASD30 AT0.31 | AS0.31 | AR0.3 |

1 Relates to options issued under the Employee Performance Incentive Flan,
2 Relstes to general options issued to thind party consultants.
3, Relates te options ssued undar the Employes Option Scheme
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

The weighted average share price at the date of exercize of
aptions exercised during the year endad 30 June 2011 was
AT0.30 (2010 - A%0.33).

Tha weighted average remaining contractual life of share
aptions outstanding at the end of the period was 1.32 years
(20— 219 yearsl

Long Term Incentive Plan

Until Apnl 2010, long-term incentives were provided to
cartain employees via the Company’s share option plans.
The revisad LTI arrangements approved at the 2010 annual
genaral mesting apply to senior executives and invole the
grant of share appreciation rights which may vest subject
{amongst other things) to the level of total shareholder
return (TSR) achieved in the vesting period, relative to an
appropriate indes.

Under the LTI Plan, the board has the discration, subject to
ASX Listing Rule requirements, to grant share aparaciation
rights {"SARs") to executives as long term incentives. The
board has determired thet 25% of senicr executive’s total
remunaration would be long term incentives in the form of
SARs, with the number of 5AKs granted based on the value
of a SAR.

& SAR is a right to receive either or both a cash payment ar
shares in the Company, as determinad by the board, subject
ta the Company satishing certain conditions, induding
perfomance conditions,

The LTI Plan pravides that the amount of the cash payment
ar the rumbsar of shares in the Company that the participant
receives on exarcise of tha SAR is based an the value of the
SAR at the time it iz axercised ["SAR Value”l. The SAR Valus
is the excess, if any, of the volume weighted average price
("WAP ") of shares in the Company for the ten business
day pericd up to the date before the date the S4H is
exarcised aver the YWAP of shares in the Company for the
ten business day penod up to the day before the "Effective
Allocation Date” for the SARs. The Effective Allocation
Date for the SARs is the grant date of tha SARs or any other
cay determined by the board, 2t the time of the grant, The
Effective allocation Date would generally be the date the
executive’s entitlement was determined.

If the board determines that the SARs are to be =atisfied in
cash, the amount of cash that the participant receives an
the exercise of the SARs is the SAR Value multiplied by the
number of SARs exercised (less any deduction for taxes that
the Company is required to make frem the payment), If the
board determines that the S4Rs are tao be satisfied in shares,
the number of shares that the participant receives on the
exarcise of the SARs is the SAR Value divided by the valume
weighted average price of shares in the Company for the
ten business day period up 1o the day before the day the
SARs are exemcisad, Where the number of shares calculated
5 not a whole number, it will be roundad down to the
nearest whole number,

Mo orice is payable by a participant in the Long Term
Incentive Plan on the exercise of a SAR.
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Employee Option Scheme

The issue of securities under the Employes Option
Scheme was approved by sharehalders for the purposes
of ASX Listing Rules at the 2008 annual ganeral mesting.
The schems is open to permanent full time or part tims
employees of the Compary. Executive directors and the
Company's senior executives wers eligible 1o participate
until April 2010, when the hoard resclved to modify the
remunaration arrangements for the Company's senior
enacutives.

Tha maximum rumber of ordinary shares in respect of
which options may be sseed pursuant 1o the Employes
COption Scheme, together with the number of partly paid
ardinary shares on Ssue pursuant to any other employes
chare scheme of the Company, must not exceed 5% of the
number of ordinary shares in the Company on ssue from
time to time.

Each option entitles the employes to subscribe for one
share ir the Company and each option expires 5 yaars fram
the date of issue. For aptions issued prior to 30 June 2006,
hzlf of the tatal number of options issued to an employes
may be exercisad at any time after issue and half may

b exercised 2t any time after the expiration of one year
following the date of issue. Cptions granted frorm 1 July
2006 are progressively axercisable in three equal tranches
from dates which are 12, 24 andg 34 months after grant date.
Upon exercise of the option, only one cent of the exercise
price will be payable, with the balance being paid at the
expiration of the period which is 5 years from the date of the
meue of the optons.

The exercise price will be the greater of:

tal The price determined by directors but will not be less
than the weighted average sale price per share of all
sale prices at which fully paid ordinary shares ars sold on
ASK during the period of 5 business days ending on the
business day prior to the date of the directors’ meating at
which tha diractars resolved to grant the optior; and

(B1 20 cents par option.

The option exercise prices are subject to adjustment in
cartain circumstances in ling with ASK Listing Rule 622 2.

Employee Performarnce Incentive Plan

In April 2010, the board resclved to modify the remunaration
arrangements such that no new options are intended to

ke issued undar the Company's Employes Performance
Incentive Plan,

Prior 1o Apeil 2010, employees, including executive directors,
were eligible to participate in the Employee Perfarmance
Incentive Plan. The issus of securities under the Employee
Ferformance Incentive Flan was approved by shareholders
for the purposes of ASX Listing Rules 2L the 2009 annual
genaral meating.



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

The numbar of options granted under the Employes
Farformance Incentive Plan was subject to the performance
of relevant employees, Eligitle employees wene required
to achieve at least 30% of agreed annual performance
abjsctives before options would be granted. The number
of options granted was equal to the percentage of
performance objective achievement multiplied by the
rmasdmurm nurnber of options able to be granted. The
maxirmum number of options able to be granted to an
amployes in 2ry financial year was A0% of the tatzl numbes
of options granted to the relevant emgloyes under the
Company's employee share scheme.

Options granted under tha Emaloyes Parformance Incentive
Plan are subject to the following restrictions on exercise:

m Options are not exercisable unless and until the five
day voluma average weighted price of the Campany's
ardinary shares equals or exceeds a share prica “hurdle”
in excess of the exercise price detarminad by the board
at the date of grant of the options. Until such time,
all options otherwise exercisable are not able to be
exercised; and

m Subject to the Companys share price exceading the
hurdle, options granted ars progressivaly exercisable in
three equal tranches from dates which are 12, 4 and 36
maonths aftar grant date.

Options/share appreciation rights issued

During the finandal year, the company issued 350,000
options under the Employes Option Schema. The exercise
price of thase options is AF0.31 par option with a share

price hurdle of A30 38 to be achieved bafore the options ara
exarcisable. The assessed fair value at grant date of thaze
oplions was 4501260 per option,

15,000,000 general options ware izsued to Petsec America
Pty Limited as part considaration for the acquisition of
Petsac Patradeurr LLZ {the Petsec subsidiary which held
Petsec's intarast in Block 22/12, offshora Chira)l. The exercise
price of thase options is A$0.37 par sption with no vesting
conditions. The assessed fair valu at grant date of these
opticns was A0, 1095 per option,

6,453,828 share appreciation rights were issued urder the
Lorg Term Incentive Plan. The exercize orice of thase SARs
is A%0.3106 with performance burdles to ba achieved prior
to exercise. The independently assessed fair value at grant
date of these share appreciation rights was A50.1382 per
SAR,

The fair value at grant date is independently detarminad
using a Black-Scholes option pricing model that takas into
account the exercise price, the term of the option/SAaR,
the impact of dilution, the share price at grant date and
expectad volatility of the underlying share, the epectad
dividend yield and the risk free interast rate for the term of
the opticn/SAR.

The model inputs for the grant of employes options during
the financial year andead 30 Jure 2011 ircludad:

| Grant date 16 September 2010
| Expiry date 14 September 2015
Exarcise price A50.3
| Share price at grant date | A%0.30 |
Exoected price volatility 42.5% p.a, |
| Risk free rate 483% pa.
| Expectad dividend yield 0.00% poa.

The model inputs for the grant of general options during
the financial year ended 30 June 2011 included:

[Grant date Tédune 2011 ]
Expiry date 30 Jure 2014

| Exarcise price AR03T7
Share price at grant date A%0.35

| Expected price volatility 40.6% pa.

| Rigk free rate 4.924% p.a.
Expeacted dividend yield Q00% p.a.

The model inputs for the grant of share appreciation righta
during the finarcial year ended 30 June 20711 included:

Grant date 1 Cetober 2000 |
"Es-:p iry clate 1 Dctu:.:-ber 205 .
| Exercise price A0
| Share price at grant date A%0.31

Expactent price volatility 43.4% p.a.

Rizk free rate 0% pa.

j Expacted dividend yield : Q.00% ﬁ.a.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

Expenses arising from share-based payment transactions

Total expenses arising rom share-based payment trarsactions recognised during the financial year as part of employes
benefits expanse in the statement of comprehensive income ware as follows:

Consolidated

201 2010

US5'000 USE'000
Share Appreciation Rights issued undar:
Lang Term Incentive Plan 242
Options issuad under;
Emploves Option Scheme 190 252
Employes Partormance Incentve Flan 352 &l
Total employes share based payment expenss 784 are

Options/SARs in respect of which expiry dates were modified during the financial year
Mo options/SARs were modified during the financial year.

Options/SARs exercised during the financial year

During the financial year 3,670,000 options were exercised, 2,690,000 of the options exercised during the year were for
employees, such that the company issued a coresponding number of fully paid ordinary shares. The remaining 1,000,000
aptions exercisad during the year were for employees, such that the company issued a corresponding number of ardinary
shares, partly paid to A30.01 in accordance with the Employee Performance Incentive Plan.

Mo SARs were exercised during the financial year

Cptions/54Rs lapsing or cancelled during the financial year

During the financial year, no options or 5ARs lapsed or were cancellad.

Options/ 5ARs exercised and options/SARs issued subsequent to 30 June 2011

No options have been issued or exercised subsequent to financial year and

On 5 August 2017, &,4/8 278 share appreciation rights were grarted under the Long Term Incentive Plan, OF the §,4/8,276

SARs granted, 2,424,328 are proposed to be issued 10 an executive director and are thersfore granted subject o
shareholder approval at the 2017 annual general meeting.

Mo 5ARs have been exercsed subsequant to financial year end.

Consolidated
2011 2010
LIS$000 LUSE000
Mote 35, Employee entitlements
Employes entitlernent liabilities are included within:
Current — other creditors (Mote 18) 492 250
Man-current - other creditors (Mot 27) 180 203
Murmnber

2011 2010
Employee numbers
Awerage number of employees during financial year 10 g
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

Mote 346, Contingent assets
Thera were o contingent assats as at 30 June 2011

The Group had the following contingent assets as at 30
Jurniz 2010 that subsequertly became receivable and were
received during the current year following the receipt of
ministarial consent to tha working interest transfers:

O 14 Sepremiber 2009, the Group entered into a sale
agrzement with a subsidiary of Talisman Energy Inc. to
dispose of a 22.05% working interest in PRL 4 and all of the
shares in a whally-owned subsidiary, Hordzon il (Kanau)
Limited. Total consideration for the transaction amounted
to US5a0 million, of which the company received UIS338
million {US529 million net of intercompany loan recayments
and dizcounting of deferred consideration) in procesds
during the year ended 30 June 2010 including U530 million
cash and LUS$E million work carny The remaining LSEZZ
millicn was deferrad pending receipt of PNG ministerial
consant ta the working interest transfers required by

the tranzaction. Due to the uncartainty regarding FMNG
miristerial consent, the delered consideration was recorded
as a contirgent asset in the 2010 financial statemants
Curing 2071 the eauired PRG ministerial approvals werns
received and accordingly, the US$22 million received during
the curmant year was booked as revenus,

MNote 39. Commitments for expenditure

(i Mon-cancellable operating leases

Mote 37. Contingent liabilities

The Group had contingent liabilities as at 30 June 2011 and
30 June 2010 that may becomea payable in respect of:

In accordance with normal oil and gas industry practice,

the Group has entered into joint verture operations and
farm-out agreements with other parties for the purposa of
explaning and developing its permit or licence interests. [f
a participant to a joint venture operation defaults and fails
te contribute its share of joint verture clligations, then the
remaining joint verture participants are jointly and sevarally
liakle to meet the obligations of the defaulting participant,
In this event, the interast in the permit or licenca held by the
defaulting participant may be radistributed to the remaining
participants. In the event of a default, a contingent liability
exists in respect of expenditure commitments due to be
miet by the Group in respect of defaulting joint venlure
participants,

Mo material losses are anticipated in respect of any of the
abova contingent liabilitias.

Mote 38. Events after balance sheet date

Oither than the matters disclosed in this repart, thera has not
besn any matter or circumstance which has arisen since 30
June 2011 that has significantly affected, or may significantly
affect:

® The Croup's operations in future financial years; or
® The results of those eperations in future financial years; or
B The Group's state of affairs in future financial years.

The financial statements were authorised for issue by

the Board of Directors on 25 August 2011, The Board of
Directors has the power to amend and reissue the financial
statemants.

The Group leases various office premizes in Sydney and PMG under non-cancallable operating leases expiring within 3

to 5 years. The leases have varying terms, escalation clauses and renawal rights. On renewal, the terms of the leases are

renagotiatad.

Consalidated

2011 2010
USS' 000 LS3000
Cemmitments for minimum lease payments in relation to non-cancellzhble
operating lezses, not recognised in the financial statements, are payable as
follows:
Within one financial year 625 403
Later than ane financial y=ar but rot later than 5 finandial years 329 498
201

fii} Finance leases

The Group leases plant and equipment with a carrying value of US$24 077 458 under a financs lease expiring within 4 years.
Under the terms of the lease, the Group has the option to acquire the asset at a price anticipated 1o be significantly below

the market value of the asset on expiry of the leass tarm.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

Cansolidated

201 2010
Us$'00a LSF000

Commitrments in relation to finance leases are payable as follows:
Within one financial year 6,755 6,736
Later than ane financial year but not later than 5 financial years 7,908 14,653
Minimurn lease payments 14,663 21,389
Less: Futura finance charges {1,143} (2,550)
Recognized &= a lease liability {refer Mota 20) 13,500 18,839

iy Remuneration commitments

Commitments for the payment of remureration under long-term employment contracts, not recognised in the finzncial
stataments, are payable as follaws:

Consolidated

2011 2010

US$'000 USE000

Within cne financial year 2,104 1,577
Later than onse financial year but not later than 5 financial years &,531 795
8,537 2,372

Mote 40. Exploration and development commitments

The Group has ertered into joint venture operations for the purpose of exploring, developing and producing from certain
patrolaum permits or licences. Ta maintain existing interests or rights to earn interests in thote ventures the Group will
ke axpected to make contributions to ongeing exploration and development programs. Since such programs are subject
to continual raview by oparating committeas, upon which the Group is represented, the extent of future contributions in
accordance with these arangemenis is subject to continual ranagotistion.

Subject to the above mentioned limitations, the directors have prepared the following disclosure of exploration and

devalopment expenditure commitments not recognised in the financial statements. These are payable as follows, based on
current status and knowledge of estimated quantum and timing of such commitmrents by segment

20 Mew Zealand  Mew Zealand Chira  Fagpua Maw Total
Development Exploration  Esplaration & Guinea
Davalopment Explaration
LSS'000 USE000 153000 1155000 LS 000
Within one financial year 1,168 1,274 4% 447 33151 85424
Later than one financial year but not later . 36,341 . 36,34
than 5 financial years
Total 1,168 1,274 85,502 33,521 121,745
2010 Mew Zealand  Mew Zealand China  Papua Mew Total
Development Exploration Exploration Guinea
Exploration
LISE 000 USE000 LIS 000 LS5 000 LS 000
Within one financial year 1,650 37 B&7 15,870 19 424
Later than one financial year but not later - - - . -
than 5 finzncial years
Total 1,650 37 867 14,870 19,424

The above commitments may be defermed or modified with the agreement of the host government, by variations to the
terms of individuz| permits or licences, or extensions to the terms thereof. Anather factor likely to delay timing of these
commitments is the potential lack of availability of suitable drilling rigs in the zrea of interest.

The commitments may also be reduced by the Group entaring into farm-out agreemants or working interast trades, both of
which are typical of the normnal operating activities of the Group.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

In addition to the above commitmants, the Group has invested funds in other exploraticn permits or licences, but is not
exposed to 3 contingent liability in raspact of these, as it may choose to exit such permits or licences at any time at no cost
penalty other than the loss of the parmits or licencas,

If & participant to a joint venture operation defaults and fails to contribute its share of joint venture obligations, the
remaining joint verturs participants are joint and severally liable to meet the obligations of the defaulting participant. In
this event, the interest in the permit or licence held by the defaulting participant may be redistributed to the remaining
participants. In the evant of a detault, a contingent liability exists in respect of expenditure commitments dus to be met by
the Group in respect of defaulting joint venture particpants.

Mate 41. Reconciliation of net cash flows from operating activities ta net profit / {loss)

Consolidated
20m 2010
USS'000 LISE 000
Met profit / (loss) for financial year 34934 52,345
Exploration and development expenditure written off / expensed = g
Depraciation expense anz 25
Maverment in employes entitlement liabilities 100 170
Mon-cash employee share benefit expense 784 &72
Mon-cash share option expense 1.764 .
Arnortisation expense 10,324 17 0%4
Amartisation of prepaid financing costs 446 228
Frovision for restoration 398 159
Frofit on sale of assets (22,000 [32,585)
Unrealized movement in value of convertible bond convarsion rights 3,351 -
Met unrealised foreign currency losses / (gains) {51) 1514)
Change in operating assets and liabilities:
Decrease / (increase) in trade debtors {87] [164)
{Increase) f dacrease in other dabtors and prepayments 44 1207)
{Increasel { decrease in invertory 318 [474)
{Increase) / decrease in deferred tax assets / lisbilities 1,776 554
Increase / {decrease) in Lax payable 6,859 1,085
Increase / (decrease) in trade creditors 1,640 11,055)
{Decrease) ! increase in other craditors [124) 569
Met cash inflaw f {sutflew) from operating activities 41,678 33,211

Consolidated

2011 2010
JSE000 LS% 000

Mote 42, Non-cash financing and investing activities
Camry utilised to fund the Group's share of capital expenditure on PNG licences’ 633 7dar
633 7367

1 Consideration drawn down under the sale to Talisman Energy Inc. of a 50% irterest in FRL 4, FMNG.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

Consclidated
2011 2010
45 cents US cants
Mote 43, Earnings per share
{a) Basic earnings per share
Fram continuing operations attributable to the ordinary equity holders of the 3.09 464
comgany
From discontinuec operation —
Total basic earnings per share antributable ta the ordinary equity holdars of the 3.09 4,6
COMEany
{b} Diluted earnings per shara
Fraom continuing operations attributable to the ordinary equity holders of the 308 4.43
COMpany
IFJ'q‘r'n.t_'I!isc_untinueg operation - - | =
Total dilutad BAMINGS per's-hare attributable to the ardinary e u'ity 3.08 4,63
holders of the company
201 200
Mumbeer Mumber
Weighted average rumber of shares used as the denominator
Weighted average number of ordinary shares used as the denominater in 1,131,448,583 1,127 654,372
calculating basic 2amings per share
Weighted average number of ordinary shares and potential ordinary shares used 1,134,074,862 1,130,031,199
a5 the denominatar in calculating diluted samings per share
20M 200
US§'00a LIS$000
Recanciliation of earmings used in calculating eamings per share
Prafit / (loss) attributable to the ardinary equity holders of the cormpany used in
calculating sarnings per share
Basic eamings per ordinary share:
from continuing operatians 34,934 52,347
fram discontinued oparations - &
34,934 32,3485
Ciluted ezrnings per crdinary share:
from continuing operations 314,934 52347
tram discontinued opearations - {2
34,936 52,3485

Information concerning the classification of securities

{al Partly paid ordinary shares

Partly paid ordinary shares carry the rights of fully paid ordinary shares and to that extent they have been recognised as
ardinary share equivalents in the determination of basic earnings per share,

Detzils regarding the partly paid ordinary shares are set out in Mote 25,

ik} Options and share appreciation rights granted as compensation

Options ard share appreciation rights granted to employees under the Long Term Incentive Plan, Employee Option Scheme
ar Employee Performance Incentive Plan are included in the calculation of diluted eamings per share to the extent to which
they are dilutive. Thay have not been included in tha detarmination of basic eamings per share.

Details regarding the aptiors and share appreciztion rights are et out in Mote 34

el Corvertible bonds

Corvertible bords issued during the year are included in the calculation of diluted earnings per share to the extent to which
they are dilutive from their date of issue. They have not been included in the determination of basic eamings per shara.

Details regarding the corvertible bonds are set out in Note 20 and 22
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Mote 44, Parent entity financial infermation

(M Summary financial infermation

The individual fnandal staterments lor the parent ertity show the lollowing aggregate amounts:

Farent Entity
2011 200
LIS5000 LS$000
Balance sheal
Current assets 49 506 14,413
Total aaseta 210,964 106,443
Current liabilities 4,750 1,081
Total liabilitias 85,353 1,537
Sharehalders’ aquity
Issued capital 125,976 125,328
Share based payments reserne 6,605 4,057
Accumulated losses 16, P68) (24,479
125,613 104,908
Frofit or {loss) for the year 17,511 8,660
Total comprehensive income / {lozs) 17,511 8,860

(ii] Guarantess entered into by the parent entity
The Parent Entity has provided guarantees in respect of leases of the subsidiary participating in the Maari joint ventura
operations amounting to LIS313,300,000 (2010: USH4G, 800,000}

Ma liakility has been recognizsed in zccardance with the accounting policy set out in Mote 1iy). After factaring in the
likalihood that the Parent Entity would be required to perfarm under the guarantees the fair value of the liability was not
considered material,

(i) Contingent liabilities of the parent entity

The parent entity did not have any contingent liabilities as at 30 June 2011 or 30 June 2010, For information akout
guarantees given by the parent entily, please see above,

(i) Cortractual eammitrent for the scquisition of property, plant or equipment

A al 30 June 2011, the parent enlity bad no contractual commitments Tor the acquisition of property, plant or equipment
(30 June 2010 - LISENl),
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SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

Horizon Ol Limited and Controlled Entities
Securities Exchange Information as at 21 September 2011

DISTRIBUTICN OF EQUITY SECURITIES

The distribution of aquity security holders ranked according to size at 21 September 2071 was as follows:

Class of equity security

: i CHEnaG Shepes _ Share appemclation | i esibia hords

| Size of halding Shares Unlisted optiors fights

110 1,000 370 - - 1

1,007 tio 5,000 970 - - -
| 5,007 to 10,000 1,023 - . .
10,001 to 100,000 2,879 g z :

100,001 and over 749 12 3 -
| Tatal 6,031 12 3 1

A total of £74 holdars hald less than a marketable parcel of 2,174 ordinary shares.

TWENTY LARGEST SHAREHOLDERS

The names of the twenty largest shareholders of the Company's ardinary shares are ligted below:

Marre Mo, of ordinary shares % of issued ordinary shares
1 J P Morgan Mominess Australia Limitad 189,926,814 14.80
2 Mational Mominees Limited 158,976,403 14,06
3 Austral-Asia Energy Pty Ltd 129,792,176 11.48
4 Citicorp Nominges Pty Limited 568,553 285 .10
5 HSBC Custody Mominees (Australia) Limited 0,137,222 5.32
& Bond Street Custodians Limited 21,257,443 1.94
¥ Cogent Mominges Pry Limited 21,553,970 1.1
& VLH Pty Ltd 13,802,607 1.22
% Beme Mo 132 Mominess Pty Ltd 12,811,575 1.13
10 RBC Dexia Investor Services Australia Mominees Pty Limited 12,456,364 1.10
11 Mr Douglas Thomas Micholas & Mr Graeme Douglas Nicholas 9505073 .84
12 Macquarie Bank Limited 7952612 .70
13 Hydra Energy Services Py Ltd /B 58 .70
14 Douglas Financial Consultants Pry Ltd 7,500,000 0.49
15 Finot Pry L 7,750,000 0.469
16 Grizeley Holdings Piy Limiled 7.447 248 0.564
17 Mr Angus Douglas & Mrs Susan Jane Douglas 7,300,000 045
18 M David Harvey Peek 5,404,335 (.43
19 Hawkins & Birtkwright Limited 2,300,000 0.47
20 Mr Michaal Sharidan 2,268,201 0.47
Total 761,984 617 &7.38
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SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

ISSUED SECURITIES

lesued securitios as at 21 September 2011:

Eecur;t}-' Mumber on issue  Mumber of holders
Crrdinary fully paid shares' 1,130,811,515 £,031
Ordinary partly paid shares' 1,500,000 1

Unlistec employes options 18,246,000 9

Unlisted general options 14,000,000 3

Linlisted share appreciation rights 13,172,1003 3

2.5% Corvertible bonds of LS$200,000 each? X 1

1 The Company's ardinary fully and partly paid shares are listed on the Austrakan Securities Exchangs

15,000,000 geneal options are hald by Petsac Amarica Pry Limitad

12 £24,338 unlisted share appreciation rights have been issued subject to sharcholders” zpproval at the 2011 Annual General Meeting.

 Tha Company's 5.5% convartible honds am listed an the Singapore Sacurities Exchange, with BT Glabanat Mominess Limited the registemd
halder of the global certificate for 1009% of the bongs.

SUBSTAMTIAL HOLDERS

Substantial holders in the Company are set out below:

Ordinary shares Me, of ardinary % of isswed
shares ordinary shares

Aiggtral-Asia Energy Pty Limited as trustes for Triplex Global Ventures Limitea 129,792,175 11.48

Acom Capital Limited 95,955 758 g.49

Commarnwealth Bank of Australia 70,258,135 6,21

Total 296,006,069 76.18

YOTING RIGHTS

a) Ordinary shares - fully paid

Woling of members is governed by the Company's Constitution. In surmmary, ewery merber present in parson or by prosy
attorney of representative shall have ona vote on a show of hands and one vote for each share on a poll.

b} Ordinary shares - partly paid

Vating of members is govemead by the Company's Constitution, In summarny, every member present in person or by prosy
attorney or rapresentative shall have ona vote on a show of hands and upon a poll, is entitled to one vote to the proportion
of the total issus price then paid up.

c} Options (employes/genaral) - unlisted
Mo voting rights,

d) Share appraciation rights - unlisted
Mea vating rights.

e] 5.5% Convertible bonds
Oine vote for each bond, but limited to matters affecting the rights of such bonds.
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GLOSSARY

A-IFRS Auvstralian equivalents to International Financial Reparting Standards

ASIC Australian Securities and Irvestments Commission

ASK Australian Securities Exchange

bblis) Blue barrel(z), ol barrel volume s 0,157 cubic metres

bt Billicn cubic feet of natural gas

boe Barrel of il equivalent. The factor used to convert gas to oil equivalent is based upan an
approximate energy valus of 6,000 cubic feet per barrel and not price equivalence at the
time

boepd Barrel of oil equivalent per day

bopd Barrel of oil per day inclusive of NGLs

CNOOC China Mational Offshore Oil Corporation

DEC Ceparbment of Environment and Conservation [PNG)

DPE Cepartment of Petroleurn and Energy {PNG)

EBITDAX Eamings before interest, tax, depraciation, depletion and armaortisaticn, and exploration
eXpEnsas

ESP Electrizal submersikle pump

FEED Frent end enginearing and design

FID Final investrmant decision

FPSO Floating production, storage and offloading vessel

GST Goods and services tax

JOA Joint operating agresment

km Kilometres

LIBOR London inter-bank offered rate

LNG Liquified natural gas

mmbhbl/mmbo Million barrals of wil

mmkboe Million kzarrels of oil equivalent

MNGL(s) Matural gas liguidis)

ODF Orverall development plan (Chira)

PDL Petroleun developmert licence

PEP Petroleurmn exploration permit

PMP Petraleur mining permit

PRL Petroleurn retention licerce

Reserves Reserves as included in this report rafers to both proven and probable resarves (2F).
Proven and probable reserves are reserves that analysis of geclogical and enginaering
data suggests are more likely than not to be recoverable - there is at least a 50%
probability that reserves recovered will exceed preven and probable reserves,

Contingent Resources The Company’s technically recoverable proven and probable resources (2C) or its
discovered oil and gas fialds ara classifiad as contingent resources. Thase resourcas
winuld bs expected to be hooked in reservas (proven and probable reserves) once
commerciallsation arrangements have been finalised.

PSA Production Sharing Agreement

PNG Papua Mew Guinea

SDHA, Supplemental Developrment Agreement (China)

UsD / US% United States dollars

WHP Wellhead platform

Wou Waorkower unit

20 Sgismic Seismic recorded in 2 dimeansions

30 Seismic Seismic recordad in 3 dimensions
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-]
NOTICE OF 2011
ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The Annual General Meeting {"AGM") of the members of the Company will

be held at 10.00 am en Trursday 17 Movernber 2011 at Mezzening Level,
Rabinzon / William Room, Bayiew Bouleverd Hotel, 90 Willam Strest, Sydney to
frareact the businass set out telow.

Members should refer 1o the accompanying Bxplanatory Memorandurm for
further information concerning the business 1o be caried out at this meeting.

Business
1 Consideration of reports
To receive and consider the Annual Financial Statements, the Directors” Report

and the independent &udit Report of the Company for the year ended 30 June
2011,

There iz nd requirement for memiers 10 pass a rasolution on these repars.
2 Remuneration Report

To consider and, if thought appropriate, to pass the following as an advisary
ordinary resolution:

“That the Remunerafion Repart for the year ended 30 Juna 2001 (set aut in the
Directors” Repart) be adopted”,
This resalution is advisory only and coes not bind the Company. Further

information in refation o this advisory resolution is set out in the Explanatory
Memarandum attached to this Notice of Mageting.

Voting restriction

N viles iy be cas! on Bhis ilem Gy members of the key manageren
personnel of the Company or Meir chosely relaled parfigs. Howswer & vole may
be past by sich 2 person a8 2 proxy for 2 person who is ankitled fo vale on this
ifemn, appointed by way of a proxy form that directs how ithe proxy is & veta on
the iteim.

3 Election of director — Mr Andrew Stock
To consader and, if hought appropriate, o pass the Tollowing ordinary resolulion:

“Thaat Andretw Stock, & drector holding affice until the 2011 Annual General
Mesting in aocordance with the Company's Constitution, beirg elinibla, is
elacted as a director of the Comgany”,

Further informiation in rektion to this resolution and Mr Stock iz set out in the
Explanatory Memorendum attached o this Motice of Meeting,

4 Approval of issue of 5.50% US$80 million convertible bonds
To consadar and, if thought appropriate, to pass the following ordinany resolution:

“That the issue of the 5.50% USSED million comertible bonds {“Bonds") and the
future issue of ordinary shares to the holders of Bonds in acoordence with the
terms and conditions ol the Bands be approved far &l purposes”

Information in respect of the convertible bonds issued, including a summary
of the key termes and conditions of the converlibile bonds, is sel oul in he
Explanatory Memorendum attached ta this Notice of Mesting,

Voting excliusion statement

In acearoance with e ASY Listing Auwtes, the Comparny will disragard any voles
castin respact of fern 4 by 2 parsan who participated in the issue of Bonas and
any of their associates. However the Company meed nod disregard a vofe Jf i

i5 cast by & person as prowy for & person who @ enfitfled fo wfe, 0 accordance
writhh the clivections o the prosy form, or e person chaing the mesting a5
proxy for @ person wh Js evifitled (e vole, in accordance with @ direciion on the
prowy fora fa vote as the promy decides.

5 Approval of issue of 15 million general options 1o Petsec America Pty
Limited far the purposes of ASX Listing Rules 7.4 and 7.5

To cansicer and, if thought appropriate, to pags the following ordinary resolution:

“That the ssue of 15 milkon options 10 Petsec America Pty Limited as part
consideration for the acquisition of the share capital of Petsec Petroleumn LLC,
& set out In the attached Explanatory Memorandum to this Notice of Meeting,
he approved for all purposes”

A summary af the key tarms and conditions of the options issued and the
purpnss of the ssuance is set out in the Explanatory Memorandum attached o
this Molice of hMesting.

Voting exclusion statement

In acoardancs wilh the ASX Listing rules, the Company willl disregard any
voles castin respect of fem 5 by Petsar Americg Sy Uimited and any of it
associales. Mowever e Company nestd ot disreggnd 8 vale i 11 s cast by
& person a5 proxy foar a person who 5 enfiled to vole, in geoovdance willh the
chirections on ihe proxy fomm.

& Approval of 2011 grant of long term incentives to Mr Brent Emmett,
chief executive officer and executive director

To consicer and, if thought appropriate, 1o pass the follawing as an ordinary
resniution:

“That the grant of sacurities (ncluding share aporeciation rights and shares)
under the Long Term Incentive Flan to Mr Brent Emmett {chisl executive officer
and exacutive director), as set cut in the attached Explanatory Memorandum o
this Motice of Mesting, be approved for all purpossas.”

Voting exciusion statement and voting restriction

In geoomiancs wilh the ASK Listing Rules, ihe Campary wil disragard any

VolEs cast i respect of liem & Dy & afvector of the Company (excenl 8 airestor
vt i fmeniitile fo particiogle it any emporee inceniive schame fn reano io
it Commpany) ard any of el associales. However, Be Company need nol
disregard & vote i it iz cast by a person as proxy for 3 person who is entitied fo
vofe, in accardance with the directions o ihe prosy form, or tha persan chaining
the meehing a5 proxy for 2 persan witd s anfited fo vole, i accardance with a
direction an the proxy farm fo vote as the proxy decides.

In aooarmance wilh the Corpovations Act 2007 (T, & vote must mot be cast

o e 6 by @ member of the kg managermant persananal of ihe ComoEny

ar thelr cigsaly rolaiad partias, aciing as proxy, i Mel apoanimeant does not
specily the way e proxgy 5 00 vole on e B, However, s voling resliclion
does ol agely if the menber of key management persannel is the Chairmen

of the mesting acting a5 proxy and Heir sppoinfmant expressly authorizes the
Chairman of the meshing to exercise the proxy even i ihat ifam & comnactad
directly ar indirechly with the remunerabion of a2 member af e key managemeant
personngl of the Company.



7 Ranewal of approval of lesue of sacurithes under the Employes Option
Scheme for the purposes of 25X Lisfing Rules 7.1 and 7.2

lex arsider and, i ovah L approrials, o gass e olloaing ardiodry resalulon;

"Thal. lhe issue ol aplions auder e Enplbgee Oplion Scheme be gpproved as
an exception fa Listing Aule 7.17.

& sumirmary of the ke tomis and conditiones of the Fmployes: Qption Scheme iz
sAt ot 1 the Feglanarory M emorandum arfachad o this Kotice o Meating.

Valing exchiston statement and vaflng rasivichlmn

07 SECOTENCE Wi e ASK Lising fules, ma Comaoany i giaronand a0y

viales cast i respacr af fam 7 by a directar of ihe Camoan - jesceni & aes o
Wi {2 Imaligibis 0 parhininglc i any cmpinpno incaniier aohoma ir miahon o
iR Dammand and any of M asseceing Hene a0 COmRamy nen mar
afgrond @ eane 6 cast By @ narsan ag prsy fa oo g 82 arntind o
Ve, S AR ancs Wit fhe Jasknng 0 5 sy ST, o e DanssT Chaig
e meanlog a5 arowy F A Do o e eniiied i o, 0 semontanee i g
alvECINT T B ey RN i Lale A5 N0 DY ORCiniEs.

07 SECITECE Wi e Conaonatians At 2000 :ﬂ'.‘],'. a Lo st ol 0g Cast

O i 7 g vt o e ey maragersnd oeenier o U Loy

ar fRe Clasely resled panes, achig as oy f el apociiment 2085 noy
SrEmiy he Wiy Bhe prea s 03 e vals an lam 7 Revsavarn ing voiling resinetion
dnas nob anol i the mompar of Ko manasomont goraannol @ e Shadman

aF o ooy aciing ag ooy 4nd IRn 2pponimon! ceprssly auianscs Mo
Chanman 2 i mooiing fo sxorcizo $i0 crowy oo o aal fom 1B cennoshod
ety irlvisnry A e rmnanaiion of 2 manhar of e Key manatemient
DErsoia of e Conngnk

Swcunding Lo g vesulubizn ol e dieclons,

Jalel G Delober 2007
T
A ffy/f il
7 N —
Michael Sheridan

Jun ety Secielany

DETERMINATION OF ENTITLEMENT TO
ATTEND AND VOTE

“artho purpases of the maoeting, =haros will be takon to be hed by the porsons
whn 3% registered as mamhzrs a3 at 700 pm ATEST onTuescay, 15 Novemnber
2017,

Prozies

fynu ara a merrber entitled o atend and wabs, wou are sncouragsd o agpaint
A Py 0 attenet anc wde or e hieha Fwehich yoomay do ysigning the gy
and ticking "Far®, *Againet” or “Abstain® against the varo s tarme of bushess
1 the prosy “onm. Koo am a membar prttled 1 atmend andd cast ton o7 more
WA, I arn nntitied fnagmni a1t oo minm: than fen proeirs. Whnom fan progirs
A Apnninte, yau may spesit th: nurmhee Gr proportion of ¥ates that cach may
axerclse, raling shich, each may eserclis: bat of the eates, A prosy need nat be
A nneniben ol e Cormpa

oL el b Bl o proy, pleese use e crosy foren oroyided, [you
il o dppainl beg oroies, please ollos e insroclions an e reverss of e
g N,

T Cormgzany's Canstitucion prowides that, ona show af ngnids, svang parsan
oresant and cualFed favate shall have one vt 1F yol ageaaint ore prowy, tat
o 1y vl o g b ol bands, Bl s appoint o progies, neiller pose
1y vl o i s ol hands.

Iyou apgonl 8 prosy who i aso @ nember on iz glso @ prosy Toanalhe
member, yaur directions may 1t be effectve an a show of hands. Your
o rectinne will be cfectta 2 poll 12 meuieed a0 saur prosy ates.

To b eTrctiva, tha oy Rorm must e racalwed by Boardcam Py [ imita,
myanlire submission ar at thie anddress or facsimile nunber balo, or By the
vnrnnaney a7 irs ragistrred ofice, [ aval 7, 154 William Strasr, Wonllanmonlan
Y 20T, o IEter than 100 am SESET on Tuesday, |h Novembar 2011,
2eing 45 houss before 112 commencement of the neeting.

The Chairman of the meeting & not permitied to vote undirecied
proxies on lem 2. 1f the Chalrman of the meeting ks your proxy, and
vau fall to provide a voting direction In respect of Hem 2 on the provy
form {which you may do by ticking “For', “Against' or 'Abstain’ opposhie
[tem 2 on the proxy form], you are directing the Chalrman of the
meating fo vote In favour of tam 2 swen I that resolition Is connected
directly or Indirectiy with the remuneration of members of the kKey
management personnel of the Gormpany.

To vole online:

AN N VISIT e hoardroomlimited com.auvotehomzonoilagmz011

STEP 2:

Entar your haldingslmestiment type

STEP 3:

Enter your SARN/HIN and VAC: <YAC NUMGER=-

By mail: For dallvary: By fax:

Bogrdmor Fry Hmited  Boardmor Py Dk Eoardroom Foy | imitan
G0 Ry 305G avel 7 70T Bant Sreet +£71 2 95490 BEAG
Sytiney HEW 200 Syringy Mew 2000

ALETRALA SUETRALE

Admission bo meeting
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EXPLANATORY MEMORANDUM

Items of business

1 Consideration of reports

There ig na requirement for membars o pass a resolution on this itam. A
reasonable opportunity will be given to members as a wholz 1o ask the auditon,
or thelr represantative, quastions relevant 1o the conduct of the audit and the
preparation and content of the auditor's repart,

2 Remuneration Report

The Remunearation Report is contained in the Diractors’ Repart of the Company's
2071 Anrual Report. A copy af the 20171 Annual Report i available on the
Company’s website waw.horizonoil.com.au. Sharaholders who have elacted,
prior to the date of this Nofice of Meeting, 1o receive 2 printed copy of the
Company's Annual Report will be sent a hard copy of the Annual Repon, Thosa
shareholders wiho wish ta receive a hard copy of the Annual Report in future
should contact the Company’s share registry,

The Rermureration Report:

* Fxplaing the principles used by the board to determire the nature and amount
of remuneration of cirectors and exacutives, and

* Cafs qut remuneration details for each director and each named executive.

In April 2010, the boand rescived to modify the remuneration arangements
for the Company's sanior executives. Based on advice received fram Guerdon
Aseocisles, an independznt remuneration consuttant, the boerd put in place &
short term incantive scheme and substituted the existing long term incantive
amangements for 1he Company's senicr executives with a revised long farm
Incentive schema, the operation of which is discussed in ftem & below,

Thi Chalrman will give sharsholders reasonable opportunity 1o ask questions
aboot ar make comments o the Remungration Repart. An advsory resolution
that the Remuneration Report is adopted will then be put to the wole,

The vote cn this item is advisory onky and does not bind the directors of

the: Company. Howeves, the board will take the outcome of this vole inba
consideration when reviewing the remaneration practices and polices of the
Company,

The drectars and the named exacutives wil net vale an this advisory resalution,
except as dircted by any proxias,

3 Election of director
Mr Andrew Stock

The Company’s Constitution provides that any director appointed as an addition
fothe existing drectors shall hold office until the nexd annual general maeting
and shall then be eligitde for re-election,

Mr Stock wes appointed to the board &5 a director with effact from
2 Fetwruany 2011

Mr Stock has over 35 years of development, aperations gnd commercigl
EXDETIENGE in anargy industrias in Australiz and cverseas. Most recently, a5
Execurive General Manager for Major Development Projects for rigin Energy,
he has lad the development and delivery of Origin's major capital program. This
Inchided oil and gas projects which now account for the majority of Origin's
liquids and convantional gas production, including the offshore and orshore
A1 billion Kupe Gas Project in New Zealand,

Hea also oversaw groming Origin's power generation asset portiolio o almost 3000
W of pas fired generation, as well a5 a development portfolio of renewables,
Andraw is 250 a director of Geodynamics Limited and a member of the Advisory
Eoards for the Centre of Energy Technology and the Faculty of Engineering,
Computers and Mathematical Sciences at the University of Adetaide.

He has a Chemical Eng neering Degrae (Honcurs) from the University of
Agkelaide, is a Faliowr of the InstRution of Engineers, Austraia and a graduate
member of the Austrelian Irstitute of Company Directars,

The dirsctars teith Mr Stock ahstaining recommend that vou vote in Seour of
this crdinany resolution,

Retirement of director
Mr Bob Laws Fa

Mr Laws, in accordance with the Company's Conatitution, retires &t the 2011
Armual General Meeting, Me Laws has advised the bogrd that e will mof stand
for re-election at the meating.

The hoand has reluctantly acceptad Mr Laws' advice that he wishas to refire
from the Horizon Ol board at the maeting. Mr Laws joined the Horzon Ol board
in Febrgary 2003 and gver the fast & ¥4 years has played an integral role at
board kavel in the developraent of the Compary, M Laws will depart he board
af Horizon Oil with the deep raspact, admiration and gratitude of the Company's
hoard, management and personngl,

4 Approval of issue of 5.50% USSB0 million convertible bonds

The purposz of the resolution 13 10 ensure that the administratve requirgments
of the ASY Listing Fules are satisfied so that the future issue of securities upon
the: corversion of the 5.50% USER0 million comertible bonds (“Bends") s
excluded from the calcutation of the 15% tweshokd of the Company's shares
which may be issued without shareholder aporovel,

Listing Rules 7.1,7.2 and 7.4

Breadly speaking, Listing Rule 7.1 provides that & listed compary may issue or
agres to Bsue in aggragata up to 15% of its fully paid ordinary shares within a 12
month pered without shareholder approval. Listing Rule 7.2 provides exceptions
to Ligting Rula 7.1, Listing Rula 7.2 Exception 4 provides that securities ssuad
on the comeersion of convertiie securities (such as the Bonds) are not taken

iritay gecournt when calculaticg the 15% limd, prosided that the Company’s
shareholders have approved the issue of the convertible securitiss as an exception
to the genera rule at the time the Company Esued the convertible szourities,

The Bonds were issued on 17 June 20771 without prior appeoval of the Company's
sharcholders. Listing Rule 7.4, howiver, provides that &n issue of securities mace
without apgroval under Listing Rule 7.1 is treated a3 having been made with
approval for the purpose of Listing Ruda 7.1 i the issue did not breach Listing Rule
7.1 and the holders of ordinary shares subsaquently approve i1,

The kssue of the Bonds on 17 June 2011 satisfizd the requirements of Listing
Fuke 7.1, The terms and conditions of the Bond prosides that the Bonds convert
bo up b 15% ol the Company’s ordinary shares, above which amounts otherwise
converlible to ordinary shares are mandatorily cash setiled unless shareholder
approvel is obtained in a general meeting. Item 4 sesks shareholder approval of
the izsue of Bonds for the purpase of Listing Rwes 7.9, 7.2 and 7.4 so that the
Company has the ability to issue ordinary shares in accorcance with tha terms
and conditiors of the Bonds,

The Board believas that shareholcer approval of the resolution proposed in
l'em 4 will provide the Company with the flexibility necessary to ralsa additional
capilal a5 and when appropriate.

In order to satisfy Listing Aule 7.4, Listing Rule 7.5 requeres the following
information to be proviced fo sharehoidars,
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Rule Convertible bonds

PN | The numizer | The tofal numbear of comvertible securities issued was
of securities | 400 Bonds in denominations of USE200,000, which
allotha: are converitie o the Campany’s shares at an initial

commrsion price of USS0.52 (as resel from time 1o lme
aonording o the teems and conditiong of tha Bonds).
AESUMTEN NO AdusTmants 10 e irdia comerson price,
the number of ordinary shares to be Esusd woon full
canversion of the Bords is 153,846,154 shares. and,
gssumE comersion ak the oo comersion price,

te number of ordinary shares be be Bsuzd epon ull
Conversion of the Bords is 192,307 692 shares

Convarsion Right

Each Bond shall entitle the Bond holder o comvert such Bond
irfa ardrary shares &t the then appicabls corvenson price
during the comeersion period, The number of ordinary sheres
10 b dediverad on gxarcise of a oomersion right shall De
determingd by deiding the principal amount of thi: Bonds 1o
be converied by the comversion price in effect on e relevan:
conversion date.

752 | The price at

The Bonds were |ssued for @ subscription price

Sharas

Shares issued on corversion of e Bends will be fully paid
and will carry the sarme rghts as the shares in the Company
than on issue and guotatian on e ASK will ba sought for
bl shares msusd at the relevant corversion dale, escepl
that the shares issued on convarsion will nat rank far ary
rights, distributions of payments i the record date for the
anfitamarts falls prior 1o e comensian date.

which the of USS200.000 each, far a 101zl issue size of
saturitias UIS530,000,000,
ware lssued

7h3 The terme of | A detailed summary and & copy of the full tarms and
the secun- canditions of the Bonds were included in the Company's
tizs: ASK ennouncement released on 17 June 2011, A

summary af the key tarms and conditions of the Bonds
& Summarnsad Deigw.

754 | The narmes of
dllothees;

The allottee of the Bonds was:

BT Globenet Mominees Limited, who s the regéstered
halder of the Gioba! Certificate for 100% of the bonds.

755 The use joF

The net praceeds of ssuing the Bonds were used

Cormersion Price
Reset

If the arithmatical everage of the volume weighted average
prices of the Compary's ardinary shares for each of tha

200 eonsaculive dealing days immediately prior b each of

17 June 2013, 17 June 2074 and 17 June 2015 (sach a
“Reset Data”), comartad into US daliars &l the pravailng rats
om each such dealing day (each an “Avesage Market Price’), s
lese than the presading conversion price on the relevant reset
date, the conversion price shall be adjusted on the releyvant
risel dale bo the average markel peice for thal resel date.

Ay such adjusiment 1o the comarsion price shall ba limiad
such that the adjusted conversion price in na event shall

be |ess than 80 per cent of the inilizl conversion price

USH0. 5200 faking iro accoun any arti-alubon aiustments
which may hawa oceurrad prior b the relavant raset date)

The floor for the conversion pce resel (subject by ant-dilution
afustments) is USSC.416.

imtanmad use) | by the Compary to fund tha acguisition by one of

of tha funds | its subsidiaries of Petses Petrolaum LLG ("Pesec

raiged: Acauisition”), pay fees and transaction costs assecatad
with the Petsac Acquisiton and the lssue of the Bands,
and to further aduance the Comgpany’s exploration
and development objectives and genersl corporele
purpesas. For further datails on the Petsac Acquesstion
e the Company’s announcement 1o tha ASX on
2 June 2011,

708 | Voting Aowing exchusion stakement is included in the Natice
axclugicn o Meating,
siatpment:

The ke bermns and conditions of the Bonds are as fofows:

Summary of the key terms and conditions

Maturity Dite 17 June 2018,

Coupon fintesast  5.50% per annum, payable sermi-annually in ameans with a
rate) first coupan to be pald 17 December 3011,

Yield to Maturity  7.00% per annum calcifated on a semi-annual basis.

Feoemation Prce  106.80% of principal.

Early Redamption  Accreled value of the Bands 1o the date of refemption,

Cash Satllament

Ther conversion right of & comerting Band hoidar may ba
sattled in ordinany shasas or in cash, at tha option of the
Carnpary (subject to mandatory cash settlement described
bedenwd, Thee Carnpany may miake an lectian e satisty the
AR Of A COrversion nght Dy makng payment 1 e
rcdovant Band hotdar of the cash altemative amount.

At any time whan 1he galivery of axcass shares is neguired
to aatisfy the converslon nght of & comerting Bond hoider,
the Company must pay to the relevant Bond haoldar the cash
dhemative amount = relation to such excess shares,

“Cash Altemiative Amou” means the USH equivalent, & the
presaitirg rate, of e product of (a) the number of ardnary
shares deliverable (i) upon axercise of tha convarsion right
in raspect of whach the Company has aeercsed a cash
alternative electon or, (I} In refation to rmandatory cash
sattiement, in respect of the excess shares, and {b) the
anthmetic averags of the Volume Weighted Average Frice

of the ordinzry shares for the 20 consacutive degling days
commencing on the relevart cash election date or the
randatory roBoe dale s appicable).

“Excess Shares” maeans the number of ordinary shares to be
issued by tha Company i raspect of 2 Bong halder exaercising
a comversaon Aght In cecess of the number of ardemary shares
for which the Company has authority to sswe under Listing
Fule 7.1 an the clasing date wilhout firs! bainng approvs of
shareholders, baing 154 521,727 ordinary shares.

Arnount

Initial Conversion & 28.95% premiwm 1o the Relerarce Prica, le. US$0 520,

Frice based on 2 fixed exchange rate of LS1.0621 = AS1.0000.

Feference Frice AR08 being the closing price of the ordinary shares on the
ASK on 2 June 2011

Corversion Ratic 3846153646 ordinary shares per Bond at the initial
COMVETSION Price.

Cornersion Periad

Any time from the day wihich iz 41 days after the settiement of
the msue of the Bonds witil the day whach is seven days prior
to maturity, or i the event of 2arly redempiion, mitil seven
days prior o the date e lor rademplion,




Redemgtion at Redemgtion of the Bonds i pemitted wgon the QCCWTeNCcE

the Option of e of cergin 2verts &5 set out in the tarms &nd conditions of the

Companyorthe  Bonds

Bond halders

Anti-dilution Standard provislens pratacting againsl, Infer alia, frae

Ad|ustments distribution, bonus ssue. divsion, consolidation and re-
classification of ardirary shares, declaration af dividend in
oradingry snares, distributiors, issuance of optans, mghts or
warrants, the izsue of further carvertibea or exchangeaable
hands, the issue of ordinary shares and cerfain other ditive
ervenls, subject to a 5% threshold,
Mo adjustment to the conmeersion price shall be made for
any securly or beneficlal interest therein Issued under any
Cmpaayee o confractor incontiv schomes or with respoct ta
the issue ol ootions with respect 10 ordingry shanes that will
he issued 10 Patsed Enaragy Limited pursuant o the Patsec
Acouisition.

Cash Dividend Irwastor protection in the form of converslon price adiustment

Protection in respect of all dividznds and dstributions,

Ligding (n tha Singapare Exehange Securifies Trading Limited,

Purchasa and Subject to the requinements (If any) af the Singapors stock

frading exchanpe, the Bands may ke purchasad at any price on the

open markel by private conlract or olhenwise
The directars recammend that you vite in fzvour of this ardinary resalutian,

5 Approval of issue of 15 million general options fo Petsec America Pty
Limited for the purposes of ASX Listing Rules 7.4 and 7.5

In June 2011, Harizon 08 puschased the share capital of Pedsec Petroleum LLE from
Petsec danzeca Pty Lirmited which holds a 25% interest in the Block 22412 petrokum
corract and a 12.25% inlerest in the development project encompassing the

Wi B-12, Wi B-17 South znd Wei 12-8 West od liglds (*Petsec Inferest”). Prior fo
1he agreement, the parkes rageived e ancorsement of the transaction from CHOOE
Limited. Conditions to the sale and purchase agreement have been satefied and the
fransaction is not subject to pre-emptive rights.

The acquisttian of the Petsac Imearest moreasad Horzon Oil's net reserves in Block
2272 fram 6.1 memioo s 11.3 mmbo and is share of peak production from
approimately 2,200 bopd to 4.000 bapd, with the vpside esploration potental in the
Wi 6-12 aras to ba evabuated during the develepmart drilling campasgn

The consideration paad by Horzen O for the shams was AS3S million
{-USE40 million) subject to post-effective dete and forcign cxchange adjusiments,
and 15 mdlion netions in respact af new Herzon Oil Limitad shares.

Lezting Rule 7.4 allowis an lssue of securtes without appeaval undes Listng Ruse

7.1 to be treated as having been made with approval 3o long 25 the issue does not
beach Listing Rule 7.1 and the shareholders subsequently approve 1. The issue

of 15 milon opticns to Petsec Armarnica Limited was conducted in accordanca wth
LEsting Hule .7, and Ma company saeks he subsaquant appnval of sharsholdens i
the lsstie.

Az raquired by Listing Rule 7.5, the following information is provided in respect of the
issuz of options o Petsac Amenca Pty Limited:
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Rule General options

151 The numier | The madmum number of shares that may be ssued on
of seourities | ewercise of the options i 12,000,000
ghatled:

TEE | Thapriceat | The options have an exerise price of A50.37 par
which the sharg,
secuties
WETE is5UEd:

8]

T.0:3 The terms of | The options must s exercised @ minimum ols of

the securitiss | 5,000 prior bo their expiry o 30 Juné 2074, Until ewar-
ciga, sueh options will nat heve any right to paricpate
In dividents of the lssuer and will nat hava any right 1o
pasticipate in new issuances of the lsswar. The aptions
may be exercised by delivering a nofice of execise,
tagether with payment of the exercise price.

754 The mames ol | Pelsac Amenca Piy Limilad,
alatiees:

55 | Theusajor | A described above, the Bsue of options was part
intaried use) | considaration for the acousstion of the shares in Petsec
of the finds | Petrodeam LLC which held Petsac’s intarest in Block
rased; 2312, Clina, Any Turds raised on The exercise ol these

options will be used to further advance tha lsswar's
exploration and development ohjectives.

756 | Wling hooting exchusion statement i included i the hotice
I by of Meating.
statemant:

The direcbars recommand thal wou vabe in ‘swow of Bis cadinary resalution

& Approval of 2011 grant of long term incentives to Brent Emmett, chief
executive officer and executive director

Tha Comgeary intraduced the LT) Plan during 2090 o prosids annual
parformance incenives to the Compary's kay emplovees. Sharaholders hava
previously approved the LTI Plan unoer ASX Listing Rule 7.2.

O 5 dumgust 2017, the boand approved the grant of B,476,276 SARs to
smplovees under the LTI Plan, 2,625,328 of the SARs were appeaved by the
board 1o be granted to Brent Emmett, an executive directon, subject to the
appraval of sharehalders, The remaining 3,857,948 3ARs were approved to be
granted toe employees wha are not directors of the Company. The proposad grant
1o e EMmiatt i o th terms and condtions &3 outlined oakw;

Summary of the terms of the LTI Plan

Iy gt 0 provide annual performance incentives 1 the Company s executvas,
based on advice receved from Guesdon Asacoiates, an independent
remuneration consultart, the hoard resoéved on 1 Apel 2070 t0 astahlish the

LT Plan {o regdace existing long term incentive amangements for the Company's
senior enscutives. Under the LTI Fan, the board bas the discration, subject to
A5 Lissing Rule requiremants, 10 grant shane appraciation rights (54857 1o
oxieutives a3 kng tom incengives. The board has dotermined that 25% of senlar
axecutive’s tofal remuneration would be long tarm incentives in the form of S4Rs,
with the numbezr of SARs granted based on the value of 2 SAR.

A AR is a right o receive either or both a cash payment ar shares in the
Company, as determined by the board, subject i the Corrpany salisfying cerlain
condlitions, incheding perfermance conditions,

Tme L7 Pan provides thar the amount of the cash payment or the number of
shares in the Company thal e perlicpant raceiws on swarcize of the SR &
based on the walia of tha S4R at the tims i 15 axercised (“5AR Malug™). The SAR
Value &5 the axcess, If any, of the wolume welghted average price {“VWaP") of
shares in the Comgany for the ten business day period wp to the date before the
dhate thie SAR & exercisad over the VWAP of shares inthe Gorrpany for the ten
baisiness day perod up to the dey befora the *Effective Miocsation Dete” for tha
AMFs, The Flective Allaczation Date for the SARS & the gran date of fhe SAR:
o any ol day determired by the board, at te time ol e grant, The Efective
Allozaticn Date would generaly be the date the executive's entitlement was
determingd The VWAP of shares in the Comgany far the t2n businass day period
g b the day bafore the “Efective Allocation Date” for the purposes of the 2017
SRS s 0503189

1t the beard determings thal the SAHs are to ba satishied in cash, the amaiint of
cash that the participart raceives on the exastse of the SARS |5 tha SAR Vaiue
multiplied by the number of S4Rs exarcizad ess any deductian for taxes that the
Company i reguired to make fram the paymant).



Il tha bkoard detarmings thal tha SA4Rs g to be salzfied in sharss, the number of
shanas that he Paricipant recemas on he exarcizs of e S4HS i3 the SAR Value
dividiad] bry the wburme weinhed averaga price of shams in the Compary for he ten
business day perizd vp o the day before the day the SARs are exercised. Wheme the
nurnber of sharss calculatied is not a whole numbes, it will be rounded dovn (o the
nearast whale number

Other key tarms and conditions of the SARs that may be granted undgar tha LT! Flan

inclue:

Maximum
ruemiber

ol shares
that can be
losued:

aubject 10 various exchusions, the maximuom number of shares
Frat mery ber issued oo the eercise of SARs grarted undar the LTI
Plan is capped at 5% of the tatal sumber of Esusd shares of the
Company,

Hey larms &
conditions

Long Term Incentive Plan

Bighila
PRrsans:

Uniddesr the terms of the LT Fan, the Company may grant 5485 b
any employea, Howaver, it i cumently intended by the Comgany
1o only grant SARs undar the LTI Flan 10 currart sanicr exacutiva
empiyees including crocutive drocions.

Restrictions
O SNEICISE:

A SAR cannot be exercisad unless it his vested, Whare a SAR
wesls, & participant may not exarcisa The SAR unlil the fest time
after the: fme Ihe SAR vasts thatl the participant is able toodegl
with shias i tha Cempary undar the Company's secunties
tradirg palicy.

SARs are emerclsad by subméting a notice of exercise o the
Company.

Exerome
frice:

M price is payable by a participant i the LT Flan on the exemise
ol 3 5AR,

Farformance
reqUirements:

Uckes b LTI Plan, the b of SARs that vest is ganerally
daterminad by refarenca to whather the Company achieves
cerain performance conditons.

Tha number of SARs that vest is determined by reference to the
Cormpany’s total shareholder retum ["TSR™) over the relevant
pariod retative fo that of the S&PAASKI00 Enery Index (*Index")
Tha number of SARs that vest is:

= il the Comgany's TSR is equal to that of the Index { Minimum
Berchmark™), 300

+ if the Comparny's TSR i 14% or more above that of the Index,
100% ("Masimemn Banzhmar”); and

= il the Corgany's TSR is moea Ban the Minimum Becmark,
bt less than the Maximum Banchmank, a pamentage betwaan
50% and 1C0% besed on the Company's T3R performance
bateean the Minemum Benchimark and Madmum Bznchmark

Tiee Maeimaam Banchimark of 14% above the Iindax relum sguates
1o the pariommanca kevel likely & excaed the 75th parcentile of
markel refums of companies (weighted by comganm siZe) in he
e,

Furthermaore. even whare these performance condifions are
satssfied, the 2ARs will not vest unless the Company achieves a
TER of at least 10% ver the refevant period,

The perfarmarce canditions are tested on the date that is fres
years aftar the Effective Grant Date of the 38As, and are than
re-tested avery six months after that until the date that is five
years after the Efective Grant Date of the S4Rs (the fingl retesting
date). The performance conditions are &k tested where certain
cincwmestances ooour, such as & takeoser bid for the Company.

The Effective Grant Cate for the S48 is the date the S0Rs are
grantad, ar such olhes date 25 Me board delamings ‘o the S6R5.

If the SARs have nit, purswant 1o these performance conditors,
vested by the final retesting date that is five years after the date
the SARs aro granted, the SARs will lapse.

Lapse:

SARs will langs where;

= thia SARs have not vasted by the final ratesting data which (s
fie: years after the date of grant (see sbove),;

= if the SAHs have vested by the final retesting date that is fue
years after the date of grant, tha 54Rs have not been exercised
within three months of the date that the SARs would have first
baen ale bo be exercised if they vested af the tingl retesting
daba that & five years attar the dale of grant.

= This may ba maore than fie yaars and threa months fom the
diate ol grant depending on whethes the hoider of he SA4R is
able to deal with sharas n the Company under the Company’s
sacurities trading policy at the date five years afisr the date of
grant

* [fie employes ceases 10 be emplayed by a member of the
Farizan Oil Graup, and the brard determinas that some o all of
the SARs lapse (zee above);

+ the board determines that the employes has committed or it iz
evident that the emploves intznds 10 comma, any ac1 iwhether
by comerEsSion o ormesion) which amoeis or would amaunt o
frand or 56 ious misconducs; or

# the employes provides a notice to the Compary that they wish
the S4Fs fo lapsa.

Share rarking
and gquitation

Shares prowidad pursuant to the exercisa of & SAR will rank
equally with the shares in the Company then on issue, Quotation
o lhe ASK will e soughl for 2 shares issued upon Ihe exanciss
cf SARs, SARs are nof assignable or transfarable,

Mo right to
dhvichaniis,
Doaus ar
rights isswes:

The SARs will not canfer on the holder an enrtifement ta dividends
or b participate i banus issues ar dghts issees unless the Board
catarmmines that the SARs will bie satisfied i shares and urdll the
SARs are esercized and shames are provided to the Walder.

Fdex wasking
rights:

Thwz SARs will ot confier an enditement 1o vobe al genesal
meatings of the Company unlass the Board datarmings that the
SARS will be salistied in shares and until the SARS are exercesed
and shares arg provided o e holdar

tuatation:

Thee Comparmy will not apdy B the ASE Tor alficial quetation of the
GARs,

Cagsation ol
amplaymant:

I & hodder of SARs under the LT Plan ceases o be ampioyed
bry a memiber of tha Horzon Ol Group. then this generally doas
n affect the terms and operation of the 3ARs. The Board
toes, however, under the LTI Plan have discretion, to the extent
parmisted by law, ta cause the SARs to lapse or accelerate the
date om which the SARs becoms exercisable,

Capital ra-
organssation:

In the gyent of a reprganisation of the capital of the Gompary, the
rights of th SARs holder will be chanped to the outent necessany
to compdy with the ASK Listing Rules and shall not resuit in any
additoral banefits baing confiarred on SARs holders which are not
corferrad on mambers,




Etfact of The LTI Fian contains provisaons 1o deal with S8Rs where there

bake- o is & taki-ovar or change of contral of the Campany. Depending
o change on the ratune of the take-over or change of control evant, the
of control of — Company will either hewve the discretion or ba required [if &
Company, change of controd) to detormine a speslal relesting dato for the
death ar rerformance requiremants discussed above.

desablement:

For exgmpls, the board will have discretion fo determmine 3 special
retesting date where a takeower bid is mage for the Company or a
scheme of arrengement is entered into. In that case, the special
rateeting dite will B the date ceberninad by the boand. Where

2 statemant is ioagad Wit the AZX that a person has become
entitlesd ta acauire more than 50% of the Compary, the board wal
b required to daterming a specizl retesting data, and thea spacial
ratesiing date will b= the day the statement is lodged with the
S

Tine B4Rz may vest il e gerlormance requirements discussed
abova ara salestied in ralation 1o thal special retesting dala,

Listing Rule 10114 requinas that the grant of securities o & director (or an associate
of the directcd) undsr an employes incentive scheme be approved by shareholders.

A rznpuined by Lssting Rule 10015, the follmwing infarmation is pravided in respect of
the grasil of S8R5 under e LT Plan bo an axecitive directon:

Listing Item 6
Rule Long Term Incentive Plan
1152 The masirmum number The miggirnurm numbsr of shares hat
of Company's ordinary ey B anguanad by M Emmeatt is
shares that may be 2,626,325
;;m'm”‘m BARICISE OF |t b of shares that may be
proposed grant of
secuities and the formuda acoulrad by Mr Emmett on exerclse
for calculating the nurmber | & e SARS proposed In be granted
S ] i1|n_'u. is determaned &t the time of
gxarcisa by referenca to the SAR Valuz
at the fime the SAR & exarcsad and
lhe walume: weghted average pice
of shares in the Company for tha tan
Dussaness day pancd up to e day
befare the day the SAR |z exerclsad jas
Oescribed abave).
10L15.3 Farmuly for cakigating Wr Bt is not regurad b pay any
the price of secuntes o | prce in order to acquire SARs under
be acquired under e the LTI Ptan. Hawever, the valus of
scheme: what Mr. Emmett receives if his S4Rs
becoms axercisable is the SAR Value,
Thiz is based on the appragiation in tha
shara price of the Company from the
Effective Allocztion Date until the date
of axercize izoe discussion above). Tha
proposed Effective Aliacaton Date for
Mr. Emmatts SARs is
1 July 20171,
10,154 Mames of directers and Il
asaociatas who have
received securities under
the schama since the
et approwal; rumber
received: and cogquesitlon
[ricE:
10544 | Names of directors and Brent Emmett
aEsociatas entiled to
participate in schar;

101545 Voting excdusion A vl exciuson statement is included
statarnant: ift Hr Binlicser of Matinig,

10156 fermns of any loan in Mt epplicable.
relatian to acoulsition:

10157 Date on which securities | Subsect t shareholdes approval of the
will b= Eswed: igsue of the SARs, within & businags

rays of the Annugl General Mesting, but
i ey vl o Bler Than 12 months
after the date of the Annuzl General
Mesting

The directars {with Mr Brent Emmett abstainng) recommend that vou vode in Fxeur
ol these ardinary resolutions.

7 Renewal of approval of issue of securities under the Employee Option
Scheme for the purposes of ASX Listing Rules 7.1 and 7.2

Thi purposea al the resolution & bo ensune Hal the administrative requiraments

of the ASK Listing Rules are satisfied =0 that future issues of secunties under the
Company’s Emgeoyes Cpgion Schems (EOS (the option plan’) are exciuded fram tha
calculation of the 15% threshald of the Company shares which may b issued withouwt
sharehalder approval,

Listing Rules 7.1 and 7.2

Broadiy sgeaking, Listing Rule 71 provides that a ksted company may issue or apree
1o i=sue im aggregate up 1o 15% of its fully paid ardinary shares within & 122 month
perind without shareholder approvsl. Listing Rule 7.2 provides sxceptions b Lsting
Aule 7.1.

Ona of tha axceptions 2 the general rula, pravidad for in Listing Rusa 7.2 Excaption
Dby, is that securities issued under an empigyes ncentve schema will not be

faken info account when calcuiating the 15% Bmit, provided that the Company’s
shareholders have approved the issue of securities under the schema as an
axcaption to the general rde within 3 years prior ko the date of issue of the sacurities.
Accordingly, llam T szexs shareholdzr approval of the issue of options wnder the EQS
50 that the Comparny hes the ability bo Bsue up to 15% of its cagital during the yeerin
addition fo any optors issesd umder tha E0&

The Goard belleves that sharehalder approval of the resolution propased In em 7 will
provide the Company with tha flexibility necessary to raise additional capital as and
when appropriate.

Summary of the terms of the opfion plan

In order to provide perfvrmance incentives to the Comgany's employees and
recognesang the importance of mantaining the Company's cash regarves, the
Buard has put in place the EOG 1o proside non-cesh incentives to reward employes
parformancs,




The g tarmes and conditiarg af tha £S5 are as ollows:

Hey terms & conditions

Employee Option Scheme

Bligible persons:

Cumment employees mciuding executive directors

Corversion ralin:

Each ogtion entitles Ba hokder 10 subscribe for one
orenany share

Exercmse phce:

The price determined by the directors, but nat less
than;

al the visurre weighted average at wiich e
Company's share am soid on the ASK on tha
5 days proceding the grant of the optiors; and

[ el cents

Upon exorciae, anly ane cent of the cacssise prcg
ie immadiately payatle, with the bafarce payabéa at
any time pror to the expiration peried of the option

Ferformance requirements:

Mone

Maximun oftons able to
be granted each year,

Options granted wader tha plan fogether with any
parily paid shares on issue pursuant &2 any ather
empioyes share schame of the Company) must nod
pead 5% of the nomber of shares i the Gomgary
ik igsue from me Lo lne

Festrictions on exercisa:

Deferred exercise pericds: the oplions are
progressively exercisable i three equal ranchas
frorm dtes which are 12, 24 gnd 36 months aiter
qrant date

Expiry: & years from data of issue

Share ransing and Shares issued pursuant i3 the exercsa of an option

quatation: will rank equally with the shares in the Company
then on issue. Dudtation by ASX will be sought for
all shares B30ad upan e exanss of the optons.
Options are not assignable of trarsforable

M rigivt 1o dividends, The optiors will not confer an the helder an

g or mghts issues:

anfitiament to dividends ar bo participate in Boaus
igsues, The options will not corter an eritiemant o
participate in fighls issues

NG weting rigivis: The options will nct confer an entitlement to voie at
ganeral mestings of the Company
Hom-quotation; The Company will not apply to the ASX far official

quataticn of the optons

Capital re-organisatiors

I the event of a remmanssation of the capital of

the Comparny, the rights of the option older wil

[ changed to the estent necessany 1 comply with
the ASK Listing Rules and shall not result in any
additional benefits being conferred on ogtion holders
which are not condemed on members

Ftfect of take-over or
chienge of conil ol
Company, daath or
disablement:

(ptions became immerdately seerisas, Al
restriclions o eerciss mouding oglon berer,
=

Sinca the date of the kst aponoval by shareholders n 2008, 3,900,000 oxlions have
besr issued under the E0S,

A wing BXCliEson stafament & included n the Modice,

The directors (with executive directors abstairang) recommend that wou vote in favour
of this ardinary resolution,

B8 Miscellanaous

Fefarences to “8” or *dofars” in this document are references 10 Australian dollars,
urdass olherwiss spacilied.

Sydrey
G Dctober 2071



YOURVOTE IS IMPORTANT

Horizon Oil Limited

ARM &1 008 7300455

FOR ALL ENQUIRIES CALL:
(wilkun Australia} 1300 737 T80
[outsie Austraiia] +61 2 5280 9600

FACSIMILE
1300 653 459 ar
+6i1 2 5279 0654

ALL CORRESPONDEMCE TO:
Boandraom Pty Limitad

PO Ray 3033

Sy MEW 200

Auslrata

Your Addrass

This is yow =ddess as i appears on
company's share register f this iz incom
pleasa mark tha box wilh an "X and make
comection on the fom. Securiyholders spensc
by a broker should advess wour broker of

FOR YOUR WVOTE TO BE EFFECTIVE IT MUST BE RECORDED BEFQRE 10.00AM TUESDAY 15th changes. Please nole, you cannot chal
WOVEMBER 2011 ownarzhip of your securities using this forr
TO VOTE ONLINE <SRN/HINz

STEP1: VISIT

E STEP2: Enter your holding/investment typ
STEP3: Enter your SRNHINand VAC:  <VAC NUMBER>

TO VOTE BY COMPLETING THE PROXY FORM

STEP 1 Appointment of Proxy

Indicate here wha you want to appaint as your Proxy

If o wish to appoint the Chasman of the Meeting &3 your praxy, mark the box, If
you wish fo appont sormeone ofhar than the Charman of the Meebng as vour proxy
please write the full name of that ndnidual ar body corporate, f you leave this
seclion blank, or your nemed proxy doss nol altend the mestng, the Chairman of
Ther Meeting will e your proxy. A prosy need not be o secunly holder of the
cornpany. Do nol wiits the name of the ssuer company o the regislansd
securityhodder in the space

Prasy which iz a Bady Corporate

‘Where a body corporate is appainted a3 youwr proxy, the representative of that body
corporate atlending he mesling must provded an “Appomimant of Carporats
Representative” price Io admission. An Appoinimenl of Corporale Represenialive
lom can be oblainad lrom the company's securilies reqisiry.

Appoiniment of a Second Proxy

You are enfifed to appeint up ho bwa pravies o attend the mestng and vole oh a
peall. I you wish 1o appoint a second proxy, an addilional Proxy Form may be
chlained by lalaphoning the compamy's secunbas ragistiy of you may copy this
famm

To appoint a second proxy you must

[a) complals bwo Promy Foms, Onaach Proxy Form stata the pemcantage
aof your wobing nghts or the number of securiies applicable ta thal form, i
ha appaintments do nol specily the percentags of number af voles lhat
aach prowy may edercise, each proxy may exercise half your vobes
Frachans of voles will ba desnapanded.

) relum both forms fogether in the same amelope

STEP 2 Voling Directions to your Proxy

You can tell your Proxy how to vote

To direct wour proxy haw bo vole, place a mark in one of the boxes oppesie each
iern of business. Al your securilies wil be voled in accordance with such a
direcion unless you indicate coby a porhion of voting rights are in ba wohed on any
ferm by insarling the parcentapa or rumber of secunties you wish to vole intha
apprognata box or boxes. Il you do nol mark any of the boxes on a gven ilam, your
proxy may vate as ha aor she chacses. | you mark mora tham one box on an item
YU vate on that Sem will be myakd,

STEP 3 Sign the Form
The formn must be signed
In the spaces provided you must sign this fom as follows:

Individual: This form 15 bo be signed by the secuntyholder

Joint Holding: where (e hoiding i i mone than coe rame. all e secuntyholdens must
5.

Power of Attorney: to sign under a Power of Attorney_ you must have alresdy lodged it
wilh the regElry. Akernabvealy, atlach a carlilied phatocopy of lhe Power al Altamey 3 this
fearrm by retuem it

Companies: this form must be signed by a Direcior pinthy with either anather Director or a
Company Secratary. Whers the company has a Soks Director who is also tha Sole
Company Secralary, tis form musi be sipned by thal person. Please indicate the affice
hedd by sigring in the eppropriate place.

STEP 4 Lodgement of a Proxy

Thes Fromy Forn fand any Power of Atomes' under which £ 15 signid) must be receved at
an addrass givan balow nal latar than 48 howrs balora the commencament of te mealing
&t 10.00sm on Thursday, 17 Movember 211, Ary Praxy Form received after that dme
will not be valid for the scheduled mesting.

Proxies may be lodged using the reply paid envelope or:

BY MAIL  Shaie Regslry - Boardioem Py Limbed,
GPO Bow 3983, Sydney NSW 2001 Australia

BY FAX 1300 €53 459 for if oulside Australin + §1 2 5250 9655)

INPERSON Share Regisiry - Boardroom Pty Limited,
Level 7, 207 Kanit Streel, Sydney NSIW 2000 Australa



<Address 1>
<fddress 2=
<Address 1=
<Address 4=
<Address 5= <BARCODE=>

STEP 1 - Appointment of Proxy

¥'va being a mambar's of HDI'iICII'I ﬂl| Lllmiteﬂ and entified to attend and vola harshy appoint

the Chairman of 1T s ez il aapeceiralingy I Chasianan o [ Wocling as yew prony shease wiic
he Meeling here the Tull namie of he individual or body corporabe (ancluding e mgisterad
{mark with an DR Escurilytadar) you &re apparling & your groey.

x)

or failing the individual or body comparate named, of if na individual or body corparate is named, the Chairman of the meeting, a mylsur proxy at the Annual General Meeting
of Horizon Ol Limited to be held at Mezzanine Level, Robinsan / William Room, Bayview Boulevard Hotel, 90 William Street, Sydney, on the 17th of
MNovember 2011 at 10.00am and al any adownment of thal mesting, b act on mylour beball and ko vobe in accondance wib e following diectons o i no diredions bave
hean giwen, as the proxy sess fi

Important for ltem 2 - If the Chasman of the meeting is apaonted &s your progy or may bz apponted by defaul

If the Chairman of the mesting is your proxy, and you fail to provide a voting direction i respect of liem 2 on this proxy (which you may dao by ticking
‘For', ‘Againsl’ or ‘Abstain’ opposite Ham 2 in Slep 2 below), you are directing the Chairman of the meeling to vole in favour of ltem 2 even if that
resolution 1s connected directly or indirectly with the remuneration of members of the key management personnel of the Company.

Impariant for |tems & and 7 - W the Chaiman of the meeling 1= appaintad as your pragy of may be appaintad by defaull

By rarking thes box, you ase direchng and authorsing te Shatnran of e Mesbng o wobe in accodance wih e Chasman's voling nbentien as set oul below znd
in the hofice of Meeling even 7 Hems 6 and 7 &e connecte direclly or indirectly with the remunsration of memoers of te key management parsonnel of he
(mark Comgpany or the Charman hes en interast in the outcome of the items and that vobes cast by the Chairman of the mesbng fior those items cther than as proxy holder
would ba disregarded because of thal intarssl. If you do nol mark this box, end you have not direcied your proxy how to vole {(which you may do by licking
‘For', "Againsl’ or ‘Abstain’ opposite Hems 6 and 7 in Step 2 below), the Chairman of the mesting will not cast your voles on the resolution and your woles
will not be counted in caloulaling the required majority if a poll is called. Tha Chasrman al Ihe maeting infenss b vols all avatable prowes in favour of llams §
and © ol busness

an ‘X'

STEP 2 - Voting directions to your Proxy - please mark B to indicate your directions

Ordinary Business For Against | Abstain*
[tem 2 | To =dopt the remuneration report

[tem 3 | To ebect Mr Andrew Stock as a director

Itzm 4 Toepprove the iasuz of 5 509 USES0 million convertible honds

[tz 5 To approve the issuz of 15 million general aptians to Petsec Ametica Py Limitad

Item G Toapprove 2011 grant of long tem incentives to Brent Emmet, chisf executive officer |_| |_I |_I
[tesm T Toapprove iEsue of aptions under the Erployes Cptior Schemes

In adcditin e Do inbenbiores advised abowe. The Claimsan of the Mesling mbends b vobe andimctod prosies in Tavour of ach of The ibems of busness.

* yiou mark the Abatain bax for a parficalar fem, you ane direcling vour proxy ot to vole an your behalf an a show of hands or on a poll and yowr vofzs wil not be counted in
computing the required maonty an & paoll

STEP 3 - PLEASE SIGN HERE this section must ba signed i sccordance with the mstructions overleal to enable your directions to be implemanted.
Individual or Securityholder 1 Securityholder 2 Securityholder 3

Sole Director and Sole Company Secretary Director Diracdar!/Cempany Seanatary

Contact Name Gantact Daylime Telephone late : /



